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Profit for the Year

| hereby announce that Welling Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$9,273,399,000 (2013: approximately HK$8,881,723,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (the “Year”). The audited profit attributable
to the owners of the Company and earnings per share amounted to
approximately HK$678,372,000 (2013: approximately HK$785,499,000)
and HK23.76 cents (2013: HK27.70 cents) respectively, representing a
decrease of 13.6% in profit compared to the same period last year. The
Group’s gross profit margin for 2014 was approximately 15.4% (2013:
approximately 16.0%).

Business Overview

In 2014, the global economy maintained moderate growth in general. The
post-financial crisis structural adjustment continued. Uneven economic
development in different countries, drastic drop in international oil price
which triggered a wave of sharp decline of commodity prices, coupled with
the accelerating regional and geopolitical conflicts and Ebola epidemic,
all cast negative impacts on future economic growth. The government of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) focused on the quality of the
economy development and fine-tuning of its economic growth model.
Affected by the prolonging sluggish property market, the economy was
facing intensifying downturn pressure. Under the influence of, amongst
others, the slowdown of macro-economy, stagnant property market,
termination of stimulating policies and over consumption in advance,
the overall performance of electrical household appliances industry was
subdued, with various sub-divisions in this sector delivering contrasting
results. The trend in structural product upgrade had become more
prominent and brand concentration had further increased.

The Group continued to enhance its business operation with a focus on
the operation and growth of its business through improving the competitive
strength of our products and reinforcing our customer orientation.
For customer development, we made timely adjustment on marketing
strategies and actively secure the market share in order to provide better
products and services for customers. Direct current brushless motors for
household air-conditioners, commercial motors and wave-wheel motors

4 Welling Holding Limited | EZEZERERA R
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achieved significant breakthrough. Since we entered into closer cooperation
with our customers, the reactors segment recorded sharp increase in
operating revenue. The sales volume of new products, including electrical
tool motors and booster pumps for water purifiers, witnessed significant
growth through further market expansion and enhanced cooperation with
our existing customers.

With regard to technical innovation, we adhered to the segregation between
research and development, concentrated on the research and production
of upgraded products, leading to the technological upgrade of products
and building up our capability for product differentiation. We introduced the
new generation alternating current motors for household air-conditioners
and series motors in 2014. Meanwhile, we continued to enhance the
management of and investment in intellectual property. During the year, the
Group filed 188 applications for patents, of which 72 applications were for
invention patents. Currently, the Group employs a total of 225 research and
development (“R&D”) professionals, of whom PhD holders and master’s
degree holders account for 18%.

With regard to product quality and manufacturing technologies, we
continued to hire middle to high level talents specialising in improving
product reliability and technology. Meanwhile, we strengthened the
cooperation with external professional consulting companies, coupled
with the enhancement in the motor manufacturing technologies, lean
management and product quality management standard by internal
and external resources, thereby introducing a great number of lean
production projects and quality improvement projects with a focus on
service orientation and the rigid execution of quality enhancement. As
a result, we sharpened significantly our senses to service and quality,
our production efficiency and product quality had also kept shoring up.
In addition, our supply chain management had significant improvement
through optimisation of sources of supply and strengthening the scope of
management for suppliers.

To conclude, with the efforts from all our staff members throughout 2014,
the Group’s internal operational and management standards improved
and there were a series of effective measures having been launched, and
the market competitiveness of its principal products had been enhanced.
Through some innovative initiatives such as launch of upgraded products
and development of new products, the Group identified its future expansion
direction and laid a solid foundation for future growth.
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Prospects

Going forward, it seems that the global economy is unlikely to emerge
from the current adjustment in 2015. Due to varying internal economic
structures, the development in different regions became more diverse.
While the United States economy is apparently on course to recovery, the
European economy remains vulnerable and is under threat of impending
deflation. A downward trend persisted in emerging economies as a whole.
In general, global economy is expected to maintain a moderately low
growth due to a number of risks and uncertainties, especially the potential
effects on global liquidity with a rising interest rate in the United States,
scales and effects of quantitative easing in Euro zone and development
of geopolitical crises in certain regions, all of which are highly concerned
uncertainties. Recently, the PRC Government has lowered its 2015 growth
target of economy to about 7%, which indicates that the economy is
subject to growing downward pressure and more difficulties are likely
to face in 2015 as compared to 2014. The economic development is to
maintain a steady growth in order to enhance the quality and efficiency
and to ensure the economic cycle to be in a reasonable region, focusing
on a shift in management mode and economic restructuring. Amid
ongoing adverse impact in the electrical household appliances industry,
the consumption requirement is higher and the optimisation of product mix
and upgraded products is obvious in the industry. Market competition in
electrical household appliances shifted to focus on quality and differentiation.
In light of improved quality in market operation, there is a pressing need for
corporate technological upgrade. It is expected that, the market of electrical
household appliances will face with challenges in terms of overall sales
in 2015. In such severe conditions, the Group will adhere to the principle
of “placing customers at our core and making quality products” and be
in line with direction of promoting industrial upgrade by the government.
With the upgrading trend in electrical household appliances industry, we
are committed to pioneering technological research of core products and
launching upgraded products. We are also actively seeking cooperation
opportunities in order to expand into new industries and new businesses in
a timely manner as well as enhance our comprehensive competitiveness.

For 2015, the Group will continue its established strategies by proactively
approaching customers to understand their needs and seek closer
cooperation with them. We will be committed to improving our core
products’ quality through enhancement in every procedure from R&D,
supply to production, so as to increase comprehensive competitiveness of
our products. We will emphasis on product planning and actively look for
new growth drivers. We will make further investment in R&D and technical

6 Welling Holding Limited | EZEZERERA R
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innovation and hire middle to high level talents, while strengthening R&D
system and establishing technical expert team and introducing innovative
technologies and upgraded products. The Group would enhance
production technologies through technical innovation and automation in
order to increase production efficiency and quality, leading to production
technology upgrade in the industry. We will strictly control the investment
risk with focus on the return on assets. Internal management will go further
towards sophisticated management with emphasis on performance and
transparency. We will recruit more qualified personnel to improve our
portfolio of talent and add new force to the organisation.

Looking ahead, the complicated conditions in the global economy will
continue. Given the persisting upgrade requirement in the electrical
household appliances industry, the Group will adjust its strategy in light of
the structure of market demand and customers’ needs for upgrading in a
timely manner. Meanwhile, we will enhance pioneering research based on
the technological development trends of the industry and product features,
and capitalise on market opportunities to take the initiatives to maintain
our leading position in the industry. We are committed to becoming
one of the world’s best suppliers of motors for electrical household
appliances, efficient and energy-saving motors and related solutions,
providing sustainable returns for shareholders, sound career development
opportunities for employees and greater value for the community.
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Zhou Xiangyang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Business Review
Financial Results

The Group’s profit attributable to the owners of the Company and
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
approximately HK$678,372,000 (2013: approximately HK$785,499,000)
and HK23.76 cents (2013: HK27.70 cents) respectively, representing a
decrease of 13.6% in profit compared to the same period last year. The
decrease was mainly attributable to a year-on-year increase in R&D costs
of approximately HK$33,668,000 (2013: approximately HK$10,337,000)
and impairment charge of development costs as previously capitalised
of approximately HK$37,880,000 (2013: Nil). During the year, Midea
Group Co., Ltd. (“Midea”) granted share options to the core management
members of the Group. Although the Group has no obligation to settle
the share-based payment transactions arising from such grants by
Midea, these share-based payments were recognised as expenses of
approximately HK$11,700,000 (2013: Nil) in the Group’s consolidated
income statement.

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2014
amounted to approximately HK$9,273,399,000 (2013: approximately
HK$8,881,723,000), representing a year-on-year growth of 4.4%. The
Group’s gross profit margin was 15.4% (2013: 16.0%). Net asset value
per share of the Group as at 31 December 2014 was HK$1.49 (2013:
HK$1.34).

Analysis of Major Business Operations

In 2014, the global economy continued to experience a slow recovery
and showed a slowdown in growth as a whole while the pace of growth in
different economies has become more diverse. The economy in the United
States continued to recover at a moderate pace; European economy
rebounded from the negative growth last year, and Japanese economy
suffered a setback. The economic downturn persisted in emerging
economies. China experienced a downturn in both domestic and overseas
demands in 2014, as well as the effect of real estate market adjustment.
Some macro indicators, such as the annual growth of gross domestic
product, have been moving downward. Both demand and supply showed
a slowdown in growth and a lack of growth momentum.
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The termination of certain favourable policies such as the subsidy program
for purchases of home appliances in rural areas and energy-saving subsidy
policy in China led to over consumption in the market and prolonged period
of sluggish growth in the property market. The white goods sector in China
faced a slowdown in growth and recorded a fairly flat performance in 2014,
while the market performance of various sub-divisions in the electrical
household appliances sector were highly contrasting. During the year, air-
conditioners products kicked off with an uptrend but the growth weakened
afterwards; the performance of refrigerators and washing machines was
sluggish during the year, while kitchen and bathroom products recorded
steady growth, with environmental-friendly products keeping its strong
momentum.

The electrical household appliances industry is in a phase of in-depth
adjustment. In view of a combination of favourable factors, including
accelerated urbanisation and rapid development of internet technologies
and logistics sector, the electrical household appliances market was
undergoing a structural change. Competition gradually shifted to integrated
strength with emphasis on products, technologies and operation models.
The focus of corporate strategy has been shifted from scale to efficiency. As
a result, enhancing efficiency and profits have become the main themes in
the industry.

1. Motor Business

In 2014, with the termination of energy-saving subsidy policy and
an increase in cost as a result of the implementation of annual
energy consumption efficiency standards in China, the overall
market capacity for air-conditioners remained relatively stable, while
the market for washing machines continued to experience slow
demand. In 2014, the total domestic and export sales of household
air-conditioners and central air-conditioners increased by 5.2%
and 12.3% year-on-year respectively, while the same of washing
machines and refrigerator compressors increased by 0.8% and 7.0%
year-on-year respectively. (Source: www.chinalOL.com)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s motor business
recorded a domestic sales volume of approximately 109,478,000
units and an export sales volume of approximately 31,661,000
units, with the aggregate sales volume increased by 12% compared
to the same period last year (of these, domestic and export sales
volume of motors for air-conditioners were 80,782,000 units and
15,829,000 units respectively, with the aggregate sales volume
increased by 16% compared to the same period last year. The
domestic and export sales volume of motors for washing machines
were 11,380,000 units and 13,781,000 units respectively, with the
aggregate sales volume slightly increased by 1% compared to the
same period last year). The Group’s turnover for 2014 amounted
to approximately HK$9,273,399,000 (including HK$5,384,026,000
from motors for air-conditioners and HK$2,681,642,000 from
motors for washing machines), representing an increase of 4.4%
as compared to a turnover of approximately HK$8,881,723,000
(including HK$4,979,943,000 from motors for air-conditioners and
HK$2,543,972,000 from motors for washing machines) for 2013.
As a result of the fall in commodity prices of raw materials, the
percentage of increase in sales revenue for the year was lower than
that of the percentage of sales volume. The Group recorded a profit
of approximately HK$678,372,000 in 2014 (2013: approximately
HK$785,499,000), representing a decrease of approximately
13.6%, which was mainly attributable to a year-on-year increase in
R&D costs of approximately HK$33,668,000 (2013: approximately
HK$10,337,000), and impairment charge of development costs
as previously capitalised of approximately HK$37,880,000 (2013:
Nil). During the year, Midea granted share options to the core
management members of the Group. Although the Group has no
obligation to settle the share-based payment transactions arising
from such grants by Midea, these share-based payments were
recognised as expenses of approximately HK$11,700,000 (2013: Nil)
in the Group’s consolidated income statement.

Welling Holding Limited | EZEZERERA R
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1.1

Motors for Air-Conditioners

Benefiting from the growth in sales originated from major
customers and further cooperation with overseas customers,
the sales volume of motors for air-conditioners increased by
16% compared to the same period last year. However, due
to the fall in commodity prices of raw materials, sales revenue
only recorded a year-on-year growth of 8%.

On brushless direct current motors, there were significant
breakthroughs in cooperation with leading domestic air-
conditioner players and Korean major customers, and
the Group has become a major supplier of Korean major
customers. The sales volume of commercial motors increased
by 7% compared to the same period last year through
closer cooperation with specialised central air-conditioner
manufacturers and exploring new businesses. The qualification
of commercial motors is certified by a new major customer
in North America and the first order will be delivered in 2015.
With increased efforts on marketing, the sales volume of
reactors increased by 18% compared to the same period last
year.

Meanwhile, the Group also achieved breakthroughs in
several production technologies, such as technologies on
high efficiency, low vibration and noise, high power density,
high reliability and constant air volume. We also launched
new generations of alternating current motors for indoor and
outdoor air-conditioners. Such new production lines have
commenced supply. At the “2014 China Household Electrical
Appliances Technical Conference”, our “Innovative Technology
for the Motors of Outdoor Air-conditioners” was honoured
with the “China Household Electrical Appliances Technology
Advancement Award”, the most prestigious award in the
field of R&D for electrical household appliances in China. We
became the first and the only motor manufacturer of electrical
household appliances to win the award since its launch, a
proof of our effort being well recognised by the industry.
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1.2 Motors for Washing Machines

As consumers were shifting to the new generation of washing
machines and with the influence of the industrial upgrade in
domestic market of washing machines, the product mix had
kept changing. Drum washing machines overrode wave-wheel
washing machines and became the mainstream product.
Boosted by this trend of market, sophistication of the washing
machines had been further developed, and penetration
of inverter washing machine motors had been increased
progressively, causing drum washing machines, inverter
washing machines with large capacity to dominate the market.
The sales volume and revenue of motors for washing machines
recorded a year-on-year growth of 1% and 5% respectively,
which were mainly attributable to the adjustment of product
mix which increased the proportion of sales of higher-priced
products.

Certain breakthroughs had been achieved in our cooperation
with domestic leading players and partners in America for the
wave-wheel motors, leading to a turnaround in the business
performance which had subsequently become stabilised.
While the series motors business maintained its high-end
market position, two types of new generation series motors will
commence supply in 2015. In respect of the inverter motors
for washing machines, with greater effort on the expansion
of the 3-phase variable frequency motors, the sales volume
increased by 83% compared to the same period last year. In
the division of direct current motors for washing machines,
the Group successfully developed the direct current brushless
motors integrated with the belt driven drum and the direct
current brushless motors integrated with the wave-wheel
electromagnetic clutch for load under 12 kg. Supply of direct
current brushless wave-wheel motors to domestic leading
players had already commenced.
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1.3 Other Products

With regard to other products, we commenced supply of the
electrical tool motors and entered into closer cooperation with
existing major customers. The sales volume of the booster
pumps for water purifiers witnessed significant growth through
enhanced cooperation and market expansion, increased by
303% year-on-year. We initiated strategic cooperation with
industry leaders for the fan direct current motors and had
commenced supply since year end of 2014.

In 2014, the Group further developed the customer orientation, focused
more on the product aspect, and stepped up our process towards precise
management. On R&D, we placed strong emphasis on original innovation
and technological advancement. There was no ceiling set for the investment
in R&D and human resources. We are committed towards the R&D and
transformation of products and gradually building up our capability for
product differentiation. Meanwhile, the Group strengthened the R&D
team’s market serving capability to actively reach customers. With regard
to its manufacturing technologies, the Group has significantly enhanced
its production efficiency and its lean production quality by introduction
of various projects such as special lean production project, technical
innovation project, industrial engineering project, and tremendous devotion
of automation equipment. With regard to supply chain management, we
altered the traditional cooperation strategy with suppliers by conducting
significant optimisation of the sources of supply and enlarging the scope of
management for suppliers. By sharing development with suppliers, strategic
cooperation with core suppliers was reinforced. In terms of quality control,
strict principles were implemented for quality control in production process
and execution of quality enhancement was strengthened. We worked on
successive improvement projects in order to sustain the improvement in
product quality and performance.
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Business of Associate

Shanxi Huaxiang Group Co., Ltd. (“Shanxi Huaxiang”, an associate
owned as to 49% by the Group) continued to step up corporate
reform and had driven the overall transformation and upgrading.
Shanxi Huaxiang achieved steady growth despite the depressing
engineering machinery market and the turmoil caused by the
restructuring in electrical household appliances industry in 2014.
Shanxi Huaxiang made substantial investment in the automation,
management reform, R&D on products, process optimisation
and integration of industrial chains from a strategic perspective,
and has currently set an integrated business platform comprising
several parallel divisions, including compressor parts, vehicle parts,
pipe valve electric parts, engineering machinery accessories and
mechanical processing, laying down a solid foundation for future
sustainable development.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, Shanxi Huaxiang recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$1,532,972,000 (2013: approximately
HK$1,409,240,000), representing a year-on-year growth of 9%.
The Group’s share of profit in Shanxi Huaxiang was approximately
HK$41,253,000 (2013: approximately HK$22,405,000), representing
a year-on-year growth of 84%. The increases in turnover and profit
were mainly driven by the improvement of internal management and
bottleneck of production lines, higher overall gross margin brought
by the adjustment of product mix, marginal effect of economy-of-
scale of its industrial park, as well as the cost reduction brought
by the cost-oriented reform and the implementation of horizontal
organisational structure.
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To conclude, the Group delivered 14% and 4% growth year-on-year in
sales volumes from domestic and overseas markets respectively for this
year. These were mainly due to positive effect from the growth in sales to
major domestic customers and substantial progress in the sales of certain
core products to the domestic and overseas customers. Adhering to the
strategic direction of “placing customers at our core and making quality
products”, the Group concentrated on the essential elements of operation
to achieve optimal operation conditions for the enterprise with concerted
efforts from our employees. Against the backdrop of transforming electrical
household appliances industry, customers will increasingly expect
enterprises to deliver better products and services. The Group will continue
to closely monitor the state’s policies and industry development, while
carrying on pioneering research and capitalising on market opportunities.
Timely adjustment will be made to its strategy and ongoing efforts will be
put on enhancing its corporate management to ensure the robust and
sustainable development of the Group.

Financial Review
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has maintained a healthy financial and liquidity position with a
current ratio of 166% as at 31 December 2014 (2013: 152%).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group was in a net cash position of
HK$1,931,761,000 (2013: HK$1,555,657,000), representing cash
and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$2,019,492,000 less total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$87,731,000, which would be due within one year.
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Financial Ratios

The following are certain financial ratios of the Group as at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position:

ML =R

TR AEBERNGEMBMAR AR 2ETHB

Pos

2014 2013
Inventories turnover (Note 1) FEFAE (M) 43 daysk 39 daysk
Trade receivables turnover (Note 2) B 5 WK EE A (M E2) 65 days kX 69 daysk
Trade payables turnover (Note 3) B 2 e A A (I FES) 72 daysk 67 daysk

Current ratio (Note 4) BN L (PI3E4)
Notes:
1. Inventories turnover is calculated based on the average of the opening inventories

and closing inventories divided by the cost of goods sold of the year, and multiplied
by the total number of days of the year.

2. Trade receivables turnover is calculated based on the average of the opening
and closing of trade receivables of third parties and related parties, divided by the
revenue of the year, and multiplied by the total number of days of the year.

3. Trade payables turnover is calculated based on the average of the opening and
closing of trade payables of third parties and related parties, divided by the cost of
goods sold of the year, and multiplied by the total number of days of the year.

4. Current ratio is calculated based on the year-end current assets divided by the year-
end current liabilities.

Pledge of Assets

No leasehold land and land use rights and property, plant and equipment
have been pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities as at 31
December 2014 and 20183.

Contingent Liabilities

Save as the financial guarantees as disclosed below, as at 31 December
2014 and 2013, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities.

Financial Guarantees

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has given guarantee to banks in
respect of the banking facilities extended to the associates of the Group of
approximately HK$986,183,000 (2013: approximately HK$942,508,000).
As at 31 December 2014, bank loans of approximately HK$423,374,000
(2013: approximately HK$613,076,000) being guaranteed by the Group to

associates have been drawn down.
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Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the capital expenditure of
the Group was approximately HK$243,811,000 (2013: approximately
HK$182,053,000) related to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment.

Derivative Financial Instruments

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s outstanding derivative financial
instrument assets and liabilities under various copper and aluminium
future contracts and foreign exchange forward contracts amounted to
approximately HK$25,975,000 and HK$16,601,000 respectively (2013:
derivative financial instrument assets and liabilities of approximately
HK$26,128,000 and HK$3,017,000 respectively).

Exposure to Exchange Rate Fluctuations

During the Year, approximately 31% of the Group’s turnover was derived
from export trading settled in Euro and US dollars. In the meantime, the
Group has also imported raw materials and equipment from the suppliers
which were paid in Euro and US dollars for settlement. As a result, foreign
exchange risks associated with these currencies were partially offset. On
the other hand, the Group has made arrangements to purchase foreign
exchange forward contracts to hedge against foreign exchange exposure
arising from export trading. The Group has stringent control over the risk of
exchange rate fluctuation, and will review from time to time the sufficiency
and appropriateness of the financial instruments which were currently used
to hedge significant foreign currency risks.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has contracted capital commitments
in respect of the purchase of property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately HK$196,928,000 (2013: approximately HK$98,268,000).
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Human Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed approximately 10,948
full time employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. While the Group was
supported by a team of young and competent staff, it does not ignore the
importance of the development, management and future planning of its
human resources. With the use of open recruitment, job rotation, internal
promotion and professional training for the recruitment, deployment and
nurture of employees, it is intended to ensure the selection and deployment
of employees to be carried out in an open, fair and equitable manner.
Besides, it could also provide staff with a platform for their promotion
and development. Through the implementation of comprehensive human
resources management, it is aimed at achieving the objectives of enhancing
employees contributions to the Group and shaping the Group’s strategic
advantages in human resources.

The Group has granted share options to employees as an incentive to
motivate its employees by linking their interests to the future development
and expansion of the Group. The Group currently provides employees with
competitive remuneration packages (comprising salary, bonus and benefits
in kind), adequate insurance cover (including pension, medical insurance,
unemployment compensation insurance, work injury compensation
insurance and maternity insurance) and housing provident fund. In addition,
the Group also provides its employees with other benefits including on-
the-job academic education, meal subsidy, housing subsidy, cooperative
medical scheme services, support fund and recreational activities, etc.
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Business Prospects

Looking ahead in 2015, it is expected that immediate recovery of the
global economy remains a remote possibility and its growth will continue
to struggle, whereas employment in the United States is picking up and
economy is gaining momentum with an anticipated stronger growth.
Euro zone economy remains vulnerable and is under threat of impending
deflation. Japan’s economic prospect is worrying and the recessionary
status is likely to last for sometimes. The pace of growth in the emerging
economies continues to slow down. Recently, the PRC Government
has lowered its 2015 growth target of domestic economy to about 7%
and announced the annual budget and policy. The economic growth is
stepped into deceleration and made downward adjustments to various
targets, such as inflation, currency and foreign trade, with policies focusing
on growth stabilisation and structural reform. It is expected that intense
demand-stimulating policy will not be introduced in the near future. In
this new economic condition characterised by slower growth, electrical
household appliance and related industry will face with immense difficulties
and challenges and the sector will become a high-end industry riding
on product upgrade. Accordingly, product structure, market structure
and business model will necessarily be changed. It is expected that the
electrical household appliances market will continue to record moderately
low growth. At the same time, it is expected that the commodity prices
of raw materials will stay at low level for a long period of time as various
institutions have recently adjusted downward the expected commodity
prices of raw materials for the year of 2015. The Group will closely monitor
the movements in the industry, actively capture any opportunities amid
difficulties, further promote product upgrade and market expansion in an
attempt to consolidate its leading position in the industry and realise its
predetermined business target.

With respect to our existing products under the motor segment, we will
concentrate on our customers’ demand and promote the sharing of
value chain, so as to achieve product and service upgrade for customers,
establish closer relationships with business partners, and at the same
time to actively seek opportunities for expansion within the industry and
accelerate our business growth.
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Motor Business

1.1

1.2

Motors for Air-Conditioners

It is unlikely that the difficult situation of high stockpile level,
lack of confidence in export pipelines and weakening demand
faced by the air-conditioner segment would improve visibly
in the near future. The Group will thus continue to focus on
the operation of alternating current motors and direct current
motors, actively secure the market share and reinforce the
market position, while expanding the supply capacity in peak
season for its alternating current motors and further enhancing
the compatibility development of new direct current motors
for its customers. On the other hand, the Group will step up
its efforts to enhance the development of commercial motors
and strengthen the cooperation with professional central air-
conditioner manufacturers, with a view to securing supply
orders for major North American customers. At the same time,
we will accelerate the expansion for commercial direct current
motors and commence supply to leading enterprises in China
and Korean major customers. By expanding the promotion
effort for reactors, it is expected to make a breakthrough in
respect of Japanese customers in 2015.

Motors for Washing Machines

Overall market capacity of the washing machine industry is
likely to remain stagnant in the future. It will undergo product
upgrade focusing on advanced technology, mass output and
high added value, and as a result the developed economies will
accelerate their process of shifting towards inverter washing
machines. The Group will sharpen the competitive edge of
its series motors and wave-wheel motors by strengthening
technology research and improvement of process techniques.
For series motors, the Group will enhance promotion of the
new generation series motors, so as to reinforce its leading
market position. For wave-wheel motors, the Group will
change the existing marketing strategy and actively gain
market share in China. For inverter washing machine motors,
the Group will strive to secure stable supply for these products,
deepen the early-stage cooperation with existing customers,
and accelerate the research and launch of new products.
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1.3 Other Products

The Group will continue intensifying its effort on promotion of
the air purifier motors, electrical tool motors and water purifier
booster pumps, so that a breakthrough might be achieved in
the domestic air purifier motors market. The Group will devote
more resources on market expansion for dishwasher pumps
in the United States and Europe, and the research of the new
generation induction pumps for dishwashers will be completed
in 2015. We will also strengthen our R&D effort for servo
motors, and accelerate the pace of its expansion. In addition
to relying on self expansion, the Group will actively seek for
industrial collaboration opportunities with respect to servo

motors, electrical tool motors and ventilator modules.

Business of Associate

Shanxi Huaxiang completed its relocation of casting facility, achieved
a remarkable breakthrough and enjoyed preliminary success at
early stage in respect of its strategic products in 2014. On this
basis, Shanxi Huaxiang will adhere to in-depth reform in order to
further enhance its competitive edge of its casting parts for air-
conditioner compressors and refrigerator compressors, and finalise
its market strategies for the components and parts of motor vehicles
and deployment strategies for mechanical processing in 2015.
Meanwhile, effort will be made to speed up the progress in the
automation of mechanical processing, laying a solid foundation for
future competition.

In the context of a general economic downturn being underway,
Shanxi Huaxiang will adhere to its business strategy focusing
on three major aspects “products, quality and customers” by
continuously enhancing its profitability, optimising internal production
flow, driving up operational efficiency, rationalising resources
allocation and focusing on asset earnings. Shanxi Huaxiang will also
continue introducing core strategies and technical talents with a view
to refining its portfolio of talent and providing continuous momentum

to drive its transformation.
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CORPORATE BUSINESS STRATEGIES

The pressure imposed by the changing macro-economic environment,
stagnant down-stream market and increasingly competition in the industry,
which generate a number of uncertainties for the operations of the
Company. In face of difficulties and challenges, the Group will adhere to its
key strategic development of “placing customers at our core and making
quality products”, while its internal operation will continue focusing on five
aspects, including “customer management, satisfaction enhancement,
technical innovation, lean production and rigid quality”. The Group will work
proactively to identify the underlying needs of customers, further enhance
its product planning system, and continue to strengthen its customer
management capability. We will strive for increasing customer satisfaction,
providing better products and services to customers and shortening its
response time. Moreover, segregation between R&D in technical aspects
and specification in product development, regular product upgrade for its
core products, enhancement of R&D team’s market serving capability, as
well as inspiration to technical innovation will be pursued and implemented.
The Group is devoted to continue improvement in product quality,
strengthening of the foundation of lean production, and enhancement of
production technique. The Group would continue to improve its production
efficiency through automation, technical innovation and intensive promotion
on industrial engineering. We will adhere to rigid quality execution and
strengthen the management of suppliers and output. The Group insists that
its manufacturing process to be solely based on “quality”. Manufacturing
quality and market performance of products will be closely monitored,
aiming to improve the product reliability. The Group will further polish
and refine its management system and enhance its corporate operation
management efficiency. We aim at strengthening our core professional
team by continuously recruiting personnel competent in strategy
formulation, technology and production technique, thereby securing our
long-term robust development.
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The Company has always endeavoured to achieve a high standard
of corporate governance so as to enhance the transparency and
accountability to the shareholders of the Company. The board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance
will contribute to maximise the corporate value of the Company to its
shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its corporate governance policies and
practices.

The Executive Committee of the Company was entrusted by the Board
with delegated authority to review the Company’s compliance with the
corporate governance practices. Having considered the review presented
by the Executive Committee, the Board confirmed that, save as disclosed
below, the Company had complied with all code provisions of the CG Code
during the Year.

The Company has deviated from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code in
that Mr. Zhou Xiangyang is both the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. Given Mr. Zhou Xiangyang has considerable experience in
sales, marketing and management of the business operations of the Group,
the Board believes that vesting the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same person facilitates the execution of the Group’s business
strategies and maximises the effectiveness of its operations. The Board
also considers that this situation will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the Company. This is
because the balance of power and authority is ensured by the operations
of the Board which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals with
demonstrated integrity. Further, decisions of the Board made by way of
majority voting. The Board will nevertheless review this structure from time
to time and will consider the segregation of the two roles at the appropriate
time.

In respect of code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, three Executive
Directors were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 30 May 2014 and an Independent Non-executive Director was
unable to attend the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
30 June 2014 due to other important business engagement.
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Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct of the Company for Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Year.

The Board

The Board is responsible for laying down the Group’s future development
direction, overall strategies and policies, the evaluation of the performance
of the Group and the management and approval of matters that are of
material and substantial in nature. Senior management of the Company
was delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Group.
Senior management of each division is responsible for different businesses
and functions of the Group in accordance with its particular area of
expertise. The Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees. Details of these Board committees are set out below in
this report.

The Board regularly reviewed the contribution required from a Director
to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and whether he/she
is spending sufficient time performing his/her duties. Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) are active in participating regular
Board meetings and other Board meetings for discussing and approving
significant issues of the Group so as to make an effective Board for a
timely strategic decision and to ensure the operations of the Group in line
with such strategies. Independent Non-executive Directors perform their
monitoring role and devote their time and effort to make contribution to the
development of strategies and internal control and risk management of the
Group.

For each of the Board meetings held during the year ended 31 December
2014, each Director had been consulted beforehand and served with
prior notice to enable him/her to include matters in the agenda of the
forthcoming Board meeting.
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The Board will hold four regular meetings every year at approximately
quarterly intervals. The Company generally gives at least 14 days notice
in advance for regular Board meetings and gives reasonable notice for all
other Board meetings in order to give all Directors opportunity to attend the
meetings. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company had
complied with the said notice requirements for Board meetings by giving
all Directors adequate time to plan their schedules to attend. All Directors
are active in participating the regular Board meetings, whether in person
or through telephone conference or video conference, to make an effort to
contribute to the affairs to be dealt with by Directors at the Board meetings.

All Directors could have accessed to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures are complied with the
applicable laws, rules and regulations and corporate governance practices
and policies.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings which shall record in sufficient detail the matters considered and
decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed at the meetings. For each of the Board meetings held
during the year ended 31 December 2014, draft and final versions of the
minutes of Board meetings were sent to all Directors within reasonable time
(generally within 14 days for both cases) after the Board meeting had been
held for their comments and records respectively. All Board minutes are
kept by the Company Secretary and open for inspection by all Directors at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice.

The Company’s corporate governance guidelines give all Directors the
rights, upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, and in such
circumstances, the Board shall resolve to provide separate independent
professional advice to the Directors to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with by a physical Board meeting but not a written resolution. Subject
to the exceptions set out in the Listing Rules, a Director shall not vote
on any Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any
other proposal in which he/she or any of his/her associates has a material
interest nor shall he/she be counted in the quorum present at the relevant
Board meeting.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors was arranged. The Board
will review regularly to ensure there is adequate insurance cover for the
Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Zhou Xiangyang has been taking up the dual role as Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Mr. Zhou is responsible for taking the lead of the Board in determining the
strategic direction of the Group, ensuring that all Directors are properly
briefed on business contemplated at Board meetings and receive timely,
adequate, complete and reliable information, good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established as well as managing a good
relationship and communication with shareholders. With the support of
other Executive Directors, Mr. Zhou is also responsible for implementation
of strategic planning of different business functions and day-to-day
management of business and operations of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Mr. Zhou held a meeting with
all Independent Non-executive Directors without the Executive Directors
present.

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprised of nine Directors, including
six Executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Xiangyang (Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer), Mr. Yu Yonghua, Mr. Luo Huagang, Mr. Zhong Lin, Ms. Yuan
Ligun and Mr. Li Feide and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Cao Zhoutao. Throughout
the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has complied with Rules
3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors (representing at least
one-third of the board) including at least one independent non-executive
director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The biographies of each of the Directors are set out in pages 47 to 51
in this annual report, which demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. Directors are advised to inform the Company
of any change to the number and nature of offices they held in public
companies or organisations and their other significant commitments in a
timely manner.
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The Directors have no financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationships with each other.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size, composition
and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
other qualities of Directors) of the Board and confirmed that the Company
has maintained a balanced composition with a strong independent element
on the Board.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are active in participating in
Board meetings to bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of
strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct. They will take the lead where potential conflicts
of interests of other Directors arise. They serve as members of various
Board committees and will scrutinise the performance of the Group in
achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives and monitor performance
reporting.

Mr. Lam Ming Yung has served the Board as an Independent Non-
executive Director for more than nine years. Given his professional
knowledge and experience and no connection with any Director or
substantial shareholder of the Company and their respective associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules), the Board considered that Mr. Lam is
independent despite of his long term service with the Company.

The annual confirmation of independence made by each of the three
Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules were received by the Company and reviewed by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee has assessed their
independence and confirmed that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are considered independent within the definitions of the Listing
Rules.

FEFHERAMENE X5 KESXEMEARL
1REAZ BE MR -

REZBEECRIEFTENRE /B  ANKkZ
TE(BBERRREZNMUR - Fik  EEHE
Bx o HELR R ARNEMEE) - AHER
AABCHEFEEENIEAS M RNBILITE -

BAFHITES

BYFRTESNEFTEERATEERE I A
B pLERS R RERE BHEU ER =
RRERBTEUNSEEEFL B A - WMEME
FHRBENDEHRE - WEMELES - REE
ITFAELEZEGKE  BEEEAREZRER
BNERHECELXENREE  RARTERESE
REAZHE -

MABREHEEFSBUIFRITEFRBIF - £
RENEEMBRER - BV EREEMERSAR
FIEERRRFEEIHEA(R LTRAZER)E
BiE - At BMERELERBARRNZF  EFE
TMEMSTE RBILAL -

ARBEREBEHBIIIFATEETSERBELTR

AIFE3A3GEMEH 2 FEBIMHERE - L HAE
FERESELEMN - REZESCHERE B

M ERERBEUIFNTESH EMRAFTESRK
BREBILIAL -

27

Annual Report 3 2014



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEA®RE

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”)
require that (i) every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and (i) the Managing Director of the Company (if any) shall whilst holding
office as such be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and shall be taken into account in determining the number of
Directors to retire by rotation in each year.

The Articles of Association provide that at every annual general meeting of
the Company, and notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which
a Director may be appointed or engaged, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that, notwithstanding anything therein, every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code,
any further re-appointment of an Independent Non-executive Director, who
has served the Board for more than nine years, will be subject to separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders of the Company. The Board
is of the view that such mechanism helps to ensure orderly succession to
the appointments to the Board and that changes to its composition can be
managed without undue disruption.

On 30 May 2014, the Company entered into letters of appointment with
Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Cao Zhoutao, each an
Independent Non-executive Directors, for a term commencing on 30
May 2014 and ending on the date of the Company’s next annual general
meeting.

All these letters of appointment shall be terminable by either party upon one
month’s written notice to the other party or the payment to other party of a
sum equal to the relevant Director’s monthly remuneration.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the nomination of new
Directors for appointment by the Board. Any nomination of Director will be
reviewed and discussed by the Nomination Committee on the nominee’s
qualifications, experience and ability relevant to the requirements of the
Company’s business.
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According to the Articles of Association, the Board has the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill
a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed
by the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting and shall be eligible for re-election but shall not be taken into
account in determining the number of Directors to retire by rotation at such
meeting.

The Nomination Committee has examined the terms of appointment
of Directors, and also reviewed and assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors and made recommendation to the
Board on the re-election of retiring Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Directors Continuous Training and Development
Programme

To ensure that every newly appointed Director has a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities as a Director of the Company under statute
and common law, each of the newly appointed Director will receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction and also the orientation
package containing the information with regard to the duties and
responsibilities of Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances
and relevant regulatory requirements and the business and corporate
governance policies of the Company.

Subsequently, updated information and continuous professional
development training will also be provided to all the Directors when
necessary to keep them abreast of the latest changes and development
in legal, regulatory and corporate governance requirements and develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. Besides of arranging formal training seminars for
the Directors, the Company Secretary will forward the latest news and
information about the Company published in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the requirements of the code provision set out in the CG Code,
all Directors have to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has put
in place on-going training and professional development programme for
Directors to help them discharge their duties. Directors are also required to
provide to the Company records of other training they received to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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During the Year, the Company organised an in-house seminar for the
Directors and senior management and invited the auditor of the Company
as the speaker to present to the Directors and senior management the
information with regard to the recent updates and case studies relating
to enterprise risk management and price sensitive information. Each of
the newly appointed Executive Directors during the Year, including Mr. Yu
Yonghua, Mr. Li Xianlu, Mr. Luo Huagang and Mr. Zhong Lin, has attended
a director induction seminar organised by the solicitor of distinguished law
firm.

Supply of and Access to Information

In connection with the convening of regular Board meetings and any
meeting of the Board committees, agenda of the meeting accompanying
with the relevant documents will be sent to all Directors or members of the
Board committee at least three days before the date of the Board meeting
or Board committee meeting.

Management has an obligation to supply the Board and the Board
committees with adequate information in a timely manner to enable
members of the Board and the Board committees to make informed
decisions. Where any Director requires more information than is volunteered
by management, each Director may contact senior management
through individual and independent channel(s) to make further enquires if
necessary and such enquiries will be responded to by management within
a reasonable time with sufficient details. Furthermore, minutes of Board
meetings or meetings of Board committees are open for inspection by
Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable notice given.

During the Year, all Directors have been provided, on a monthly basis, with
the updated management and financial information of the Group, giving
them an opportunity to have a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s latest performance, position, recent developments and
prospects in sufficient detail and facilitating them to discharge their duties
under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.
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Board Committees

The Board has established four Board committees with defined scope of
duties in written form. These Board committees are the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Executive Committee.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to obtain independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the expense of the
Company if they consider necessary.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 5 August 1999.
All members of the Audit Committee are Independent Non-executive
Directors, at least one of whom has possessed professional qualifications
and accounting and financial management related expertise.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Tan Jinsong (chairman of Audit Committee), Mr. Lam Ming
Yung and Ms. Cao Zhoutao.

The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other things, reviewing
and monitoring the integrity of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group, reviewing the effectiveness of the systems of internal control
and risk management of the Group, reviewing the findings from the works
carried out by internal audit department and monitoring the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal audit function. The Audit Committee is also
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor and approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor. Before commencement of annual
audit, the Audit Committee will discuss with the external auditor the nature
and scope of audit, the significant risk analysis and the impact of the
change in accounting policies on the financial statements of the Group. The
Audit Committee is required to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards.

The Audit Committee will liaise with the Board and senior management
regularly and meet at least twice a year with the Company’s external
auditor.
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Minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
who also serves as secretary of the Audit Committee. Draft and final
versions of the minutes of Audit Committee meetings are sent to all
members of the Committee for their comments and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting (usually within 14 days after the meeting).

The Audit Committee had performed the following works during the year
ended 31 December 2014 and up to 11 March 2015:

i) reviewed the Company’s 2013 annual report and the preliminary
announcement of final results;

(ii) reviewed the Company’s 2014 interim report and the preliminary
announcement of interim results;

(i)  approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor for 2014 audit and other matters;

(iv)  reviewed the 2014 internal control report prepared by the internal
audit department and reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system and risk management of the Group;

(v)  reviewed the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group during the Year;

(v)  acted as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor and reviewed and monitored the
external auditor’s independence and the non-audit services provided
by the external auditor;

(vi)  reviewed adequacy of resources, qualifications and experiences of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes;

(viii) advised on significant events of the Company and highlighted the
related risks to the management;

(ix)  reviewed arrangements for employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters and confirmed that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation of
these matters and for appropriate follow-up action; and
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(x) reviewed the Company’s 2014 annual report and the preliminary
announcement of final results.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2014 consolidated
financial statements, including the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor
and recommended to the Board for approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Board agreed with the Audit Committee’s proposal for the re-
appointment of Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s
external auditor for the year 2015. The recommendation will be put forward
for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s external Hong Kong auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers,
is set out as follows:

x)  BEARRR4FERENTEFEENE -

HEZZESCHRAANARINEZEMENAER
2014 IR IS IRE - REASERAZ g5 /RA
RBUR - WMEFEEZRIEEZE2014F12A318
I FEZIRAMERE

EEeREERRECRERENRERRRKES
SHAD R FT RN R RN 20165 2 SMNEZBIED - 22
AENARRZ EERFASFAKE LIRE TRER
JE©

HZE2014F12A31 B IEFE - MIARRINERBZ
YRR SR E SN ERET S 2B &M T

Fee paid/payable

et ERER
HK$’000
BT
Audit services, review of continuing connected transactions and ZER - BEIRHERERS - UK
issue letter on the working capital sufficiency and indebtedness PAEBEEE ST B MEFE
of the Group SUEE Y PR 2,966

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 22
September 2005. Chairman and majority of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Ms. Cao Zhoutao (chairman of Remuneration Committee), Mr.
Tan Jinsong and Mr. Lam Ming Yung and two Executive Directors, Mr.
Zhou Xiangyang and Mr. Luo Huagang (appointed on 3 June 2014 in place
of Mr. Jiang Deqing). The Company adopted the model set out in code
provision B.1.2(c)(i) of the CG Code as its Remuneration Committee model
under which the Remuneration Committee shall determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management.

HFMWEES

FEESHN2005F9A22HKY HMEE S » FMNE

YL EeRBHIRBUFRTEFTEMEL L
(FHZERLTR)  BHRELERMBABELE - LA
ReZTEERMG A MEEN T (R20145
BASHEZRE  MEBERBELE) - AAFRMAL
EEa<PRISFANESIEB 1 .2(c) () EFTE AR ES
HFMZEemER  BHEFMZBESERERSR
EFEENNTEERSRERABNFHGTE -
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include the followings:

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

to review and determine, with delegated responsibilities and
authorisation by the Board, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Independent Non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss of termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensative arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

to ensure that no Directors or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee had performed the following works during
the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to 11 March 2015:

(i)

34

reviewed the remuneration proposals for Executive Directors and
senior management with reference to the achievement of corporate
goals and objectives set by the Board;

approved the remuneration packages of Executive Directors (except

Mr. Zhou Xiangyang and Mr. Luo Huagang) and senior management
after consultations with the Chairman;
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(i) reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of Mr. Zhou

Xiangyang and Mr. Luo Huagang in a committee meeting at which
they abstained from voting in respect of the resolutions approving
their own remuneration package; and

(iv)  reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration and terms of appointment of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Company’s remuneration policy for Executive Directors and senior
management are set on the basis that the remuneration level of Executive
Directors and senior management will be linked with their responsibilities
and contributions to the achievement of corporate performance target
of the Company as resolved by the Board from time to time. For the
purpose of determining the level of remuneration of Executive Directors and
senior management, appraisal of the work performance of the Executive
Directors and senior management will be conducted annually at the end
of each year. Such work performance of Executive Directors and senior
management will be judged by the extent to which the Group’s budget
target is met and the financial performance of the Group. Proposals for
remuneration of Executive Directors and senior management will be
prepared by the Human Resources Department based on the relevant
remuneration data and prevailing market conditions and submitted to
the Remuneration Committee for consideration and approval. Director’s
fee payable to Independent Non-executive Directors shall be reviewed
annually by the Remuneration Committee with reference to the fees paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors and determined by the Board
after taking into account the recommendation made by the Remuneration
Committee. No Director or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration.

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2014 is set out below:

iy MZEEESHELFHRIERRGLERESE
Ml 2 HES - BRECERMEREERTH
BHFB 2 RBRFRERR : &

(v) FHBIIFRTERZHMEZEER LM
EFgRIMERER -

ARRHATEZLSRERABZHMBERE
TR EAE NS - BIMTTEERGREEAGZ
FEOKFERBREZBENEN TREEE M
HEZ ARERBRAEZERMERE - RETEHN
TEERSREEABZHHKE - SRESFFER
AERTEEREREEABZTHERR - 17E
EREREBABZABIERRGEBAEER
HEBZTMIZE - URARE M BREMEDL
HEr o AN EREBFIRBEREEHMEIE % B AT
MHFRITEENSRERABZHFMIR » Wik
REHEMEEGERIE - FNEEER2EREAR
BB - IARBBIIFNITE AN R
RNERE  SFRAENELIFNTESZES
e EEEFHZEENHEREAR  RAEFS
ETEHEFEHT EFHEMEBEATSLH
EEEAT ZHH -

BRECEEARTHEBISEK  SMEREAEHZ
201412 A31 B IEF EEH B 48 5l 2 1| &9 % Bl 20
—F :

Number of
individuals
Remuneration band (HK$) FHENAA B (GBEE) A
Nil to 3,000,000 = 23,000,000 3

Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

BE2014F12A3N B ILFE - EFEME ZFEHN
kR A TSR M RE26
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on 9 March
2012 with majority of its members being Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee shall be responsible mainly for
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board at least
annually, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee comprises five members including two
Executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Xiangyang (chairman of Nomination
Committee) and Mr. Luo Huagang (appointed on 3 June 2014 in place of
Mr. Jiang Deging) and three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Tan
Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Cao Zhoutao.

Minutes of the Nomination Committee meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary who also serves as secretary of the Nomination Committee.
Draft and final versions of the minutes of Nomination Committee meetings
are sent to all members of the Committee for their comments and records
within a reasonable time after the meeting (usually within 14 days after the
meeting).

The Nomination Committee had performed the following works during the
year ended 31 December 2014 and up to 11 March 2015:

i) considered and approved the recommendation to the Board of the
appointment of Executive Directors to fill the casual vacancies arisen
from the resignation of Executive Directors;

(i) formulated the nomination policy for appointment of Directors to be
submitted to the Board for approval;

(i) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and other qualities of
Directors) of the Board, the competences of Directors and the
balance between Executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors, and is of the view that there is an appropriate and diverse
mix of skills and experience;

(iv)  reviewed the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and confirmed that all Independent Non-executive Directors are
considered independent; and
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(v)  reviewed the profile and performance of Directors who will be subject
to re-election by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and recommended
to the Board the re-appointment of those retiring Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established by the Board on 18 April 2006.
As at 31 December 2014, the Executive Committee comprised of all
the Executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Xiangyang (chairman of the Executive
Committee), Mr. Yu Yonghua, Mr. Luo Huagang, Mr. Zhong Lin, Ms.
Yuan Ligun and Mr. Li Feide. Under its term of reference, the Executive
Committee shall be responsible for determining matters relating to the
Group’s day-to-day operations management and administration.

In addition to the daily management and administration functions, the
Executive Committee was delegated with the duties and responsibilities to
monitor and oversee the corporate governance functions of the Group.

The Executive Committee had performed the works relating to the
corporate governance functions of the Group as follows during the year
ended 31 December 2014 and up to 11 March 2015:

(i) reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(ii) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iy  reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) reviewed and monitored the code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v)  reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code contained in
the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

The attendance record of each of the Directors at the Board meetings,
Audit Committee meetings, Remuneration Committee meeting, Nomination
Committee meetings and general meetings of the Company held for the
year ended 31 December 2014 and the tenure of office of each individual
Director are set out in the following table:

EEHESRLE

REEHFEARARTEHE2014F12A31B L FERE
EREEETHHANBTHNESSSH  EXEE
eeR  FHZEeen  RAZESEHERE

REZEHFFBEN TR

Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Directors Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings Meetings
B EZeeE ENZES88R FMEESeER REZEEER REAS
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(PzE1) (MzE2)
Number of Meetings held SRBITRE 10 3 1 4 2
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Zhou Xiangyang ARGEE
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)  (EE#BFHTE) 1010 - 11 4/4 2/2
Mr. Yu Yonghua FRAGELE(FR20144F
(appointed on 15 January 2014) 1A15BEZRA) 99 - - - 2/9
Mr. Luo Huagang BEMEE(R20145
(appointed on 3 June 2014) 6A3REZRI) 6/6 - 11 11 11
Mr. Zhong Lin B (20144
(appointed on 21 October 2014) 10A21BEZ) 2/2 - - - -
Ms. Yuan Liqun (Note 3) wA B (F17E3) 710 - - - 12
Mr. Li Feide (Note 3) FRESEAE(FES) 8/10 - - - 1/2
Mr. Li Xianlu (appointed on 3 June 2014 ZERR 54 (7201445
and resigned on 21 October 2014) BASHEZRT TR
2014510821 BEHE) 3/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. Jiang Deging FEERE(R20145F
(resigned on 3 June 2014) (Note 3) 6A3EEHE) (i7E3) 3/4 - - 2/3 01
Mr. Li Yang FHRAE(R20146F
(resigned on 3 June 2014) 6A3BREIT) 3/4 - - - 11
Mr. Lu Xiaoji BB A (R2014F
(resigned on 15 January 2014) 1 A15BEHE) il - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTES
Mr. Tan Jinsong (Note 3) BN (FH17E3) 10110 3/3 171 4/4 1/2
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MEAB % & 1010 3/3 il 4/4 2/2
Ms. Cao Zhoutao ENEzL 1010 3/3 il 4/4 2/2

38 Welling Holding Limited | BEBi=RER A A



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EER®RE

Notes:

(1) For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board held four regular meetings and six
additional meetings.

2) For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company held two general meetings,
including the annual general meeting held on 30 May 2014 and the extraordinary general
meeting held on 30 June 2014.

©)) Ms. Yuan Ligun, Mr. Li Feide and Mr. Jiang Deqing, three Executive Directors were unable
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2014 and Mr. Tan
Jinsong, an Independent Non-executive Director was unable to attend the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 30 June 2014 due to other important business
engagement.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary has always been a full time employee who has
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The appointment of the Company
Secretary, Ms. Cheung Wai Yu, was approved by the Board on 21 October
2014. Ms. Cheung is also the Financial Controller of the Company. Ms.
Cheung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators in the United Kingdom.

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board
by ensuring good information flow within the Board and that the Board
policies and procedures are duly followed. She also acts as the secretary
of the Board committees to ensure that all records of meeting proceedings,
discussion and decision of such Board committees are properly kept.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board and is
responsible for facilitating the induction to be provided to newly appointed
Directors and continuous professional development training to be provided
to existing Directors and advising the Board through the Chairman on
corporate governance matters.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company Secretary has
completed at least 15 hours’ professional training by attending the
continuing professional development programmes as well as seminars
covering regulatory updates and professional knowledge about company
secretarial duties launched by professional bodies.

All Directors could have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Company which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The statements of the Directors and the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 71 to 72
of this annual report.

Disclosure of Long Term Basis for Generating
or Preserving Business Value

An analysis of the Group’s corporate strategy and long term business
model adopted for delivering the objectives of the Company is set out in
the Management Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate and effective internal
control system in the Company and reviewing its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee. The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement,
fraud or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure in
achieving the Company’s objective.

The internal control system, which includes a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority, is designed to (a) help the
achievement of business objectives, and safeguard the Company’s assets;
(b) ensure proper maintenance of accounting records; and (c) ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

Management and internal audit department regularly review the Group’s
internal control system which covers financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions to ensure that it remains
efficient and effective.
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The Company has a full set of Internal Control System Manual (the “Manual”)
which was approved by the Board. The Manual contains a comprehensive
overview and description of the objectives, content, methods and duties
of the internal control system, and facilitates the ongoing examination and
evaluation of the Company’s compliance with existing rules and regulations
and of the effectiveness of internal controls. During the year ended 31
December 2014 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
consistently applied the full set of Manual which covers the control of
high-risk areas of operations, suppliers, sales, finance and personnel
management. The Board has, through the Audit Committee, carried out
ongoing examination and monitoring of the Group’s internal control system.

During the Year, the Group based on the internal audit findings and
improvement plans submitted by the internal audit department to the Audit
Committee continued to enhance and improve the internal control system
of the Group.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system and believes that, such system is sufficient
to provide reasonable assurances that the Group’s assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition, transactions are properly
authorised and proper accounting records are maintained. The Board
has reviewed and considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function are adequate.
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Shareholders’s Rights

The Company has only one class of shares, all holders of the ordinary
shares in the issued share capital of the Company shall have the same
rights.

1. Rights and procedures for shareholders to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (the
“EGM”):

Shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right
to vote on the resolution at general meetings of the Company can
request the Board to convene an EGM pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”). The written requisition must state the objects of the
EGM and must be signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and
deposited at the Company’s registered office at Suite 3904, 39/F,
Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, 9 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary in
hard copy form or in electronic form.

Upon receipt of the notice of requisition to convene an EGM, the
share registrar of the Company will first verify the validity of the
requisition. If the requisition is confirmed in order, the Company
Secretary will promptly arrange with the Board to convene an EGM
by serving sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders of the
Company in accordance with the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements. Otherwise, if the requisition is verified not in order,
the requisitionists will be advised accordingly and no EGM will be
convened as requested.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene an EGM for a
day not more than twenty-eight (28) days after the date on which the
notice convening the EGM is given, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene an EGM, but any EGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three (3) months from the date
of requisition. Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists
by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to convene an EGM shall
be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.
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2. Rights and procedures for shareholders to

make proposals at an annual general meeting:

Shareholders may make any proposals relating to the business of
the Company by sending such proposals to the Board through the
Company Secretary. For the requisition of a proposed resolution
to be moved or business to be dealt with at the annual general
meeting, shareholders are requested to follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance as below.

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, shareholders can submit
a written requisition to request the Company to (a) give to the
shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next annual general
meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to the
shareholders entitled to have notice of the annual general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting if they representing

(i) at least one-fortieth (2.5%) of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having a right to vote on the resolution at the
annual general meeting of the Company; or

(i) at least fifty (50) shareholders having a right to vote on the
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company.

Such a requisition must

(@  be signed by the requisitionists (which may be contained in
one document or in several documents in like form); and

(b)  be deposited at the Company’s registered office at Suite 3904,
39/F, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, 9 Canton Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic form
not less than six (6) weeks before the annual general meeting
in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or if
later, the time at which notice is given of that meeting.
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3. Procedures for shareholders to propose a

44

person for election as a Director:

Pursuant to Article 89 of the Articles of Association, no person, other
than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been given to the
Company provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such notices are given, shall be at least seven (7) days. The
period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no earlier than
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

Shareholder(s) who wish(es) to nominate a person for election as
a Director at a general meeting should deposit to the Company
Secretary (i) a notice in writing stating your intention to propose
a person to be elected as a Director at the general meeting; (ii)
the notice in writing of the willingness of the nominated person
to be elected as a Director; and (iii) the biographical details of the
nominated person as set out in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
within seven (7) days after the date of despatch of the notice of the
general meeting by the Company to all shareholders (or such other
period, being a period of not less than seven (7) days, as may be
determined and announced by the Directors of the Company from
time to time) to enable shareholders to make an informed decision
on their election.

Procedures for shareholders to send enquiries
to the Board:

Shareholders and other stakeholders may, at any time, send their
enquiries or concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary in writing by mail to the Company’s registered
address at Suite 3904, 39/F, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, 9
Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company
Secretary will forward the enquiries or concerns to the Chairman
of the Board or the chairman of the Board committees or senior
management as appropriate within their area of responsibilities for
handling.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board believes that general meeting can provide an open forum
for communication between the Board and the shareholders of the
Company. Shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings of
the Company and give valuable advice to the Company through this direct
communication platform. The Company will convene an annual general
meeting every year and convene any other general meetings as required.
Sufficient notice for annual general meeting and other general meetings will
be given to the shareholders in compliance with the requirements of the
Articles of Association, the Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.
The Chairman of the Board will attend annual general meeting and invite
the chairman of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and other Board Committees, in their absence, other members
of these Board Committees, to attend annual general meeting. They will
be available to answer questions raised by shareholders at annual general
meeting. The chairman or other members of the independent board
committee (if any) will be available to answer questions at any general
meeting to approve connected transaction or any other transaction that
requires independent shareholders’ approval. External auditors will be
invited to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of
the auditor’s report, accounting policies and auditor’s independence.

To facilitate enforcement of shareholders’ rights, substantially different
issues are dealt with under separate resolutions at general meetings of the
Company.

Annual and interim reports and any significant events of the Company fall
to be disclosed in accordance with the disclosure requirements under the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements will be published
in a timely manner through the Company’s website so as to safeguard the
shareholders’ rights of information.
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The Company’s website at http://www.welling.com.cn provides timely and
updated information on investor relations, corporate governance and other
latest news of the Company to enable shareholders and investors to have
timely access to information about the Group.

The investor relations department of the Company is responsible for
handling the communications with our investors, it will regularly organise
road shows and one-on-one meetings with institutional investors and
financial analyst to promote better understanding of the Company and
keep continuous dialogues with professional investors.

The Company has established the shareholders communication policy
which is available on the website of the Company.

Constitutional Documents

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the Year. The Company has proposed to adopt a new set of Articles
of Association at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
29 May 2015.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. ZHOU Xiangyang, aged 42, was appointed as an Executive Director,
the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
the Executive Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company since 12 December 2012 and re-designated as the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 15 January 2014. Mr. Zhou
joined the Group in July 1996. Mr. Zhou is the General Manager of the
Group. He has held various senior management positions in the Group
and has considerable experience in sales, marketing and management
of the business operations of the Group. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Zhou holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical
Engineering from Harbin Institute of Technology and an Executive Master
of Business Administration Degree (EMBA) from the Guanghua School of
Management of Peking University.

Mr. YU Yonghua, aged 36, was appointed as an Executive Director,
the Chief Financial Officer, a member of the Executive Committee and
an authorised representative of the Company since 15 January 2014.
Mr. Yu joined Midea Group in 2002. He held various senior and middle
management positions in Midea Group and has extensive experience in
financial planning, accounting and auditing, costing management and fund
management. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Yu holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Sichuan
University. He is an accountant accredited by the Ministry of Personnel
People’s Republic of China.

Mr. LUO Huagang, aged 38, was appointed as an Executive Director,
a member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Executive Committee of the Company since 3 June 2014. Mr. Luo joined
Midea Group in 2001. He held various senior and middle management
positions in Midea Group and has extensive experience in business
development, customer service, sales management, operations, human
resources and strategic management. He is the director of operations and
human resources department and also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Luo holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from Guangdong University of Technology.
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Mr. ZHONG Lin, aged 35, was appointed as an Executive Director and
a member of the Executive Committee of the Company since 21 October
2014. Mr. Zhong joined Midea Group in July 2000. He held various senior
management positions in Midea Group and has extensive experience in
production management, purchasing and supply chain management.
He is the director of production centre and also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Zhong holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Nanjing University. He was awarded the international
certificate in purchasing and supply chain management by International
Trade Centre.

Ms. YUAN Liqun, aged 45, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 17 November 2004 and re-designated as an Executive
Director of the Company on 4 January 2007. Ms. Yuan is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. She is also a director of a subsidiary
of the Group. She joined Midea Group in 1992. She has held various senior
management positions in Midea Group and has considerable experience
in finance, audit and overall management. Ms. Yuan is a director and vice-
president of Midea Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange), the chief financial officer of Midea Group and the
chairman of Midea Group Finance Co., Ltd. She was a director and the
supervisor of GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd. (the shares of which were de-
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 18 September 2013 and this
company was de-registered on 19 December 2013). Ms. Yuan holds a
Master of International Management Degree from The Australian National
University.

Mr. LI Feide, aged 37, was appointed as an Executive Director and a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company since 12 December
2012. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Li joined Midea
Group in July 1999. Mr. Li is a director, vice-president and chief officer
of the strategic development department of Midea Group Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Li was the manager
of planning and investment department and the associate director of
strategic development department of Midea Group. He was also a director
and the board secretary of GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd. (the shares of which
were de-listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 18 September 2013
and this company was de-registered on 19 December 2013) and a director
of Wuxi Little Swan Holding Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange). Mr. Li holds a Bachelor’'s Degree of Mechanical
Engineering and Automation and a Bachelor’s Degree of Financial
Management and Economics from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology and an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree
(EMBA) from the Sun Yat-sen University.
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Mr. TAN Jinsong, aged 50, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 1 August 2009. Mr. Tan is
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He was
approved as a PRC registered accountant in June 1995 and has become
a non-practicing member of the Guangdong Provincial Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since January 2003. He possesses over 29 years of
experience in the profession of accounting and financial management. Mr.
Tan is currently a professor of the School of Management of Sun Yat-sen
University and was the Head of Department of the Faculty of Accountancy
and the Vice Dean of the School of Management of Sun Yat-sen University.

Mr. Tan is an independent director of Guangzhou Hengyun Enterprises
Holding Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange),
Grandhope Biotech Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the ChiNext of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange), Poly Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and China Southern Airlines
Company Limited (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the New York Stock Exchange).

Mr. Tan was an independent director of a number of PRC listed companies,
including Cosco Shipping Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, and Yihua Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Sundiro Holding Co.,
Ltd., which companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. LAM Ming Yung, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 1 December 1999. Mr. Lam is
a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He graduated from the School
of Law of Shanghai Eastern Chinese College of Politics and Jurisprudence
with a Bachelor of Law Degree in 1986. Mr. Lam started practicing law
in 1987 in the province of Fujian in the PRC, and moved to Hong Kong in
mid-1998. He was registered as a foreign lawyer with The Law Society of
Hong Kong in July 1995, and is now practicing as Chief PRC Consultant,
Corporate Finance, and Foreign Legal Consultant (PRC), in the Hong Kong
office of Sidley Austin LLP.

Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director of China Lifestyle Food
& Beverages Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of
Singapore.
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Ms. CAO Zhoutao, aged 43, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 21 October 2013. Ms. Cao is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. She is
an associate professor of School of Business Administration of South
China University of Technology. She has extensive experience in human
resources, organisation behavior, financial management and accounting.
Ms. Cao holds a Bachelor of Engineering Degree in Management
Engineering from Chongging Industrial Management School, a Master
of Engineering Degree in Management Engineering and a Doctor of
Management Degree in Management Science and Engineering from South
China University of Technology. She is a certified public accountant of
China.

Ms. Cao is an independent director of Guangzhou Zhujiang Brewery
Co., Ltd. and Vtron Technologies Ltd. (both companies are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

Biographical Details of Senior Management

Mr. WANG Hongxiao, aged 40, joined the Group in September 1999. Mr.
Wang is the officer of research and development centre of the Group. He
has held various senior and middle management positions in the Group and
is familiar with the production process and integrated management of the
Group’s principal motor business. He has been in charge of various jobs
relating to the development of new products. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Electrical Engineering from Harbin Institute of Technology.

Mr. FU Ping, aged 37, joined the Group in November 2000. Mr. Fu is
the general manager of marketing company of the Group. He has held
various senior and middle management positions in the Group including
the associate sales director of motors for air-conditioners, the director of
export sales and the deputy general manager of marketing company. Mr.
Fu has extensive experience in the Group’s businesses in sales, strategic
marketing and sales management. Mr. Fu graduated from Zhengzhou
University of Light Industry with professional qualifications in motors and
electrical engineering (electrical household appliances).

50

Welling Holding Limited | EZEZERERA R

EMB &L 0 4357 0 B2013F10A21BEERTA
RARBMIERNITES - BELLAARAFHINEZE
TEXF  BREZESRIEREESELE - HRAE
METIAZIREESRABE - BRANERE
B AKBITAS  MBEERSHEIREELE
REe BT EEF T EEERERIRIE
B EFREIASTEIRISEITEGR
EERERTRERSH LTSN - HATEFMY
SHAM

W&+ RN TR AR A IR A SRR SR AR
MBHRA AR A F(ARA AR RYBEEZ S
BT -

SREEAERERE

FoRBELLE - 405% 0 H1999FO A MBI AREE - £
SEAAREBMERLEML - HRAERE L ILEIE

EZETFSREREMU  ABARENTEERE
BHEEHRREAEE HEEZERZHMEM

MR - TAERBERBRETRARSEEDN

BREXTRBTBM -

BRKE - 3755 2000911 AINEALERE - £
ERAEBITIHARBLIE - FRAEBE G LEE
EAERITHBBE  BIMTIHRERITHAR]
BlEgESEZ AT REERRBM - FAEEAER
EBHHEE  MIGREHERTHEEFAEAY
B FREREREMNE TXS  HAEK
HER(RAER)EXEE -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEBEE

Mr. HUANG Lijun, aged 40, joined the Group in March 2005. Mr. Huang is
the director of quality control department of the Group. Mr. Huang served
in various senior and middle management positions in the Group’s research
and development and production management. He has considerable
experience in the research and development, production process,
engineering technique and quality control of the Group’s principal motor
products. Mr. Huang holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Mechanical Design,
Manufacturing and Automation from Ningxia University.

On 12 January 2015, Mr. Huang resigned as the director of quality control
department of the Group due to the new work deployment made by Midea
Group.

Mr. LU Jihuang, aged 46, joined the Group in January 2015. Mr. Lu is
the director of quality control department of the Group. He served as a
senior manager of quality control in one of the world’s pioneering motor
manufacturing companies for almost twenty years and has considerable
experience in the field of quality control. Mr. Lu holds a Master of Electrical
Engineering Degree from Southeast University.
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The Directors hereby present this report of the Directors and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis
of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Final Results

The final results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 76.

Dividend

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK7.5
cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
HK8.5 cents). Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company
at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 29 May 2015
(the *“AGM”), the proposed final dividend will be paid on or about 18 June
2015 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 9 June 2015.

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of ascertaining the shareholders’ rights of attending and
voting at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 26 May 2015 to 29 May 2015, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares shall be effected. In order to be entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the share registrar of the Company,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Rooms 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 22 May 2015.
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For the purpose of determining the identity of shareholders who are entitled
to the proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from 8 June 2015 to 9 June 2015, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares shall be effected. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the share registrar of the Company,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Rooms 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5 June 2015.

Reserves

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had distributable reserves
amounting to HK$276,476,000 (2013: HK$246,984,000).

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, restated and reclassified as appropriate,
is set out on page 188. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.
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Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme adopted on 27 June 2003 (the “2003 Share
Option Scheme”) was terminated on 30 May 2013 and a new share
option scheme (the “2013 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholders of the Company at the Company’s annual general meeting
held on 30 May 2013.

Details of the 2003 Share Option Scheme and the 2013 Share Option
Scheme are disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. ZHOU Xiangyang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated on 15 January 2014)
Mr. YU Yonghua
(appointed on 15 January 2014)
Mr. LUO Huagang
(appointed on 3 June 2014)
Mr. ZHONG Lin
(appointed on 21 October 2014)
Ms. YUAN Ligun
Mr. LI Feide
Mr. LI Xianlu
(appointed on 3 June 2014 and resigned on 21 October 2014)
Mr. JIANG Deqing
(resigned on 3 June 2014)
Mr. LI Yang
(resigned on 3 June 2014)
Mr. LU Xiaoji
(resigned on 15 January 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TAN Jinsong

Mr. LAM Ming Yung
Ms. CAO Zhoutao
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In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Luo Huagang and Mr. Zhong Lin, who were appointed by the Board to fill
casual vacancies during the Year, will retire at the AGM and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with Article 91 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Li Feide, Mr. Tan Jinsong and Ms. Cao Zhoutao will retire by rotation at the
AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Directors’ Service Contracts

On 30 May 2014, the Company entered into letters of appointment with
Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Cao Zhoutao, each an
Independent Non-executive Directors, for a term commencing on 30 May
2014 and ending on the date of the AGM.

The above-mentioned letters of appointment provide that the remuneration
of the Directors shall be determined in accordance with the remuneration
policy as approved by the Board from time to time. Such letters of
appointment are terminable by either party upon one month’s written notice
given to the other party or the payment of a sum equal to the relevant
Director’s monthly remuneration made to the other party. These letters
of appointment are exempt from the shareholders’ approval requirement
under Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without the payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has submitted to the
Company the annual confirmation of independence for the year ended
31 December 2014. Nomination Committee has reviewed such annual
confirmation of independence and assessed the independence of each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors based on the guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered that all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent. The Board adopted the view of
the Nomination Committee and confirmed that all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.
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Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the principles that the
remuneration packages of employees should be determined based on
the job duties, responsibilities, work performance, qualifications and
competence of each individual employee, performance of the Group and
the prevailing market and economic conditions in order to attract and retain
high-calibre employees needed to run the Company successfully.

The remuneration packages of Executive Directors and senior management
of the Company are reviewed annually and determined by the Remuneration
Committee based on the duties, responsibilities of each individual Executive
Director and senior management staff, performance of the Group and
the remuneration packages paid by comparable companies in the same
industry based on the prevailing market conditions. No Director or any of
his/her associates will be involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
Remuneration of Independent Non-executive Directors will be reviewed
annually and recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board
for final approval.

After the termination of the 2003 Share Option Scheme on 30 May 2013,
the Company has adopted the 2013 Share Option Scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives to stimulate the Directors of the Company and
eligible employees of the Group.

Pension Schemes

Details of the pension schemes operated by the Group are set out in Note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 47 to 51.
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Disclosure of Interests

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code adopted by the Company contained in the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were
as follows:

Interests in Share Options of the Company

Movements of the share options granted to the Directors under the 2003
Share Option Scheme during the Year were as follows:
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Balance Balance
as at Exercised Lapsed as at
Date of Exercise Exercisable 1 January during during 31 December
Name grant price period 2014 the Year the Year 2014
20145 R20145
1818 REFE RAEFE 12A31H
e Fi B T8 T8 2R 2171 BAX iR
HK$
ks
(Note 1)
(Pfi5E1)
Directors
B
Mr. Zhou Xiangyang 09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010 - 5,400,000 (5,400,000) - -
Elalpids 31/03/2017
Mr. Lam Ming Yung 30/07/2007 3.900 30/07/2007 - 400,000 - - 400,000
MERELE 29/07/2017
09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010 - 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - -
31/03/2017
Mr. Jiang Deqing 09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010 - 5,400,000 (5,400,000) - -
(resigned on 31/03/2017
3 June 2014)
(R2014F6 A3HET)
Ms. Chen Chunhua 30/07/2007 3.900 30/07/2007 - 400,000 - (400,000) -
(resigned on 29/07/2017 (Note 2)
21 October 2013) (Pf&E2)
BREELT

(FA2013F10 21 BHEHT)
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Notes:

1. The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the
date on which the share options were exercised was HK$2.2.

2. Ms. Chen Chunhua resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 21 October 2013. She was interested in 400,000 share options, which were granted
on 30 July 2007 under the 2003 Share Option Scheme of the Company, entitling her to
subscribe for 400,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$3.9 per share,
were lapsed on 21 April 2014.

Details of the 2003 Share Option Scheme are disclosed in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company
or subsidiary a party to any arrangements which enabled any Director to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or of any other body corporate.

Apart from the above, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2014, any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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Interests and Short Positions of Shareholders

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, as at
31 December 2014, shareholders (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions of Substantial Shareholders in the Shares of the

Company

BREREERAXR

FERFRARGRDZIE

RARREMEEHESTRAEMA © R20145F
127318 - RARRRM HERERD P HERIEE
H KRB EPIEXVERE 2 K37 B SUAM AR R4
B - HERAARRRARIEEH M B GDIF 33615
FEZECMzERRR ZBR (AR R EERK
BITBABRRINGT

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held shareholding
BREEEH 51 FriERE B REMNB DL
Midea Holding (Cayman Islands) Limited Beneficial owner 1,901,204,779 66.43%
(“Midea (Cayman Islands)”) (Note 1)
EER(FA=2S)ARAA BEmEAA
(T (FA=HS) DD
Midea Investment Holding (BVI) Limited Interests of a controlled 1,901,204,779 66.43%
(“Midea Holding (BVI)”) (Note 2) corporation
EHFZERRBV)VER A A R EE S
([EmREREBVH]) (FiFE2)
Midea Group Co., Ltd. (“Midea”) (Note 3) Interests of controlled 1,965,702,779 68.68%
corporations
ErEERGOARLE(EH ) (FHEE3) R EE
Midea Holding Co., Ltd. (“Midea Holding”) (Note 4) Interests of controlled 1,965,702,779 68.68%
corporations
EERAR AR ([ Er9iERk ) (FiiFE4) R EE S
Mr. He Xiangjian (Note 5) Interests of controlled 1,965,702,779 68.68%

A F i (M 5E5)

corporations
XL E RS
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Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held shareholding

BREEE A 54 FERHEE REMAN B

Value Partners Limited (Note 6) Investment manager 171,656,000 6.00%

HIEES BB AR (MFE6) RERE

Value Partners Hong Kong Limited (Note 6) Interests of a controlled 171,656,000 6.00%
corporation

FIRESEREBERAT(MIEES6) R xR

Value Partners Group Limited (Note 6) Interests of a controlled 171,656,000 6.00%
corporation

HEEEARAR(FIE6) R EE R

Cheah Capital Management Limited (Note 6) Interests of a controlled 171,656,000 6.00%
corporation

Cheah Capital Management Limited (Ff:6) SR A E

Cheah Company Limited (Note 6) Interests of a controlled 171,656,000 6.00%
corporation

Cheah Company Limited(#f:£6) S A E s

BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company Limited (Note 6)  Nominee of BNP Paribas 171,656,000 6.00%
Jersey Trust Corporation
Limited

BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company Limited(Ff{5=6)  BNP Paribas Jersey Trust
Corporation Limited
HREA

BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited (Note 6) Trustee of The C H Cheah 171,656,000 6.00%
Family Trust

BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited(Ff5£6) The C H Cheah Family
TrustBI S FEA

Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye (Note 6) Founder of a discretionary 171,656,000 6.00%
trust

A8 & A (HE6) ZREEFEHAIA

Ms. To Hau Yin (Note 6) Interests of spouse 171,656,000 6.00%

M9 22+ (Hi56)

IiatEa
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Notes:

These 1,901,204,779 shares of the Company were registered in the name of and
beneficially owned by Midea (Cayman Islands).

Midea Holding (BVI) was deemed to be interested in the 1,901,204,779 shares of the
Company in which Midea (Cayman Islands) was interested by virtue of its holding 100%
equity interest in Midea (Cayman Islands).

There were 64,498,000 shares of the Company registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Midea International Corporation Company Limited (“Midea International”) which
is a company owned as to 100% by Midea. Midea Holding (BVI) is also a company owned
as to 100% by Midea. Accordingly, Midea was deemed to be interested in the aggregate
of 1,965,702,779 shares of the Company including 64,498,000 shares in which Midea
International was interested and 1,901,204,779 shares in which Midea Holding (BVI)
was deemed to be interested by virtue of its holding 100% equity interest in both Midea
International and Midea Holding (BVI).

The registered capital of Midea is owned as to 35.49% by Midea Holding. Accordingly,
Midea Holding was deemed to be interested in the aggregate number of 1,965,702,779
shares of the Company in which Midea was deemed to be interested by virtue of its
holding 35.49% equity interest in Midea.

The registered capital of Midea Holding is owned as to 94.55% by Mr. He Xiangjian.
Accordingly, Mr. He Xiangjian was deemed to be interested in the aggregate number
of 1,965,702,779 shares of the Company in which Midea Holding was deemed to be
interested by virtue of his holding 94.55% equity interest in Midea Holding.

These 171,656,000 shares of the Company were registered in the name of Value Partners
Limited which is wholly-owned by Value Partners Hong Kong Limited which in turn is
wholly-owned by Value Partners Group Limited which in turn is held as to 28.47% by
Cheah Capital Management Limited. The entire issued share capital of Cheah Capital
Management Limited is held by Cheah Company Limited, whose entire issued share
capital is held by BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company Limited in its capacity as
nominee of BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited which in turn is held by BNP
Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited in its capacity as trustee of The C H Cheah
Family Trust with Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye as the founder of the trust. Under the SFO, Value
Partners Hong Kong Limited, Value Partners Group Limited, Cheah Capital Management
Limited, Cheah Company Limited, BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company Limited, BNP
Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited, Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye and Ms. To Hau Yin
(as spouse of Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye) are all deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Value Partners Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Company had not

been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executives of the

Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying

shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which

were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors was interested in any
business apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with that of the Group.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers together accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s total sales during the Year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers together accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchase during the Year.

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected
Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following connected transaction and
continuing connected transactions which were disclosed by published

announcements:
Continuing Connected Transactions

1. On 19 April 2012, GD Welling entered into a financial services
framework (renewal) agreement (the “Financial Services Framework
(Renewal) Agreement”) with Midea Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Finance
Company”, a subsidiary of Midea which is the controlling shareholder
of the Company) to (i) revise the annual caps for the year ended 31
December 2012 in respect of the core financial services (including
deposit, loan, bills discounting, bills acceptance, guarantee and
foreign exchange services) provided under the previous financial
services framework agreement dated 13 April 2010 (the “Financial
Services Framework Agreement”); and (i) extend the term of the
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Financial Services Framework Agreement for two more years to 31
December 2014 and set the new annual caps of the aforesaid core
financial services for the two years ended 31 December 2014 in
order to fulfill its business requirements. Details of the transactions
are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 19 April 2012
and circular dated 11 May 2012.

The Financial Services Framework (Renewal) Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder (including the revised and new
annual caps of the aforesaid core financial services) were approved
by the then independent shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2012.

On 23 January 2013, the Company, GD Welling and the Finance
Company entered into a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) to amend the terms of the Financial Services
Framework (Renewal) Agreement by adding the subsidiaries of the
Company incorporated in the PRC (other than those subsidiaries
of the Company held by GD Welling) as additional users to use the
financial services to be provided by the Finance Company under
the Financial Services Framework (Renewal) Agreement. Details
of the Supplemental Agreement are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement published on 23 January 2013.

On 29 April 2013, the Company entered into a purchase framework
agreement (the “ZS Framework Agreement”) with Zhejiang
Shangfeng Industrial Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Shangfeng”, a
company controlled by Mr. He Jianfeng who is the son of Mr. He
Xiangjian, the controlling shareholder of Midea) which set out the
basis for the purchase of raw materials by the Group from Zhejiang
Shangfeng, its subsidiaries and associates (“ZS Group”) and the
annual caps of transaction amount for the three years ending 31
December 2015. Details of the transactions are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 April 2013 and circular dated
14 May 2013.
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The ZS Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder (including the annual caps of the aforesaid purchase of
raw materials) were approved by the then independent shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 30 May 2013.

On 29 April 2013, the Company and Midea entered into a renewed
Midea framework agreement (the “Renewed Midea Framework
Agreement”) to set out the terms, and the new annual caps for the
sale of motors and electronic and electrical components for electrical
household appliances and raw materials by the Group to Midea
Group and the purchase of raw materials, processed raw materials
and motor samples by the Group from Midea Group for the three
years ending 31 December 2016. Details of the transactions are
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 29 April 2013 and
circular dated 14 May 2013.

The Renewed Midea Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the new annual caps of the
aforesaid sale and purchase) were approved by the then independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 30 May 2013.

On 27 September 2013, the Company entered into an agreement
in relation to the intra group financial services (the “Intra Group
Financial Services Agreement”) with Midea International Corporation
Company Limited (“Midea International”, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Midea) which set out the basis for the provision of deposit services
and settlement and similar services by Midea International to the
Company and its subsidiaries outside the PRC and the annual
caps of transaction amount for a fixed term commencing on 27
September 2013 and ending on 31 December 2015. The Intra Group
Financial Services Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of the Intra Group Financial Services Agreement are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 27 September 2013.
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5. On 28 June 2014, the Company entered into a new logistic
service agreement (the “New Logistic Service Agreement”) with
Annto Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Annto”, a subsidiary of Midea) to (i)
revise the annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2014 in
respect of the logistic service fees payable under the previous
logistic service agreement dated 11 January 2013 (the “Logistic
Service Agreement”); and (i) extend the term of the Logistic Service
Agreement for two more years to 31 December 2016 and set the
new annual caps of the aforesaid logistic service for a term of two
years ending 31 December 2016 in order to fulfill the operation needs
of the Group.

The New Logistic Service Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the revised and new annual caps
of the aforesaid logistic service) were exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the New Logistic Service Agreement are disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 23 June 2014.

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected
Transactions

On 17 April 2014, the Company entered into a financial services framework
(renewal) agreement (the “2014 Financial Services Framework (Renewal)
Agreement”) with the Finance Company to set out the terms, and the
annual caps in respect of the core financial services (including deposit, loan
and financing, bills discounting, bills acceptance, foreign exchange and
guarantee services) for the three years ending 31 December 2017. Details
of the transactions are disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated
17 April 2014, 23 April 2014 and 14 May 2014 and circular dated 13 June
2014.

The 2014 Financial Services Framework (Renewal) Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder (including the annual caps of the
aforesaid core financial services) were approved by the then independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 30 June 2014. The 2014 Financial Services Framework
(Renewal) Agreement shall be effective from 1 January 2015.
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The following table sets out the transaction amount of each of the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions of the Group during the Year and the

relevant approved annual caps for 2014:

Transaction

TREF LAAEER A FERFEFEZHHR
SEEN2014FERILENARFE LR

amount for
the year ended Annual caps
Transactions 31 December 2014 for 2014
BZ2014F12A31HL 20145
R FENRZSHE FELR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARM®T T
Sale of motors and electronic and electric Fﬂ%ﬁ’\]ﬁ EHEXEERR 3,262,292 5,000,000
components for electrical household TEREMAREME
appliances and raw materials to Midea Group
Purchase of raw materials, processed REMEBRBERME - 80T 36,085 160,000
raw materials and motors samples from [ERRL R B AR
Midea Group
Purchase of raw materials from ZS Group AT _ERERRBERM R 113,246 400,000
Financial services provided by the Finance Company B 7 B3R #8115 ARG
- Deposit (daily maximum outstanding balances —FR(BEEAFENTEED 1,663,845 1,981,000
including accrued interest and handling fee) SFHEREER)
— Loan (daily maximum outstanding balances -~ ER(DREEFFIBERFEEN 5,011 1,442,000
including accrued interest and handling fee) BRKSER)
- Bills discounting (aggregate face value of — SRR (KRN ERAEE) 356,921 3,901,000
the bills discounted)
- Bills acceptance (aggregate face value of —ERAR (KA NERERE) 2,305,332 4,724,000
the bills accepted)
- Foreign exchange —HNE 200,303 1,618,000
- Guarantee — ¥R - 1,500,000
Logistic services paid to Annto and/or its FREGER/IEMBARIRERN 42,446 65,000
subsidiaries W AR 7%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT T
Provision of deposit services by Midea International & BEIE R F R IR 64,209 80,000

(daily maximum outstanding balances including
accrued interest and handling fee)

( BREEAFERTFEEN
=E St )
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Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by certain
members of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 pursuant
to the agreements mentioned above, which constituted continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, are
disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Group during the Year and confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions have been entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  onnormal commercial terms; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board of Directors engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of
the Company, to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to the Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions of the
Group disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. The auditor has confirmed to the Company that nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe the continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 as
disclosed above:

(1) have not been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company;

(2)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policy of the Company;

(8)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and
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(4)  have exceeded the amounts of annual caps as disclosed in the
previous announcements made by the Company in respect of each
of the disclosed continuing connected transactions.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on continuing connected transactions of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange. The Company confirmed that it has
complied with the disclosure requirements with respect to the above-
mentioned continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing
Rules

As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of guarantees given for
the loan facilities granted to the associates by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$986,183,000 which exceeded 8% of the assets ratio
as defined in Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. As at 31 December 2014,
bank loans of approximately HK$423,374,000 being guaranteed by the
Group to associates have been drawn down. A pro-forma combined
statement of financial position of the associates, in which the Group has a
49% equity interest, as at 31 December 2014 is presented below:

(4) BHARARMZFCEENKERERS LA
REZFELRERE -

ARABEBAEEEHE2014F12 31 H L FEHE
RER 578 B SR 4 B AN E 23T © AR
RIERC R EXFl s AEEHEREZSHETE
MRAEIAAZ Z WHBIRTE -

Ri5 WA E13.22(RFH K E

2014F12 A31 8 - REE R & N BB R E K
B 2 ERE HATELE1E986,183,0007T - #
B EMRBIE14.07()IEFARATE 2 BELEE% o 1
2014512 A1 A - AEEMERZEE QAFRITE
FRE) 423,374,000 T B A IR EL © 72 2014F 12 A
31H  HAEEHEBIONREZBERRZEES
HEBARR KR 25T -

Pro-forma Group’s

combined attributable

statement of interest

financial position (49%)

BEEH AEEEGER

BRI & (49%)

HK$’000 HK$’000

T AT

Non-current assets EMBENEE 886,357 434,315
Current assets MENEE 1,185,983 581,132
Current liabilities REBEE (1,285,075) (629,687)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (54,642) (26,775)
Non-controlling interest Eealiigi (1083,760) (50,842)
Net assets BEFE 628,863 308,143
Fair value adjustments N BEFE 19,413
Currency translation differences SNBITE ZRE 1,362
328,918
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Non-Competition Deed

On 22 February 2008, Midea entered into a non-competition deed in favour
of the Company (“Non-Competition Deed”) to undertake that Midea and
other members of Midea Group (except the Group) will not engage in any
business of the manufacturing and distribution of motors and electronic
and electric components for all electrical household appliances and any
business activities carried on or proposed to be carried on by the Group
which would directly or indirectly compete with the business of the Group.

In compliance with the requirement of the Non-Competition Deed, Midea
has submitted to the Company the annual declaration confirming that
Midea and its associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have complied
with all the provisions of the Non-Competition Deed throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014 (“Declaration”). The Independent Non-
executive Directors have reviewed the Declaration and are satisfied with
the compliance by Midea and its associates with the provisions of the
Non-competition Deed and the enforcement of the Non-competition Deed
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Compliance with the Model Code and the Corporate
Governance Code

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report set out on pages 23 to
46 for the compliance with the Model Code and the Corporate Governance
Code.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained, during the Year, sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules.
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Auditor ZEEm

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Z#BEBUKEEHMEEMDERLEAMEHRE %
PricewaternouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer #ZHEMEMEE  WIHTEERAEEEREF - —
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of — TEAEIEZE K KB QT B/ AT AR EBZEE 2
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Group is to be proposed at the  JREERENEERFAERS FIZE -

forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board REEES

Welling Holding Limited BEZRERADE
ZHOU Xiangyang FEREENTE
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Amks

Hong Kong, 11 March 2015 A& - 20153H11H
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Shareholders of Welling Holding Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Welling Holding
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 73 to 187, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

P

BZBERE
BREZREMRIFTRR
(REBR R LA ERAA)

TIZEEN (AT EEIEM]D) EEINENETIE
187EHEIERAR AR (A TEE ERRDAKRE
MEBAR(SE EEEDNGRENBRE - LGS
MR BIER2014F12 831 B4R A M A AR 15
MREEBEZBILFENGERER  KEEE
WaEk  HERFEHRNGEHEERER UK
FESHBURE R E MM REER -

ESHGEUBBRRAKENER

ERRIEFAARRBEFESHMASRHNEL
IS EER REBCR RGO R RES BB R
R NSHEEVBRRELEEM A FORE - &
EEERARRBR VB RERAMVENANTES] -
LA 4R & B TS R N N BRFE SR SR T B B0
BAFERERA -

BEENRE

HPWEERBERMNBAEZSHES P BERE
EHER - WIRREBCR FHEDIDM R 1158015 E
FERBRERRE R ZIAREREEME R -
B TSR ARENATMEFMEMALE 30K
FEEMEE -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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HpE : +852 22089 8888 » fH I : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 11 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR BRI R
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
2014512318

As at 31 December

M12831H
2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BiaE BET T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights T & 4t Ko {5 42 6 215,212 221,288
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KRB 7 1,246,679 1,212,254
Investment properties WA 8 52,435 55,582
Intangible assets mPEE 9 68,455 92,935
Investments accounted for using the AR AR 218 E
equity method 11 328,918 296,259
Deferred income tax assets RS EE 23 44,631 38,392
Available-for-sale financial assets AP ESREE 12 118,678 111,959
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment ~ FBS 1% - [RE K& B FUE 14 55,811 24,705
2,130,819 2,053,374
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 13 991,946 876,729
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E MR 14 2,878,479 2,996,253
Derivative financial instruments PTESmMTA 22 25,975 26,128
Pledged bank deposits 2 HIRITIFR 15 79,928 114,284
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 16 1,939,564 1,825,010
5,915,892 5,838,404
Total assets BEE 8,046,711 7,891,778
EQUITY Ea
Equity attributable to the owners of RATEEAELER
the Company
Share capital A& AR 17 4,965,641 1,424,603
Share premium AR A5 B - 3,531,044
Other reserves E iR 18 (2,539,934) (2,635,843)
Retained earnings REZ&F
— Proposed final dividend —EEARIRE 31 214,652 242,183
— Others —Hfb 1,623,994 1,250,099
4,264,353 3,812,086
Non-controlling interests FEIER 65,491 62,890
Total equity R 4,329,844 3,874,976
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR BRI R
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
2014512318

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BisE BT T BT
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings Bk 19 - 43,083
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFSHAE 23 120,007 110,690
Deferred government grants IR AT TR AT F R 20 34,615 33,954
154,622 187,727
Current liabilities k=R
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMPERR 21 3,416,942 3,436,647
Derivative financial instruments PTESMIA 22 16,601 3,017
Current income tax liabilities BNERRTIS B E 40,971 48,857
Borrowings B 19 87,731 340,554
3,562,245 3,829,075
Total liabilities PN =Fi 3,716,867 4,016,802
Total equity and liabilities ERREEHERE 8,046,711 7,891,778
Net current assets REBEEFE 2,358,647 2,009,329
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR 4,484,466 4,062,708

FIETAZMERANIRE P BEIWMEKR ZAEK

o

The notes on pages 81 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated &

i}

S

okk

financial statements.

FFLH2015F3 A 11 BHLERE73E187E 2474
BISHhE YREESSEE -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 187 were approved
by the board of directors on 11 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf.

Director Director
£ BF
ZHOU Xiangyang YU Yonghua
AmkE RKE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - COMPANY

BBRAR -EAT
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
72014512 H831H

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE BT T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - W KRB 29 30
Interests in subsidiaries A NpEEPNGIE oL 10 5,670,035 5,667,613
5,670,064 5,667,643
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E AR 14 485 485
Dividend receivable RN B 276,000 250,000
Cash and cash equivalents R MRS EFEEY 16 6,524 10,173
283,009 260,658
Total assets wEE 5,953,073 5,928,301
EQUITY Ea
Equity attributable to the owners of RAREE A
the Company FEfhiER
Share capital &N 17 4,965,641 1,424,603
Share premium AR A5 B - 3,531,044
Other reserves EM R 18 695,100 715,176
Retained earnings RERF
— Proposed final dividend —EFEARHRE 31 214,652 242,183
- Others —HA 61,824 4,801
Total equity A 5,937,217 5,917,807
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities RBAR
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERR 21 15,856 10,494
Total liabilities HwEE 15,856 10,494
Total equity and liabilities EENEEETE 5,953,073 5,928,301
Net current assets REBEEFE 267,153 250,164
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 5,937,217 5,917,807

The notes on pages 81 to 187 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 187 were approved
by the board of directors on 11 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf.

Director

BZ

ZHOU Xiangyang

ArkE

HNFEB1R187 A ZMEAARFBIREKR 2K -

EFEH2015F3A11 BHLERE73E187E 2474
BIISHRE WREESEEHE -

Director
E
YU Yonghua
ROKEE
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

melaER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
HZE2014F12A31HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE BT T BT T
Revenue WA 5 9,273,399 8,881,723
Cost of goods sold HEE MR (7,848,965) (7,460,116)
Gross profit EX 1,424,434 1,421,607
Other (loss)/gains — net Hh (E518),Was —F58 24 (10,258) 68,872
Selling and marketing expenses HE RTISHERERX (214,414) (198,489)
Administrative expenses TERF (350,430) (313,806)
Operating profit KERE 849,332 978,184
Finance expenses RERX 27 (54,609) (50,322)
Finance income A& WA 27 16,416 8,949
Finance expenses — net RVERSY —F5 27 (38,193) (41,379)
Share of profit of associates accounted for AR EARR 2 FE(L
using the equity method /NI FIDE 11 41,253 22,405
Profit before income tax KT B8 AT )8 852,392 959,216
Income tax expense FrS R 28 (171,217) (167,086)
Profit for the year FEFH 681,175 792,130
Profit attributable to: BUR AT PERFIE
Owners of the Company KARER A 678,372 785,499
Non-controlling interests EEalivg o 2,803 6,631
681,175 792,130
Earnings per share attributable to RABEEA
the owners of the Company, EEERER -
expressed in HK cents per share LAgRRELSIR
Basic AR 30 23.76 27.70
Diluted e 30 23.75 27.63

The notes on pages 81 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

HNFES1E187 A Z M X AAER A M IRKR 2 4K

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Proposed final dividend of HK7.5 cents R HARR B SR TR AR 7. 55
per ordinary share (2013: HK8.5 cents) (20134 : 8.5%(1) 31 214,652 242183
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mETHRER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
HZE2014F12AG1HIEFE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Profit for the year FERNE 681,175 792,130
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2wk -
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss A[EH 2B EA
Currency translation differences SN E =R (11,198) 91,031
Change in value of available-for-sale AEHESREER
financial assets BEES) 6,011 3,375
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, FEH#M2E (E1E), W
net of tax (FBRFRIE) (5,187) 94,406
Total comprehensive income for the year FE>AEWZEEE 675,988 886,536
Total comprehensive income for the year LTATEEEE
attributable to: 2EUWESLEEE .
— Owners of the Company —AREHEBA 673,387 878,096
— Non-controlling interests — IR 2,601 8,440
675,988 886,536

The notes on pages 81 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERRSHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
HZE2014F12A31HILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RRAIHAE AEG
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
AR R AN HA REBBF BEF FEERER
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Balance at 1 January 2013 R2013FE1B1H 245 1,410,856 3,523,417  (2,750,247) 864,778 3,048,804 54,450 3,103,254
Comprehensive income: 2EKE !
Profit for the year EERE - - - 785,499 785,499 6,631 792,130
Other comprehensive income: Hib 2K -
Avalilable-for-sale financial assets tEESREE - - 3,375 - 3,375 - 3,375
Currency translation differences SN EER - - 89,222 - 89,222 1,809 91,031
Total comprehensive income EENEEE - - 92,597 785,499 878,096 8,440 886,536
Transaction with owners: HEBAETHRS
Transfer to statutory reserves R TR - - 21,660 (21,660) - - -
Share option scheme RS
- value of services provided — PRI BRIS 2 B1E - - 147 - 147 - 147
— proceeds from shares issued — BRI HIE 13,747 7,836 - - 21,583 - 21,583
- share issuance expenses — AT - (209) - - (209) - (209)
Dividend relating to 2012 2012F ERE - - - (136,335) (136,335) - (136,335)
Total transaction with owners HEEANETZRZEE 13,747 7,627 21,807 (157,995) (114,814) - (114,814)
Balance at 31 December 2013 H2013F12A31B 2 &8 1,424,603 3,531,044 (2,635,843) 1,492,282 3,812,086 62,890 3,874,976

/8
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERREER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

HZE2014F12A31HILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

AATEE AER
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
[ BARE Hitf#E REBF B FERES Ean
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
BT BT T BETT BT BT T BETT BT T
Balance at 1 January 2014 R2014F1 818 2 &8k 1,424,603 3,531,044 (2,635,843) 1,492,282 3,812,086 62,890 3,874,976
Comprehensive income: 2HEKE :
Profit for the year EEFE - - - 678372 678,372 2,803 681,175
Other comprehensive income: Hit2mEKE
Avalilable-for-sale financial assets EESREE - - 6,011 - 6,011 - 6,011
Currency translation differences NS E 25 - - (10,996) - (10,996) (202 (11,198)
Total comprehensive income EENEEE - - (4,985) 678,372 673,387 2,601 675,988
Transaction with owners: HEBAETHRS
Transfer to statutory reserves (note 18) 88 Z% % E £4{& (fi518) - - 89,194 (89,194) - - -
Share option scheme (note 17(a)(v)) BERER (P17 @)W)
— proceeds from shares issued — BRI FTISROR 10,068 - - - 10,068 - 10,068
- share issuance expenses —BRAEITHAR (74) - - - (74) - (74)
Transition to no-par value regime on R2014F3A3HBESR
3 March 2014 (note 17 (a)iii) EEERGHE (H17@6) 3,531,044 (3,531,044) - - - - -
Contribution by owners relating to ABREEE ARG AEREZ A
share-based payment (note 18(c)) HR(HTEE18() - - 11,700 - 11,700 - 11,700
Dividend relating to 2013 (note 31) 2013F E MR B (HIEE31) - - - (242814)  (242,814) - (242814)
Total transaction with owners HEEAETZRZEE 3,541,038  (3,5631,044) 100,894 (332,008) (221,120) - (221,120)
Balance at 31 December 2014 M2014512831 B 2 &tk 4,965,641 - (2,639,934) 1,838,646 4,264,353 65,491 4,329,844

The notes on pages 81 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated &

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= Ayl — 1§
HERERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
HZE2014F12A31HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BiaE BT T BT

Cash flows from operating activities RETHZ2HERE

Cash generated from operations KEEEZES 32(a) 1,036,712 1,468,830

Interest paid BFE (33,290) (29,471)

Interest received 2HFIE 16,416 8,949

Income tax paid B ATSH (176,854) (162,847)

Net cash generated from operating activities TR EAE ZIREFR 842,984 1,285,461
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZRERE

Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BELEME 7 (243,811) (182,053)

Increase in prepayments for property, AR -~ BE &

plant and equipment ARG 14 (31,106) (21,424)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and HEWE - BER
equipment RABFTISFE 32(b) 41,293 39,800

Development cost F B AR 9 (16,990) (15,863)

Proceeds from deferred government grants RIEE AT B FT1S 5RIA 20 1,262 10,692

Dividends received 2HIRE 19,124 13,568

Net cash used in investing activities KREFESMAZAS TR (230,228) (155,380)
Cash flows from financing activities BETH2RERE

Proceeds from borrowings ERETSFE 934,745 1,224,575

Repayments of borrowings (ESA=EN (1,229,808) (1,286,537)

Decrease in pledged bank deposits EHEFIRITIFTORLD 34,356 25,314

Dividends paid BEARE (242,814) (136,335)

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BITERIRATISIRIE 17(a)(v) 10,068 21,5683

Shares issuance expenses BT 17(a)(v) (74) (209)

Net cash used in financing activities BEEEFTR 2 IR e 358 (493,527) (151,609)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R&RREESEYEINTE 119,229 978,472
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FHzRERES

of the year EEY 1,825,010 825,717
Effect on exchange difference EHERTE (4,675) 20,821
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FR2HRERBEESEEY 16 1,939,564 1,825,010
The notes on pages 81 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ BN FE81E 187 A Z M fE RAKR & M Mk 2 MK
financial statements. B e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2.1

General Information

Welling Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) manufacture, distribute and sell motors and electronic
and electric components for electrical household appliances in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and overseas.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Suite 3904, 39/F, Tower
6, The Gateway, Harbour City, 9 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the board of directors on 11 March 2015.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (the “HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

In accordance with the transitional and saving arrangements for Part
9 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts
and Audit” as set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the consolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordance with the applicable
requirements of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for
this financial year and the comparative period.

2.1
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BEEEBITETRELER

RIBCER R RUEDI(EREDF622F ) iR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity

with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.

It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the

process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas

involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas

where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@)

82

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following standards have been adopted by the Group
for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2014.

Amendment to HKAS 32, ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’
on offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. This
amendment clarifies that the right of set-off must not be
contingent on a future event. It must also be legally enforceable
for all counterparties in the normal course of business, as
well as in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy. The
amendment also considers settlement mechanisms. The
amendment did not have a significant effect on the Group
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36, ‘Impairment of assets’, on the
recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets. This
amendment removed certain disclosures of the recoverable
amount of CGUs which had been included in HKAS 36 by
the issue of HKFRS 13. It also enhanced the disclosures of
information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if
that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.

Welling Holding Limited | EZEZERERA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

(@)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

Amendment to HKAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement’ on the novation of derivatives and the
continuation of hedge accounting. This amendment considers
legislative changes to ‘over-the-counter’ derivatives and the
establishment of central counterparties. Under HKAS 39
novation of derivatives to central counterparties would result in
discontinuance of hedge accounting. The amendment provides
relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of
a hedging instrument meets specified criteria. The Group has
applied the amendment and there has been no significant
impact on the Group financial statements as a result.

HK (IFRIC) 21,
obligation to pay a levy if that liability is within the scope of

‘Levies’, sets out the accounting for an

HKAS 37 ‘Provisions’. The interpretation addresses what
the obligating event is that gives rise to the payment a levy
and when a liability should be recognised. The Group is not
currently subjected to significant levies so the impact on the
Group is not material.

Other standards, amendments and interpretations which are
effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2014 are
not material to the Group.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit”
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation as from the Company’s first financial year
commencing on or after 3 March 2014 in accordance with
section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process
of making an assessment of expected impact of the changes
in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part 9 of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it
has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and
only the presentation and the disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements will be affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2 FESHBEREEE)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEE(E)

2.1.1 B BRR K EZEE (E)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (b)  HRERAARIFTETER R 2 FE
New and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued and are relevant to the Group but are not ERARA R MEREBEBRERFTE] R
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2014 and BT - BRI A RZBEIRERER
have not been early adopted: A

BEMIBR2014F1 A1 BB 2 FIHRF

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after

REUT HEAR

&5 2 B

FEEN

Amendment to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: employee contributions 1 July 2014

BEAGHERFE1957(BETAR) RERAGETE - BEHR 20147 A1H

Annual improvements 2012 Changes from the 2010-2012 cycle of 1 July 2014
the annual improvements project

2012 FE 2010 E2012F BHIZ FEBCEER 2 & 201457 A1R

Annual improvements 2013 Changes from the 2011-2013 cycle of 1 July 2014
the annual improvements project

2013FFF 2011ER2013FBH FEBCEER 2 & 201457 A1H

Amendment to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations 1 January 2016

BEUBRELINENFRERTR) Wias & EBERNE A 20161 A1H

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38
BRETEE165 X
BAGERE38R (BATR)
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28
BRI BIREERE10% K
BB EAIFE 285 (BF]A)
Amendment to HKAS 27

Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

BRI E R RN RN TA

Sale or contribution assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture

REEREBENRNAGERE CHE
EENESTE

Equity method in separate financial statements

1 January 2016

2016F1 A1H

1 January 2016

20161 A1H

1 January 2016

BEGTERE2THR(EFTAR) By BRER 2 ERE 2016F1A1H
Annual improvements 2014 Changes from the 2012-2014 cycle of 1 July 2016
the annual improvements project
2014 FEHGE 2012F 220145 A FEBUETRA VB 20167 H1R
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2017
BRBBIRELERE 165 EPafE 201741 A1H
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
BRI HREERER SRIA 2018F1A1H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of the above new standards and amendments to
existing standards and based on the preliminary results of
assessment, the Group currently does not expect the adoption
of these standards and amendments would have a significant
impact on its results of operations and financial position.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the

Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group

is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement

with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its

power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on

which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

@

Business combination involving entities under common
control

For business combination involving entities under common
control, the consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

86

@

Business combination involving entities under common
control (Continued)

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using the existing book values from the controlling
parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in consideration
for goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in the net fair
value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of common control combination,
to the extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s
interest.

The consolidated income statement includes the results of
each of the combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the common control, where
there is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the previous balance sheet date or when
they first came under common control, whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by those
entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between combining entities or

businesses are eliminated on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Business combination other than involving entities under
common control

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share
in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

88

(b)

Business combination other than involving entities under
common control (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement (note
2.9.1).

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2

2.2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

2.3

Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwiill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership
interest in an associate, any difference between the cost of the
associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

23

24

%0

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired.
If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share
of profit of investments accounted for using equity method’ in the

income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are

recognised in the income statement.
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2.5

(@)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”), which is different from the Company’s functional
currency of Renminbi (“RMB”), in view of that the shares of the
Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income statement
within ‘finance expenses-net’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within ‘other (loss)/
gains-net’.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available for sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to changes in amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available for sale, are included in the available-
for-sale revaluation reserve in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

2.5

(c)

2.6

92

B SRaR MY ot

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of the
reporting period;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are up-front to acquire long-term
interests in the usage of land and it is accounted for as an operating
lease. It is stated at cost and charged to the consolidated income
statement over the remaining period of the lease on a straight-line
basis, net of any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

2.7

B SRaR MY ot

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:
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Estimated useful lives

fEEt A fE A H
Buildings ¥ 10-30 yearsF
Furniture and fixtures FENEE 3-5 yearsF
Plant and machinery B 10-20 years4F
Motor vehicles A 5-10 yearsF
Electronic and other equipment BT NEMEKRE 3-5 yearstF

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction-in-progress represents the direct costs of construction
incurred and machinery pending to installation plus interest
capitalised up to date of completion of the construction of property,
plant and equipment less any impairment losses. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction-in-progress until such time the
relevant assets are completed and put into use. Construction-in-
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.10).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2.7

2.8

29

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other
(loss)/gains — net’ in the consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields, and that is not
occupied by the Group, are classified as investment property.
Investment property is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of
the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of investment property is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate cost to their residual values over their

estimated lease period.

Intangible assets

2.9.1 Goodwill

94

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred over the Group’s interest in
net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUSs”), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the
entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A P AR R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)
2.9.1 Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

2.9.2 Technology

Technology acquired is initially measured at the purchase costs and
amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives.

2.9.3 Research and development

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of
gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding,
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities (relating to the design and
testing of new or improved products) is capitalised under the
category of development cost if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible, the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete the development, and if the cost can be reliably
measured. Upon the commencement of the commercial production
of a product, the expenditure on development cost amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of its expected benefit. Research
and development costs comprise costs that are directly attributable
to research and development activities or that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to such activities.

Subsequent expenditure on development activities after its
completion is recognised as an expense when it is incurred unless
it is probable that this expenditure will enable the asset to generate
future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard
of performance and this expenditure can be measured and attributed
to the asset reliably. If these conditions are met, the subsequent
expenditure is added to the cost of the intangible asset.

Development costs previously recognised as expenses are
not recognised as assets in subsequent periods. Capitalised
development costs are amortised from the point at which the assets
are ready for use on a straight-line basis over their useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

211

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets
not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets

2.11.1 Classification

96

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available
for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Welling Holding Limited | BEBi=RER A A
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
the amounts that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash
and cash equivalents’ in the statement of financial position
(notes 2.16 and 2.17).

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless the investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period.

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2

2.11

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented
in the income statement within ‘other (loss)/gains-net’ in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income statement
as part of other gains when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available for sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the income statement as ‘gains and losses from

investment securities’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the income statement as part of
other gains. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of other gains when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

98

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Welling Holding Limited | EZEZERERA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2 FESHBEREEE)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

213 TREERE

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (a

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

TEETHRMEE)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

213 TREERE (&)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument,
and if not, the gain or loss from fair value change is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement within ‘other (loss)/
gains — net’.

] OO Welling Holding Limited | EZEZERERA R

(b) Assets classified as available for sale (b) THHELSE
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether AREBASERSHATHEEBERERIEE
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of AR —esmEERE —SmEEHADERE -
financial assets is impaired.
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impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income statement.
For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair BRI EM S - FHEAABEARIEHE
value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets RERATTAEERENER - WEEERE
are impaired. If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss — FAEE - RSB RWERARERE AR E
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and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in BT &FBIgss#m -
the consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FE&:BEHME(E)
(Continued)

2.15 Inventories 215 78

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work-in-progress comprises design costs, raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.16 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flow, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

TEETHRMEE)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

(Continued)
2.19 Trade payables 219 EFEMAR
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have BORMNARAERARECE T EEmRER

been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.

imEZ NEER - B SRR B

Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is TE—F s AR (UNDFE E & & @4 - BIF]
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the RREM)  EWMoBEARBARG SR
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. BIEREEE -

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently BIRENTIAARBEAVIBIER  HEFB

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as BUEBERRERSIMNERMIBMmE I RE
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that KERATGEIR - ZEABRRERNZSE
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee Ao Ejrlg\ N BRECEZEERIRERALL -

is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no WA BB A B R e

evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.21 Borrowings Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

(a)

(b)

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

() Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FE&:BEHME(E)
(Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.22 EHNRIEEFTSH (&)
(b) Deferred income tax (Continued) (b) BHFSH (E)
(i) Outside basis differences (i) SIMEEE

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable RIEFTS TR GLMT B A A M & A R E
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries EEMERTYRIEZ2MER - EX
and associates, except for deferred income tax liability where £ [ ] LA 20 1) BT R 2 R A e O] RS
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is MEREERAERTER G RETETE
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary B[O RIEFTER B ERIBRIN o —f&M
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally T AEEREEEHEODBE AR Y
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary RBHER - EHECILEBHENER
difference for associates. Only where there is an agreement in T REBEFREHIEHI B O RER Y
place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of =8 -

the temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible RIEFTB IR EEZME R R LB E AR
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries KA ELE Z A IR = R
and associates only to the extent that it is probable the R ENEREEER AR BRER R
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is AIE A R R AR TR =R
sufficient taxable profit available against which the temporary EHBR -

difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting (c) ##H
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a EAETERRITE NG SR IBEEEEE T
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current BaFERE  BREESHEEMaE Y kA
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and [ — TR TS M B S B RR A T S ek TR JE R A = B8
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority BEEERFEELELEFSHA&RE - Aln]
on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is BIRIEETHREERB B K -

an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.23 Employee benefits 223 EERF

(a) Retirement benefits obligation (a) EUEEMF
The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the NEB P LHEESREELZ NG EATESET
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined Z([aE2stEl)) - RiES:2 A—TBHBY
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. SEAEE 2B E SRR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Retirement benefits obligation (Continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC make contributions
to a state-sponsored defined contribution scheme for the Group’s
local staff on a monthly basis pursuant to laws of the PRC and
relevant regulations issued by local social security authorities.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement
schemes are expensed as incurred.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2 FESHBEREEE)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
2.24 Share-based payments 224 R AERH R

UgEnAE LR BERIRS

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the
Group. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for example, an
entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services
in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value
is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period and grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.24 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital.

Share-based payment transactions among group entities

The grant by the Company (or the Company’s ultimate holding
company) of options over its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
entity accounts.

2.25 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

TEETHRMEE)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

2.26 BB IER

2.26 Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of associates to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. The fair
value of a financial guarantee at the time of signature is zero because
all guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms and the value of
the premium agreed corresponds to the value of the guarantee
obligation. No receivable for the future premiums is recognised.
Subseqguent to initial recognition, the Company’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial amount and the
best estimate of the amount required to settle the guarantee. These
estimates are determined based on experience of similar transactions
and history of past losses, supplemented by the judgement of
management. Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is
reported in the consolidated income statement within other operating
expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans of the associates are
provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment in
the financial statements of the Group.

2.27 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts returns and value-added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group bases its
estimates of return on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Sales of finished goods and raw materials

Sales of finished goods and raw materials are recognised when an
entity has delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans and receivables are recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

2.28 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.29 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the income statement over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

2.30 Dividend distribution

3.1

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Financial Risk Management
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and concentration
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The
Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk
exposures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group exposes to foreign exchange risks as certain
portion of its business activities are denominated in foreign
currencies, primarily with respect to the HK$, the United States
dollar (“USD”) and the Euro (‘EUR”).

To manage their foreign exchange risks arising from future
commercial transactions, entities in the Group enter into
forward contracts, transacted with the commercial banks. The
directors are of the view that the Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk is manageable.

At 31 December 2014, if the HK$ has weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$116,000
higher/lower (2013: HK$1,211,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses (2013: losses/gains) on
translation of HK$-denominated cash and cash equivalents,
other receivables and other payables.

At 31 December 2014, if the USD has weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held
constant, the post-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$17,468,000 (2013: HK$18,646,000) lower/higher, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
USD-denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings.

At 31 December 2014, if the EUR has weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$4,295,000
(2013: HK$7,467,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of EUR-
denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. All the borrowings obtained at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings
obtained at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s long-term
borrowings at variable rate were denominated in the USD.

The Group’s amounts due from/(to) related parties were issued
at interest free, and expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk.

The Company’s amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries were issued
at interest free, and expose the Company to fair value interest
rate risk.

The directors are of the view that the interest rate risk is not
material as at 31 December 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Price risk

The Group exposes to commodity price risk, mainly due to
the fluctuations in prices of copper and aluminium, which are
key raw materials to the Group’s products. The price risk due
to copper and aluminium is reduced through the derivatives
market and through certain clause in contracts with our
customers to enable the Group to have the flexibility to pass
the increases in raw material costs to the customers.

At 31 December 2014, if the copper and aluminium price had
been 5% higher/lower with other variables held constant, the
post-tax profit for the year would have been of HK$8,294,000
(2013: HK$9,876,000) higher/lower, representing the change
in fair value of copper and aluminium derivatives at the end of
the reporting period.

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit
risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits,
derivative financial instruments, due from related parties and trade
and other receivables.

For cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits and derivative
financial instruments, management manages the credit risk by
transacting with state-owned financial institutions and reputable
commercial banks. The maximum exposure to the credit risk before
collateral held or other credit enhancements relating to cash and
cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits and derivative financial
instruments were their carrying value as disclosed in note 16, note
15 and note 22, respectively, as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

For trade and other receivables and due from related parties, the
credit quality of the counterparties is assessed by taking into account
their financial position, credit history and other factors. Individual
credit limits are set based on the assessment of the credit quality.
Given the constant repayment history, the directors are of the view
that the risk of default by these counterparties is low.

For financial guarantees provided for the associates, the Group
monitors the credit quality of the associates by taking into account
their financial position and business development plan. As at 31
December 2014, the directors are of the view that the risk of default
by the associates is low. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the
balance of the borrowings before accounting for collaterals held of
other credit enhancements as follows.
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Group

rEH
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Face value Face value
HE EfE

Financial guarantees BE R

— bank loans drawn (note 35) — BREERTTE R (FI3E35) 423,374 613,076

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash
balance, the availability of funding from an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HMERREE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥EKEZE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REEZEREE

TERAMAREENREME THEESODHA
EER T BRI A B R AR ZiEmE%mﬁ
BERFEECRITEMBERERER - RPH
BRZEBDHEORURASRE -

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities and net-settled financial derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end
of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Group REE Less than Between Over
1year 1 and2years 2 years
10T 1E226F 2F Bk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T
At 31 December 2014 RK20145F12H31H
Borrowings & 88,325 - -
Trade and other payables B 5 N EH AR 3,416,942 - -
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 16,601 - -
Principal amount of financial guarantees RMEERAE - -
— bank loans drawn —BREIURTTER 423,374 - -
At 31 December 2013 #2013F12A31H
Borrowings fE 347,571 43,652 -
Trade and other payables 85 MEMENR 3,436,647 - -
Derivative financial instruments THESHMIA 3,017 - -
Principal amount of financial guarantees BEERAE
— bank loans drawn —BRIRITE R 613,076 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A P AR R

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3 MHEREEGE)
3.1 B EE (&)

c) HEBELEEE)

Company VNN Less than Between Over
1year 1 and2years 2 years
1E0T 1FEE2F 2F Bk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT

At 31 December 2014 2014912 831H
Trade and other payables 5 N EH AR 15,856 - -

At 31 December 2013 M2013F12A831H
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMPERR 10,494 - -

3.2 Capital management 3.2 EXERE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may

issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

3.2

3.3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. The Group’s strategy for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was to maintain a gearing ratio under
75% or had a net cash position. This ratio was calculated as net debt
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. As the Group
was in a net cash position as at 31 December 2014 and 2013,
gearing ratio was not applicable.

3 MHEREEGE)
3.2 EXREEA)

HERHEMAR -5 XEBFMBEREEL
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RITEFMRE RIS EEY - ARKTEER
2014F 201312 A1 HENFREMMR -
BARBEL R NER -

.
=z

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Cash and cash equivalents (note 16) ReLBREEBW(HiEi16) 1,939,564 1,825,010
Pledged bank deposits BRI TR 79,928 114,284
Less: Total borrowings (note 19) B e B R (MTEE19) (87,731) (383,637)
Net cash REFR 1,931,761 1,555,657
Total equity W 4RTE 4,329,844 3,874,976
Gearing ratio (%) BEREBELEE %) N/A N/A

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

3.3 AREEME

TREREGEETE  HMEMTREZAAE
B FTRSREEDT

o ARBEREMEZERDTISRECKE
BE) () -

s BERES-—MZHmEN  EERERE
ZAERER(BER) MR (BRA
ERE)BABR(FE R -

o UWHRBABEMBSENMEBECEE

FEEZBAEMAITTERZEA
BRI (FE=) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HKREBERE)

DR EEMAE ()

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and TREJNAEBENR2014F12A31BEZE AR E

liabilities that are measured at fair value as at 31 December 2014.

BFfEZSMEENRAE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ -t E=# st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT BT B¥To
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value RARBEFELESE
through profit or loss STABRZEMEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIA
— Commodity futures contracts —HHEmRey 116 - - 116
— Foreign exchange forward contracts — SR HRA 4 - 25,859 - 25,859
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE
— Equity investments — IR E - - 118,678 118,678
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B BIR B=R mat
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BY¥TT BEYT
Liabilities afE
Financial liabilities at fair value RANEBESEEHSE
through profit or loss STABREzEemEs
Derivative financial instruments PTESMIA
— Commodity futures contracts —HEEmEN 6,731 - - 6,731
— Foreign exchange forward contracts —SNEREAA A - 9,870 - 9,870

] ] 8 Welling Holding Limited | BEBi=RER A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HMERREE(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AAEEME(E)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are TRENAEENR2013F12A31BZE AR E

measured at fair value as at 31 December 2013. BifEvBERAE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B EMH B=K HEET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BT BB Tx  BETT A% T
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value RAKEEFEEHES
through profit or loss STABRZEMEE
Derivatives financial instruments TSI A
— Commodity futures contracts —BERMmALY 8,109 - - 8,109
— Foreign exchange forward contracts —HNEREAE LY - 18,019 - 18,019
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE
— Equity investments — kiR A - - 111,959 111,959
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE—& B B #aEt
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT BETT  BETT  E%TT
Liabilities =L
Financial liabilities at fair value BRAREEFELHSE
through profit or loss STABREzEemEs
Derivative financial instruments PTHEERTA
— Foreign exchange forward contracts —HNERHIE A - 3,017 - 3,017

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year.

FA - F-REE R EMEEEERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the end of reporting period.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1. Instruments included
in level 1 comprise commodity futures contracts.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, foreign exchange forward
contracts) is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet
date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value.

] 20 Welling Holding Limited | EZEZERERA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A P AR R

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HKREBERE)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(c) Financial instruments in level 3

3.3 AREEME(E&)

(c) ZE=#HzHITA

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments

for the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2014:

TEREVHE2013F KX 20145F12 A 31

Available-for-sale
financial assets

ARHESREE

HK$'000

BT
At 1 January 2013 7201341818 102,819
Net gains transferred to equity FU R E 5,823
Currency translation differences INEITE =R 3,317
At 31 December 2013 72013412 H31H 111,959
At 1 January 2014 MR2014F1A1H 111,959
Net gains transferred to equity FU RS R 7,071
Currency translation differences SNEITE R (352)
At 31 December 2014 2014912 831H 118,678

If the fair value of equity investments would be shifted by 10%,

the impact on the net gains transferred to equity would be

HK$707,000.

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and

Judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

fin BRI E 2

R EEEE10% - Al
HHEBRERS CFRETESREE

4 EESTHEERHE

T R HIEr 2 FP e NEETT - I B KRB E
KRELEMEARERER - HhaERRnY
RIREM 2 AIETRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

4.1

(a)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
2.9.1. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of certain key assumptions (note 9). Changing in such
key assumptions selected by management, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

If the estimated pre-tax discount rate applied to the discounted cash
flows for the CGU of GD Welling and Changzhou Welling had been
16% and 11% higher than management’s estimates respectively,
the recoverable amount of goodwill would be lower than its carrying
amount and impairment of goodwill would be recognised.

If the estimated gross margin of the CGU of GD Welling and
Changzhou Welling had been 5% and 1% lower than management’s
estimates respectively, the recoverable amount of goodwill would be
lower than its carrying amount and impairment of goodwill would be
recognised.

If the growth rate of the CGU of GD Welling and Changzhou Welling
had been 168% and 18% lower than management’s estimates
respectively, the recoverable amount of goodwill would be lower than
its carrying amount and impairment of goodwill would be recognised.

] 22 Welling Holding Limited | EZEZERERA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and 4 BEETEHFRAEE)
Judgments (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 4.1 EE€iH {4 REER (&)

(Continued)
(b) Income taxes (b) Fri5H

Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for ETHSHRENEEELEAHE - £
income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which ERBREREZELGNAERR ey
the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of SRS HIENER - HEZSHEREME
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different HMIEMERERV RIS REBEESNE
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will B FEEBETESEHGER 2 e L
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in IEIERT B -

which such determination is made.

(c) Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments (c) TTERAMESHBTANIEE
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active WIFEERT IS E S 2 e T A (BT
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by STE)ZRAREE  BFBHEERNEE -
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a REBFERBENEFEFREEHARZIBITHRE
variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on BEHAECREZE AW EHEBER - AEEE
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. The HWZ B IEEERTSET S Z2ITES R T AT
Group has used discounted cash flow analysis for various foreign AALIRIRETREDHT ©

exchange forward contracts that are not traded in active markets.

(d) Impairment of available-for-sale equity investment (d) FRHERFRERE

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when an AREBEREE A ERFEI0HRMIES BT
available-for-sale equity investment is impaired. This determination —FRHHEESEEERRE EERAE
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group HERHET o (EH BT - REFET(E(HA
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which BIE)FREN A BEERENAARRE &=
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the financial BE 5 ARERE QRSN K& B EA TS Al
health of and short-term business outlook for the investee, including = BETELRARNRERIR - RIS E D LKE
factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in M BN RERE -

technology and operational and financing cash flow.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

4.1

(e)

(f)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

Useful lives adopted for the calculation of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment

The estimate of useful lives of property, plant and equipment was
made by the management with reference to the established industry
practices, technical assessments made on the durability of the
assets, as well as the historical magnitude and trend of repair and
maintenance expenses incurred by the Group. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in responses to severe industry cycles.

If the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
had been higher/lower by 10% from management’s estimates,
the depreciation charge would have decreased/increased by
HK$13,657,000 and HK$16,692,000 (2013: HK$12,711,000 and
HK$15,536,000) respectively.

Provision for impairment of inventories

Provision for impairment of inventories is based on the net realisable
value which is the selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses. The calculation of the net
realisable value is determined based on management’s estimates of
the selling price and variable selling expenses according to prevailing
market conditions.

The amount of impairment of inventories included in the income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2014 is HK$4,762,000
(2013: HK$2,312,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

4.1

(9

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

Management reviews its trade receivables for objective evidence
of impairment. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, the
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy, and default or
significant delay in payments are considered as objective evidence
that a receivable is impaired. In determining this, management
makes judgments as to whether there is observable data indicating
that there has been a significant change in the payment ability of
the debtor, or whether there have been significant changes with
adverse effect on the market and economic environment in which the
debtor operates in. Where there is objective evidence of impairment,
management makes judgments as to whether an impairment loss
should be recorded as an expense.

Provision for impairment of trade receivables of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2014 is HK$48,111,000 (2013:
HK$41,750,000).

Segment Information

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing,
distribution and selling of motors and electronic and electric
components for electrical household appliances in the PRC and

overseas.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker, the board of directors, who
is responsible for allocating resources, assessing performance
of the operating segments and making strategic decisions, the
management considers the business from both business and
geographical perspectives. From business perspective, the Group
has only one business segment.

4.1

()]

ERERThET R A E (F)

EESEFRER(E)

EEEENEESRUGE S EERESE -
BEBARABRENME - ERFAATBERENK
BB IR RETIGRE RELGE TER
BEE - GEETRER  EEERHHESH
ERERNBREBANERENBERES)
B RHEBARBRENT S LEERERE
BRANZENERES - MARETEERE -
EIEEHENA DRERRELCERMNY -

REBEZE2014F12A31HIEFEME S E
W FOR E B A5 148,111,000 (20134 -
7B #41 750,0007T) ©

7 RPER

AEE 2 FREBRETENBINGE - D4
MHEFRERCERNETERER °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMKRRME
5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 SDTER(E)
The Group is domiciled in the PRC. The Group’s revenue from NEBEENPE - ANEENR B BIER &EIEIN
customers located in the PRC and outside PRC are presented as ZEEPZIWAZHINT
follows:
Group
TEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEET T PEMET T
Revenue from customers in the PRC KEFRBERNEE Z WA 6,359,667 6,120,266
Revenue from customers outside the PRC KERBEBEINEE Z WA 2,913,732 2,761,457
9,273,399 8,881,723
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which customers are WAREBERFAERRDAE - MEREE—F
located. No revenue derived from a single external customer has PR AR B AI0%A E ©

exceeded 10% of the total revenue.

No geographical segment analysis on non-current assets is prepared AEBBARIBHEEMNPE - T EREIE
as substantially all of the Group’s assets were located in the PRC. MENEE 2 HE D EBAHT °

6 Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights 6 HETHRTHfEHARE
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent REBENEE Tt 2 T Hb 5 AR 2 = BTET
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book values are WEFAEHIE - HEEEFESTOT

analysed as follows:

Group
AEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Outside Hong Kong, held on leases of 10 to 50 years ~ &BIASN © LA10EB0F 7 HERA 215,212 221,288
Group
TEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Opening net book amount FYREFE 221,288 219,722
Amortisation charge B (5,295) (5,259)
Currency translation differences SN E =5 (781) 6,825
Closing net book amount FREMEFE 215,212 221,288
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, no leasehold land and land use R2014F K2013%F12 A31H » BAREE L
rights have been pledged as security for the Group’s banking R 4 #0455 R M VR A AR S BIERTT IR (5 2 T

facilities (note 19). (FF3E19) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S A =
FEMBHRRME
Property, Plant and Equipment 7 YE- - BERRE
Group KEE
Furniture Plant Electronic
and and Motor and other Construction-
Buildings fixtures  machinery vehicles  equipment  in-progress Total
ETR
BF GAREE BERES HE HthktE ERIR fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2013 201351 A1R
Cost AR 453,190 63,595 1,071,710 21,509 104,081 157,183 1,871,268
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (122,674) (39,279) (387,846) (10,362) (68,129) - (628,284)
Net book amount REFE 330,516 24,316 683,864 11,147 35,958 157,183 1,242,984
Year ended 31 December 2013 Z2013%
12A31AILER
Opening net book amount ENEETE 330,516 24,316 683,864 11,147 35,958 157,183 1,242,984
Additions NE 4,800 1,430 51,766 4,263 24,685 95,109 182,063
Currency translation differences  JMNEHEEE 9,437 722 15,660 220 3,147 4,938 34,124
Disposals heE - (4,000) (43,244) (704) (2,415) - (60,453)
Transfers R 24,484 - 105,666 - 4,332 (134,482) -
Depreciation ik (17,974) (2,900) (81,892 (4,036) (33,017) - (139,819)
Transfer to investment properties B8 A& &1% (56,635) - - - - - (56,635)
Closing net book amount ERRAFE 294,628 19478 731,820 10890 32,690 122748 1212,54
At 31 December 2013 2013124318
Cost WA 434,090 62,080 1,179,918 25,661 119,944 122,748 1,944,441
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (139,462) (42,602) (448,008) (14,771) (87,254) - (732,187)
Net book amount REFE 294,628 19,478 731,820 10,890 32,690 122748 1,212,254
Year ended 31 December 2014~ HZE20146
12A31ALFE
Opening net book amount FNEEFE 294,628 19,478 731,820 10,890 32,690 122,748 1,212,254
Additions NE 34,116 1,022 84,034 4,521 23,338 96,774 243,811
Currency translation differences  MEH EEE (1,199) (74) (1,117) @) (1,893) (565) (4,851)
Disposals e (37) (8,207) (25,762) (315) (3,229) (16,764) (54,308)
Transfers B 91,555 - 13,682 - 6,052 (111,289) -
Depreciation ik (23,782) (1,171) (103,928) (4,061) (17,285) - (150,227)
Closing net book amount FREEEFE 395,281 11,048 698,729 11,038 39,679 90,904 1,246,679
At 31 December 2014 R2014512A31H
Cost A 557,916 30,536 1,198,633 28,218 132,686 90,904 2,038,893
Accumulated depreciation ZEIE (162,635) (19,488) (499,904) (17,180) (93,007) - (792,214)
Net book amount FEFE 395,281 11,048 698,729 11,038 39,679 90,904 1,246,679

Depreciation charge of HK$134,968,000 (2013: HK$123,776,000)
has been charged to cost of goods sold, HK$207,000 (2013:
HK$949,000) to selling and marketing expenses, HK$13,674,000
(2013: HK$15,094,000) to administrative expenses and
HK$1,378,000 (2013: Nil) in research and development costs.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, construction-in-progress mainly

comprises new manufacturing equipment being constructed.

EIER I F - % 134,968,000 7T (2013
4 0 B 123,776,000 T ) EFF A E S
mm Ak AR B 207,000 70 (2013 & ¢ B
949,0007T) Bt AHE R M SHERS « 4
#13,674,000 7T (2013 4F : /& # 15,094,000
JL)EE RITHRE Y - A R #E#1,378,0007T
(20134 : S)BEFTAFFBEKA -

R2014F 2013F12 A1 HMAEZE IR E
BIREEERP A RERME
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e SRR
8 Investment Properties 8 REWHE
Group
rEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Opening net book amount FYRmFEE 55,582 -
Net amount transfer from owner-occupied property ¢ B Y2 8 B 42 48 - 56,635
Depreciation e (2,944) (1,706)
Currency translation differences INEITE =R (203) 653
Closing net book amount FIREREFE 52,435 55,582
Cost (D% 62,256 62,470
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (9,821) (6,888)
Net book amount BREFE 52,435 55,582

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2014 was HK$55,961,000, as estimated by the directors
of the Group. It falls under level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. No

valuation has been performed by independent qualified professional

valuers.

The rental income of the investment property in 2014 was

HK$4,417,000 (2013: HK$2,560,000) (note 24).

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S A =
mE M BEmRME
9 Intangible Assets 9 BEIEE
Development Group
Goodwill  Technology cost Total
KEE
wE il EP#: &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB BT I BT
At 1 January 2013 720131 A1H
Cost N 29,115 30,933 21,407 81,455
Accumulated amortisation Kt - (3,867) - (3,867)
Net book amount REFE 29,115 27,066 21,407 77,588
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZE2013%F
12A31A1L5E
Opening net book amount FHREFE 29,115 27,066 21,407 77,588
Additions NE - - 15,863 15,863
Amortisation charge BrE > - (3,144) - (3,144)
Currency translation differences HNEYTH =5 915 804 909 2,628
Closing net book amount FLEEMFE 30,030 24,726 38,179 92,935
At 31 December 2013 2013%F12831H
Cost %N 30,030 31,905 38,179 100,114
Accumulated amortisation 2B - (7,179 - (7,179)
Net book amount REVFE 30,030 24,726 38,179 92,935
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZE2014%F
12A31ALLFE
Opening net book amount FYRMFE 30,030 24,726 38,179 92,935
Additions NE - - 16,990 16,990
Amortisation and impairment charge B RERS - (3,166) (37,880) (41,046)
Currency translation differences HNETE =R (103) (98) (223) (424)
Closing net book amount FHRERMEFE 29,927 21,462 17,066 68,455
At 31 December 2014 #2014F12A318
Cost 3% 29,927 31,795 54,946 116,668
Accumulated amortisation ZEEHEK
and impairment A - (10,333) (37,880) (48,213)
Net book amount RHEEE 29,927 21,462 17,066 68,455
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Intangible Assets (Continued)

The goodwill is attributable to the synergies expected to arise upon
the Group’s acquisition of the cash-generating units (“CGU”) of
Guangdong Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (“GD Welling”)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

BLEE(R)

AEBGEE=FBEL NP R ER TS
HEARAR(EREE ) REMNEEEEER
EAERRR([EMEEDORSELEM([]R

SELFEMDBEFSELHRRE - MiHR
EHREE - HENEHMEZ7WT

and Changzhou Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (“Changzhou
Welling”) located in the PRC from the third parties. A summary of the
goodwill allocation is presented as follows:

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BRI

GD Welling ERERE 25,010 25,096
Changzhou Welling BN E 4,917 4,934
29,927 30,030

ReEEBL 2z MRS EDRERBENE
TUETE - B EEARARZRETEN
(REEEEHEZ AFHRMBIRE)EL - B
FRAINZ RS RE TR T Xl 2 fhFHE &

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as FREBEFEZEZZ/RAT
follows:

Changzhou
GD Welling Welling
BRAE EMNEE
As at 31 December 2014 M2014F 1273316
Gross margin (oudgeted gross margin) FAR(FBEEFRXR) 12% 13%
Volume growth rate R X 15% 15%
Long term growth rate REJIER R 1% 3%
Discount rate (pre-tax discount rate applied to ARIRE(ARRERETEN 2
the cash flow projections) FRTARIR &K) 15% 15%
As at 31 December 2013 R2013F12H31H
Gross margin (budgeted gross margin) EFR(FEEERRK) 12% 18%
Volume growth rate HERRR 15% 15%
Long term growth rate RHAE R & 1% 3%
Discount rate (pre-tax discount rate applied to ARIRE(ARREeRETEN 2
the cash flow projections) FRTARIR K) 15% 15%
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ma

10

B SRaR MY ot

Intangible Assets (Continued) 9 EEEEE)
Management determined the compound annual volume growth rate ETIEBEEERSEASMAETETENSRNE
for each CGU covering over the five-year forecast period to be a key AEEHERREERET A —BIER:E - BEH
assumption. The volume of sales in each period is the main driver M HEEEHRBARKANEZNRR - EE
for revenue and costs. The compound annual volume growth rate is FHERREZANBEREREREEMS
based on past performance and management’s expectations for the BFEMTER - FIFANRIPERREITERE
market development. The long term growth rates used are consistent Vqﬁ’\ji‘ﬁ‘ﬁ\ﬁﬁ—@z o Fir{d FAAYBLIR R AT AIAL
with the forecasting’s included in industry report. The discount rates R e i B AR BARRA RS E RS o FEEEE
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the Group. No /T\ﬂﬁﬁ%‘ ERE -
impairment is considered necessary based on the assessment.
Interests in Subsidiaries 10 RHE A TNER
The details of the interests in subsidiaries of the Company are as KRR B R RIMESFBOT ¢
follows:
Company
¥ NE
2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$’000

BETT BB T T
Investments in equity interests IR &
— at cost, unlisted —IBRAR - FEETH 4,500,000 4,500,000
— subsequent exchange differences due to —HigRBE 258K 2

translation into presentation currency WEZEZ(M:E2.50))

(note 2.5(c)) 609,350 626,925
Investments arising from share-based payments (a) L)(H%ﬁiﬁi ﬁ?iz&ﬁ(a) 8,348 8,348
Amounts due from subsidiaries (o) ERHTE A TH(b) 552,337 532,340

5,670,035 5,667,613

(@  The amount represents share-based payments arising from
the grant of share options of the Company to employees of the
subsidiaries for their services provided to the subsidiaries.

(b) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
denominated in HK$ and interest-free, the Company does not
intend to collect it in the foreseeable future, with no fixed term
of repayment, non-trade related and have been accounted for
as quasi-investment.

@ FEREERLMBARZEEANEAR
REREMARSERDARRBREE
HEZ BRI AT -

b) EURMEARFEREERR - BT
[ERECH-N FfﬁHZlK At EITEER R
AR E - EmETEESR - JEE S0
B ERA AR -
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10 RKIE XA AvHER (&)

10 Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

The particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are: B ARIN2014E12 A31H Z BT ¢

Place of incorporation and

Particulars of issued

operation/establishment share capital/ Interest
Name and kind of legal entity Principal activities registered capital held
EMRIREE BRITRA,
=t ROt B % A TE B R B FEXH HEMMERZFHE P
Directly held:
HERE:
Welling Holding (BVI) Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of 100%
liability company USD1 each
EEERBV)ER AR RERLHS  AREAERAR REER 10,000iF IR EE1ETT 2
il
Indirectly held:
BERE
Changzhou Honglu Huate Electric Co., Ltd (c) PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading ~ Registered capital 75.97%
of motors RMB40,622,545
EMMEERBERER AR B AREMELQF FLENEEE FEE A AR #40,622,5457T0
Changzhou Welling Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability company ~Manufacture and trading ~ Registered capital 75.97%
Co., Ltd. (“Changzhou Welling”) (c) (foreign investment of motors USD23,634,600
enterprises)
EMNRBEEHEEERAR(ENHEDC) FBE AREEAA SLEREE B FHf & Z23,634,6003 7T
(SNERZ)
Foshan Welling Electronic & Electric Co., Ltd.  PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%
(“Welling Electronic and Electric”) (foreign investment of motors USD15,000,000
enterprises)
FHUTHREEFERARAF HE - AREMELQF FEREEEH #Hf1 & 4815,000,0003 70
(THEETESRD (SNERZ)
Foshan Welling Material Supply Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company  Trading of raw materials Registered capital 100%
RMB20,000,000
BRI T BV E M RHI A PR A A FE - BEREEAT BERMK 1 & 48 AR #620,000,0007T
Foshan Welling Washer Motor Manufacturing  PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. (“Welling Washer”) (foreign investment of motors USD6,400,000
enterprises)
BT RS RERELEBR AR HE AREMERF HEREEBH #Hi & 4<6,400,000% 7T
(TRESR]) (SNERE)
Guangdong Welling Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%

Co., Ltd. (“GD Welling”) (foreign investment of motors USD48,810,000
enterprises)
ERRBEEREEAR AR (ERRE]) HE - AREEAR BE R EE T FHf & 748,810,000 7T
(SNEREE)
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10 RKTE R A AR (&)

10 Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation and

Particulars of issued

operation/establishment share capital/ Interest
Name and kind of legal entity Principal activities registered capital held
SR REE BRITRA,
=t AL RN EE B R E R FEXH HEMERZFHE FRisRER
Hefei Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company  Investment holding Registered capital 100%
RMB50,000,000
BIEREEHELERR AR HE AREMERF REER & A AR #50,000,0007T
Huaian Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company ~Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%
(“Huaian Welling”) (foreign investment of motors USD45,000,000
enterprises)
HERHBEERHEARDR(DELZHRE ] R BEREMERA SLENEEEH #H & 845,000,000 7T
(SNERZE)
Midea Welling Motor Technology (Shanghai) PRC, limited liability company  Providing technical Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. consultancy services RMB10,000,000
ERNBBEERRM(LE)BRATF hE - AREMELQF R R RS & A AR #10,000,0007T
Welling International Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding and Issued share capital 100%
("Welling HK”) company trading of motors HK$10,000,000
HEEREEERAR(THESTE]) B - ARAEAF REZFRREERE BEITRAEE
10,000,0007T
Welling Macao Commercial Offshore Limited =~ Macao Special Administrative  Offshore trading Registered capital Macao 100%
Region, limited liability Pataca 100,000
company
HERMEFEERBERAR RV RITTRR - BEFRS FEf & AR P #5100,0007T
ABREEAF
Welling (Wuhu) Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd.  PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%
(“Wuhu Welling”) (foreign investment of motors USD17,680,000
enterprises)
BEGNEHREEARAR(EARE]) HE - AREEAR SLE N EE B & 217,680,000 7T
(SNERZ)
Wuhu Welling Motor Sales Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company  Trading of motors Registered capital 100%
RMB50,000,000
YR ESRIEEBERAR FE - EREEAT EEEH FHff & A AR #50,000,0007T

The English name of certain companies referred in this financial statements represent management’s best effort at translating

the Chinese names of these companies as no English names have been registered.
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e EmRMET
10 Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 HMIEBARIMRER (&)
(c) Material non-controlling interests (c) EXRFEZERER

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December 2014
is HK$65,491,000 (2013: HK$62,890,000), which are all
attributed to Changzhou Welling Group, which included
Changzhou Welling and its subsidiary Changzhou Honglu
Huate Electric Co., Ltd.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
Changzhou Welling Group.

Summarised balance sheet

2014512 A31 AR FEE R IEZS & £
/75 65,491,000 7T, (2013 4F : 7 #E
62,890,0007T) © 2 &R B T IMEE
SE(HEMNREREWERFEIML
BREFTERBRATMEMNX)

ABEAHFZREmHINE 2 AR5

BT B M L R 2 B T

%= o

BEERERME

Changzhou Welling Group

ENBEER
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current mED
Assets BE 216,858 308,863
Liabilities = (244,315) (318,482)
Total current net liabilities MEVBEFREAR (27,457) (9,619)
Non-current IERE
Assets BE 242,277 216,595
Liabilities afE (5,400) 6,213)
Total non-current net assets IERENE EF LA 236,877 210,382
Net assets BEFEE 209,420 200,763
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A P AR R

10 Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

(c) Material non-controlling interests
(Continued)

10 RAHE QAR (&)
(c) EXRFER#ER(E)

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with

material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised income statement

BBEEAHFZEREm BB 2 AI895
BEXEE(E)

W R E

Changzhou Welling Group

ENBEER
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Revenue WA 365,807 223,294
Profit before income tax HOER TS AR 1,990 32,632
Income tax income/(expense) FTS A, (FAX) 7,311 (8,587)
Profit for the year FEEFHE 9,301 24,045
Profit for the year allocated to DB T IR S Y
non-controlling interests FEFHE 2,803 6,631
Other comprehensive (loss)/income allocated to BT IEEAR R
non-controlling interests Hih2m(EE) W (202) 1,809
Total comprehensive income allocated to ST IEEARE R A
non-controlling interests FEWEBET 2,601 8,440
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FEMKRRME
10 Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 HMIEBARIMRER (&)
(c) Material non-controlling interests (c) EAFEZERMER(E)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with HEE AR EZR I E 2 T85
material non-controlling interests (Continued) BERIRIE (E)
Summarised cash flows REREME
Changzhou Welling Group
ENBEEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHZ2HERE
Cash generated from operations IREEE7IRS 33,195 91,803
Income tax paid =ENIZIEST (2,280) (20)
Net cash generated from operating activities R EA 2S5 30,915 91,783
Net cash used in investing activities WEERSTAZASFHE (45,594) (63,681)
Net cash generated from/(used in) mhEEEELS (A2
financing activities WEFEE 10,682 (29,768)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERFSEBEBYRLFEH (3,997) (1,666)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts FYIzHe BReZEEMR
at beginning of year RITEX 8,639 9,465
Effect on exchange difference ERERETE (47) 840
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FR2\ERRESEEY 4,595 8,639
The information above is the amount before inter-company A EERE R ARIMEIER S -
eliminations.

11 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity 11 BEzmEARZRE
Method

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: BEBEXRANERESBENT
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Associates LN 328,918 296,259
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11

Investments Accounted for Using the Equity
Method (Continued)

11 DESEZEARZRE (E)

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows: W RANERLS TN T -
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T BT
Associates i l/NG]| 41,253 22405

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December
2014, which, in the opinion of the directors, are material to the
Group. The associates as listed below are all unlisted, and held
directly by the Group; the country of incorporation or registration is
also their principal place of business.

Nature of investment in associates as at 31 December 2014 and
2013:

REBR20145F12A31H A FHE&E Q7]
BRESRAHAEBEEERFENAT - T
PSRN AL AT HAEEERERS
B EAMBIR SRR MR EEEE M2
FATE ©

R2014F 2 2013F 12 A31 B 2 & ARG &
M

Place of % of

business/country of ownership Nature of the Measurement
Name of entity incorporation interest relationship method

RS
ERERE E B MR ER Bolk  BREM RN E
Shanxi Huaxiang Group Co.,Ltd. PRC 49 Note (a) Equity
(“Shanxi Huaxiang”)

IFEEMEEAR AR (NLUAEN]) I M5t (a) A
Linkgo-HK Limited (“Linkgo”) Hong Kong 49 Note (b) Equity
EEMRF R AT (HRA ) HE FEE(b) A

(@  Shanxi Huaxiang’s principal activities are manufacturing
and selling precise casting used for the compressor of air
conditioning and refrigerators. Shanxi Huaxiang is a private
company and there is no quoted market price available for its
shares.

(b)  Linkgo’s principal activities are investment holding. Linkgo is a
private company and there is no quoted market price available
for its shares.

@ WAEESANTIZEBIRERHEELR
KiKFGBREHNBTEN - ILEESR
—HERARE - ERMHILETIHIRE -

b) M EBEBZRERR - AR —
BRARR BRI ETIHERE -
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11

Investments Accounted for Using the Equity

Method (Continued)

Summarised financial information for associates

Set out below are the summarised financial information for Shanxi

11 DESEZEARZRE (E)

BE LAl BEERHE

NI AR A AR TR ZE P MR 80 B 75

Huaxiang and Linkgo which are accounted for using the equity BRIEE -
method.
Summarised balance sheet EEEEREBE
Shanxi Huaxiang Linkgo Total
WFEER il 4@t
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BETT A%TT B¥Tr  BETr  B¥%Tx A%t
Current ik
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBLZED 304,266 160,607 - - 304,266 160,607
Other current assets (excluding cash) EtRBIEE(TEIERE) 881,717 907,395 - - 881,717 907,395
Total current assets mEEEE 1,185,983 1,068,002 - - 1,185,983 1,068,002
Financial liabilities SEEE
(excluding trade payables) (TEREE S RN (728,895)  (530,597) (23) (e2)  (728,918)  (630,619)
Other current liabilities HEingas
(including trade payables) (BEBZEMNR) (555,975)  (544,546) (182) (150)  (556,157)  (544,696)
Total current liabilties REBAR (1,284,870)  (1,075,143) (209) (172 (1,285,075) (1,075,319)
Non-current FRE
Assets EE 850,268 810,719 36,089 44,286 886,357 855,005
Financial liabilities SRAER (44,746)  (160,010) - - (44,746)  (160,010)
Other liabilities HibE®E (9,896) (18,355) - - (9,896) (18,355)
Total non-current liabilities BERHaR (54,642)  (178,369) - - (54,642)  (178,369)
Net assets BEFE 696,739 625213 35,884 44,114 732,623 669,327
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11

Investments Accounted for Using the Equity 11 UUERZARZIKRE(E)
Method (Continued)

Summarised financial information for associates (Continued) BE LA EERIE ()

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

2HREREE
Shanxi Huaxiang Linkgo Total
LFEES AT @t
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
BT AT  B¥Tn  B%Tr  B%Tr A%t

Revenue WA 1,532,972 1,409,240 15,773 13,441 1,548,745 1,422,681
Depreciation and amortisation mEREH (82,438) (80,854) - - (82,438) (80,854)
Interest income FIBMA 5,150 1,122 - - 5,150 1,122
Interest expense FERL (47,156) (47,369) - - (47,156) (47,369)
Profit before income tax MBS ATFIE 108,478 64,694 7,544 11,011 116,022 75,705
Income tax expense PSR (20,090) (15,797) - - (20,090) (15,797)
Profit for the year FERE 88,388 48,897 7,544 11,011 95,932 59,908
Dividends received from BB A TR

associate KRR B - - 15,773 13,441 15,773 13,441
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11 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity 11 LUUEZFZEZARZIRE(E)
Method (Continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information Fr 2B BRI LT R %
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to BT 25| 15 E R 2 BB 4N B R R | A
the carrying amount of its interest in associates: HI¥TERE ¢
Summarised financial information B ERBE
Shanxi Huaxiang Linkgo Total
WFER AT @t
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000
B¥TT A%t  BETx BNt BETR  BETR

Opening net assets 1 January  1B1RZENEERE 625213 571,741 44,114 46,544 669,327 618,285
Profit for the year FERFE 88,388 48,897 7,544 11,011 95,932 59,908
Dividend paid BiRE - (13908  (15773)  (13441)  (15773)  (27,349)
Currency translation differences INETEERE (16,862) 18,483 - - (16,862) 18,483
Consolidated closing net assets HSAFREEFE 696,739 625,213 35,885 44114 732,624 669,327
Non-controlling interests JEiRiES (103,760)  (108,297) - - (103,760)  (108,297)

Closing net assets attributable to #H ABLEREERE

the owners 592,979 516,916 35,885 44114 628,864 561,030
Interest in associates (49%, 49%) & 1\ AR (49% > 49%) 290,560 253,289 17,583 21616 308,143 274,905
Fair value adjustments AnBERAE 1,141 1,699 18,272 18,486 19,413 20,185
Currency translation differences NI EES (1,2893) (1,278) 2,645 2,447 1,362 1,169
Carrying value REE 290,418 253,710 38,500 42549 328918 296,259
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A P AR R

12 Available-For-Sale Financial Assets

12 JHEESHEE

Group

AEE

HK$'000

BT T

At 1 January 2013 20131 A1H 102,819
Net gains transferred to equity F e T 5,823
Currency translation differences INBITH ZERE 3,317
At 31 December 2013 2013412 H31H 111,959
At 1 January 2014 201491 A1H 111,959
Net gains transferred to equity Fl R E 7,071
Currency translation differences INEEITE =R (352)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12831H 118,678

(@  The available-for-sale financial assets represent the equity
interests in a unlisted company, Midea Group Finance Co.,
Ltd (the “Finance Company”), which shall provide a range of

(@) FHHESREEREIFLMAREN
SEMBERAR(THBAF L) B
B MBAREHERTEEBEEES

=

financial services as approved by the China Banking Regulatory S ([hERES DitERHE— RIS

Commission (“CBRC”). The registered capital of the Finance
Company was RMB1,500 million while GD Welling held 5%
equity interest in it. The Group has no significant influence on

the Finance Company.

(b)  The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets was

AR - EEMERBARKISET
EREERGES%NE - REEY
MBARLEBEATES -

b FAHEESREENAAEERES

A

determined by the directors. A gain arising from the fair value BT - aABEESELORIER

change amounting to HK$7,071,000 (2013: HK$5,823,000)
was recognised in other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The directors assessed the fair

7,071,000 (20134 : ¥ 5,823,000
TT)REE2014F 12 A31B L FERNHE
L EEWREAER - ERTRRERE

PAN

value of the equity investment and are in the opinion that the MAREE WRRN20144 2013

fair value of the Finance Company approximately its net assets

as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

F12A3HUBRARZ AR BEERE
ERERE -
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e EmRMET
13 Inventories 13 F&
Group
TEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Raw materials Rt 184,832 220,163
Work-in-progress R 21,473 30,293
Finished goods (Note) UK G (P E) 785,641 626,273
991,946 876,729

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$6,886,297,000 (2013:
HK$6,544,347,000).

The Group had written-off provision of HK$7,091,000 in 2014 (2013:
HK$9,428,000) that was made in prior years. The Group has sold
all the related goods and the amount has been included in ‘cost of
goods sold’ in the income statement.

Note: As at 31 December 2014, the Group had finished goods
which were delivered and kept in stores at customers’
location amounting to approximately HK$251,401,000 (2013:
HK$322,310,000). No sales have been recognised for these
finished goods as the risks and rewards have not been
passed to the customers.
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1785 5k 7K 4 1 6,886,297,000 7T (2013 4F = #
#£6,544,347,0007T) EFER AR Z W AHE
EREARNA o

R2014F - AEECMBEEBRAFE T
12 2 BB 7,091,000 7T (20134 : B 1
9,428,0007T) - ANEEE HEMARBER -
SO AWK EEERKAIA -

BisE : M2014F12A31 8 - ZEBERZH
K 17 BAE & P 4 B ) BN mh 498
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MR M

14 Trade and Other Receivables 14 EFZREMERR

Group Company
rEE ¥ NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETT BT T BT
Trade receivables (note (a)) B WK (k@) 1,278,733 1,232,725 - -
Less: allowance for impairment B ORE R
(note (c)) (Fft5E(e)) (48,111) (41,750) - -
Trade receivables — net E el — %58 1,230,622 1,190,975 - -
Notes receivable (note (a),(d)) FEUEIR (BT 5E(a) ~ (d)) 699,385 1,049,262 - -
Amounts due from related parties JE s BB 5 SR 0B
(note (a), 36(0)) (K@) ~ 36(0)) 764,470 478,010 - -
2,694,477 2,718,247 - _
Prepayments SENES 94,580 108,581 485 485
Other receivables H fth e sk 110,644 70,209 - -
Recoverable value-added tax —net  aJ Uk [BI#2{EF —F 58
(note (e)) (K¥7Ee) 34,589 123,921 - -
2,934,290 3,020,958 485 485
Less: non-current portion R FEBNERER
— Prepayments for property, plant —JFERZE - BB &
and equipment HBE (55,811) (24,705) - -
2,878,479 2,996,253 485 485

R2014F X 2013F 12 A31H » REBMAR
RIZEShEMERGZ AR BEEEEKRAE
M5 o

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the fair values of trade and
other receivables of the Group and the Company approximate their
carrying amounts.
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A P AR R

14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 14

The carrying values of trade and other receivables of the Group are

denominated in the following currencies:

BZ R HMBYRKE)

REEE S R EMEYHR 2 RAER T IEE
5I1E

Group

rEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
RMB AE#E 2,138,642 2,367,387
usD Ev 631,424 477,288
EUR BT 162,075 175,398
Others HAth 2,149 885
2,934,290 3,020,958

(@)  The majority of the Group’s trade receivables are with credit @ AEEXRIHEFEWKZEERNTTF

period from 30 to 150 days. As at 31 December 2014 and
2013, the ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables,

amounts due from related parties and notes receivable

respectively are as follows:

30HE150H ° 20144 20135124
318 - EHENRFERE - BRI 5
TR ENER 2 BRER DT DRI -

Group

rEE
Gross trade receivables: B ERFEEE 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEET T BT
Within 3 months 31 A AR 1,066,851 1,021,925
3 to 6 months 3%61EA 191,866 200,378
Over 6 months EI - 20,016 10,422
1,278,733 1,232,725

Group

£33
Amounts due from related parties: FEUR BRES 5 FRIE 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Within 3 months 31E A AR 723,650 478,010
3 to 6 months 3%61EA 39,739 -
Over 6 months 61E A E 1,081 -
764,470 478,010
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14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 14 ESREMEWRR(E)

(@)  (Continued) @ (&)
Group
rEE
Notes receivable: EWERE : 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Within 3 months 31E A AR 320,271 86,591
3 to 6 months 3%61E A 379,114 962,671
699,385 1,049,262
As at 31 December 2014, the trade receivables of R2014F 12 A31H  E S EKF A
HK$1,184,492,000 (2013: HK$1,142,539,000) are fully #1,184,492,000 7t ( 2013 F : B &
performing. 1,142,539,0007T ) FREVEETT ©
(b)  As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of HK$117,641,000 () R2014F12A31H - B FEKK
(2013: HK$120,614,000) were past due but not impaired. These 7B # 117,641,000 7T (2013 F : ¥
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is 120,614,0007T) B8 EMERRKE © &
no significant financial difficulty and based on past experience, the REVESEANBERENBE LIRS - B
overdue amounts can be recovered. The ageing analysis of these REBALES - @ERIEN FYE -
trade receivables is as follows: ZLE FEBGR 2 BRI DTN -
Group
rEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
3 to 6 months 3Z61E A 117,234 118,519
Over 6 months 61E A £ 407 2,095
117,641 120,614
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A P AR R

14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

(c) As at 31 December 2014, trade and other receivables of
approximately HK$94,241,000 (2013: HK$90,186,000) were
impaired. The provision in relation thereto was approximately
HK$48,111,000 (2013: HK$41,750,000) as at 31 December
2014. The individual impaired receivables mainly relate to
past due receivables from customers. The ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

14 BEZRHMEWRR(E)

©

R2014F12A381H - B 5 RHEAMAER
FREY M 94,241,0007T (20134 = B
90,186,000 7T ) (B ° 720145 12 A
1R BB E X B 848,111,000 7T
(20134 : % 41,750,000 ) ° 1@ 5
BERKREZEE S BEEKIES
B o L FEUGR 2 BRERINT

Group

AEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
3to 6 months 3z6fi A 74,632 81,859
Over 6 months 61E A LA 19,609 8,327
94,241 90,186

Movements of the Group’s allowance for impairment of trade
receivables is as follows:

REEZZREREBERBEZS N
T

Group

AEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Beginning of the year F4) 41,750 31,360
Provision for impairment TRE B 10,269 10,926
Bad debts written off SRR S (3,790) (1,659
Currency translation differences INEBITE R (118) 1,123
End of the year FR 48,111 41,750

The creation and release of allowance for impaired receivables
have been included in administrative expenses in the income
statement (note 25). Amounts charged to the allowance
account are generally written off when there is no expectation
of recovering additional cash.

] 46 Welling Holding Limited | BEBi=RER A A

¥ KRR 2 RSO BB E AT A
HmRZITHFZ A (MEE25) » IR
el EIEINRE - RIFFABBIR 228

—fRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

©)]

(Continued)

The provision written back represented the subsequent
collection of previously provided impaired amounts.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity
periods within six months. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

The Group has paid input value-added taxes (“VAT”) to the
State Tax Bureau for the goods purchased from its suppliers.
In accordance with the relevant PRC tax regulations, these
VAT can be offset with the output VAT arising from future sales
but are not refundable. The balances at 31 December 2014
and 2013 represented net input VAT after offsetting the output
VAT payable by the Group for domestic sales made during the
year.

14 BEZRHMEWRR(E)

©

BROBBERZRKEZEBTRERES
L

5 REMBR T BT EEE
EBE -

BRAEHROEANI 2 RITALR
e NG RBZEXNEERR S Lt
BERRBAZ AR(EE - AREYLES
BEMERREER -

AEEESEERENNERABE RS
BRI EESER (BER]) - BRI
BHEPEBEER - ZERETAHEE
RORHEEEMHIBIGER - TR
i o N2014F &2013F 12 A31 B4 &
FE R S 7R & [ 48 (A ik B A 8 S PE T AT 8
TR BT B E TR E 58 -
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A P AR R

15 Pledged Bank Deposits 15
Certain bank balances were pledged against bank acceptance

notes issued by the Group and these deposits will be released upon

the maturity of the relevant bank acceptance notes issued. These
pledged bank deposits bear interest at bank saving’s rates of 3.08%

per annum (2013: 2.85% per annum). All pledged bank deposits are
denominated in RMB.

SEFRTER

ETIRITERIERRNEBET R 2 RITHN
EBR R - MRS FFERE L 2 BERT
AN EBRTHARR - ZECEMRITFERIZ
SRITIF N7 %3.08% (2013 : FF%2.85%)
TR A EBRITFRAAREEHE -

16 Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 BeRHELEEY
Group Company
AEEH ¥ NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BEET T BT
Bank deposits and cash on hand RITEREFERS 1,939,564 1,825,010 6,524 10,173

The weighted average effective interest rate on bank deposits was
0.67% per annum (2013: 0.73% per annum).

WITHERZMEFHERFHNEXAE0.67%
(20134 : FH|%F0.73%) °

17 Share Capital and Share Options 17 BARZERRE
(@) Share capital (a) BA
2014 2013

Number of Number of

shares shares
(’000) HK$’000 ('000) HK$’'000

BOEE 3%E - 4E]
(Fm) BT T (Fi=) BT T

Authorised: (Note (i)) EE - (FIFEG)
Ordinary shares of HikmE
HK$0.5 each (Note (i) BEE0.57T 2

L im AR (PR (Gi)) - - 4,000,000 2,000,000
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17 Share Capital and Share Options
(Continued)

(@) Share capital (Continued)

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

17 BARBREGE)

(a)

[ ENE)

HER  CBITRAR :

Number of shares

(000) HK$'000
B ER (FR) BT T
At 1 January 2013 F2013F1 A1H 2,821,713 1,410,856
Shares issued under the share option REERETEEETZ
scheme (Note (iv)) gt (BT (v)) 27,494 13,747
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R2013F12A31H &
20141 81H 2,849,207 1,424,603
Transition to no-par value regime on M2014F3A3AMER
3 March 2014 (Note (iii)) EEEE S HIE (B REGi)) - 3,531,044
Shares issued under the share option REERETEE®ITZ
scheme (Note (v)) B&fn (FaEw) 12,826 9,994
At 31 December 2014 H2014F12 A31H 2,862,033 4,965,641

Notes:

(i)

Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), which took effect on 3 March 2014, the concept of
authorised share capital no longer exists.

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Company’s
shares no longer have a par or nominal value with effect
from 3 March 2014. There is no impact on the number
of shares in issue or the relative entitlement of any of the
members of the Company as a result of this transition.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in
section 37 of Schedule 11 to Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), on 3 March 2014, any amount
standing to the credit of the share premium account has
become part of the Company’s share capital.

Wi

(iii)

RIE20145E3 A3F A H(E B
NEHEDIN(E B LG FE622E) -
AT EAERAZ S TBREE

RBCEB R UGN (BB EGIE
622% )5 135f% - H20144373
BRAQRKROHTBAEEHE -
ZBERERAR T B ETRG
B kA BAEE R R
2 .

RIBCE B R RRGID (BAEEDIE
6228 ) R 11 BI7IEEHIA B
HIRE » 201443 A38 » AR
AR AHE R EREME S &5
AR ABRAR—E5 -
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17 Share Capital and Share Options
(Continued)

(@) Share capital (Continued)

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

)

The share options exercised by the employees of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013, resulted
in 27,494,000 shares being issued at HK$0.785
each, yielding proceeds after transaction costs of
approximately HK$21,374,000, which was recognised
as share capital and share premium amounting to
HK$13,747,000 and HK$7,627,000 respectively.
The weighted average closing price of shares of the
Company at the time of exercise of share options was
HK$1.76.

The share options exercised by the Directors and
the employees of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014, resulted in 12,826,000 shares being
issued at HK$0.785 each, yielding proceeds after
transaction costs of approximately HK$9,994,000, which
was recognised as share capital. The weighted average
closing price of shares of the Company at the time of
exercise of share options was HK$2.19.
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(a)

[ ENE)

BEER  BRTRAE - (&)

B - (%)

(iv)

HE2013F12 A1 A LFE -
AEEEBSTEBERE B
27,494,000 % i 1 1& & A% & 1
0.785TC 2 BH& 31T - IR 5B
1% 2 FT 15 5k 18 497 15 21,374,000
TC 0 o R HERR B S 13,747,000
TL NS #7,627,0007T 79 I AN I iR
Tm(E o EREEITER - AQ
AR 2 INE T B RB
1.767T °

HE2014F12A31BIEFE » K&
SEE=RESTERRE &
812,826,000 3% i% {7 1z & J A4 1
0.785 THIBERETT KBRS
B 1% MFT1S 38 4074 %9,994,000
TL o HERABRAE - EREETE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

17 Share Capital and Share Options 17 RARERE(E)

(Continued)

(b) Share options (b) EEARAE

The share option scheme adopted on 27 June 2003 (the “2003
Share Option Scheme”) was terminated before its expiration
on 26 June 2013 and a new share option scheme (the “2013
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders of
the Company at the Company’s annual general meeting held
on 30 May 2013.

Following the expiry of the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant share options to eligible participants as
recognition and acknowledgement of the contributions that
the eligible participants have made or may make to the Group
or any affiliates; and to attract, retain and motivate talented
eligible participants to strive for the future developments and
expansion of the Group and to provide the Company with a
flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the eligible
participants pursuant to the terms of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme. Eligible participants of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme include (1) any full-time or part-time employees or
potential employees, executives or officers of the Group or any
affiliates; (2) any directors (including non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) of the Group or any
affiliates; or (3) anyone who, as to be determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion, have contributed or will contribute to
the Group or any affiliates.

20034 6 H27 B £F4N 2 B8 IR #E 51 &
(T2003F g it 21 1) B R20134F6
R26B EmAT#IE - M EARE 2
([2013F A tEEt 2l 1) E 201345 A
S0RBITZ AR RIRKBAFAE LEAR
NEIIRRERA

2003 BRI EE M 1& - AR AIA]
MAEERSHEERTDERE  UEER
A BIRDHE AN B o S
REIBER AT BE VB R ¢ PARIR
S - BBRYEB NG ERSEE
RAEERRKRERERARZZRE -
W AN A AR RS B BUR AR #52013
FRERETESINERMEEBR2EER
g E - 48E - BE - wmE RS
7 o 2013 AT BN & B8 mE
BIEMN RSB EMBB AR ZEME
BaRBESRERES - TTHRABHS
WERE  QAEESNTWEBAR 2T
MER(BIEENTES B IENT
EF) RQEFERDERAER
EESTABBEARDIELRBIELE
B2 EAATL -
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MR M

17 Share Capital and Share Options 17 RARERE(E)

(Continued)

(b) Share options (Continued) (b) HEEREGE)

The 2013 Share Option Scheme is valid for a period of 10
years commencing from 30 May 2013. The limit on the number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2013
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not exceed 30% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of
the 2013 Share Option Scheme (being 283,724,682 shares),
but the Company may seek approval of its shareholders in
general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the 2013
Share Option Scheme.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to each eligible participant in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess
of such limit must be separately approved by the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting.
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MR M

17 Share Capital and Share Options 17 RARERE(E)

(Continued)

(b) Share options (Continued) (b) HEEREGE)

Share options granted under the 2013 Share Option Scheme
to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or their respective associates, must be approved
by the Independent Non-executive directors of the Company
(excluding Independent Non-executive Director who is the
grantee of the share options). In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates, in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of each grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant,
must be subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting
of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted by the
grantee with payment of HK$1 as consideration within 28 days
from the date of approval for the grant of share options by the
Board. The exercise period of the share options granted may
be determined by the Board and in any event, such period
shall not be longer than 10 years from the date upon which
any particular share options are granted in accordance with
the 2013 Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of
grant of share options, which must be a business day; and (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
share options, which must be a business day.

As at 31 December 2014, 3,180,000 share options remain
outstanding and exercisable under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme. No share options were granted to any eligible
participants since the adoption of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme.

RIR2013F IR BIMA AR ES -
BRI THRABREZREKFES A8
BAREBERE  BEAAGBYIE
HITES(TRIESFABRERRAZ
B IERITE R ) HE o 1IN - REE
BRHBHS(BIEZB) ILEM12(E A 5
M AR REZRENBLIENITE
FYRESTAZEABEARD ZEM
R - B S NBRARREEHITR
BB Z01% LB E(RIBEEARBNE
BREABZROETETE)BBAK
5,000,0007C * BIZHER AR AIRER RS
R -

ERATTREFSHERLEREE R
HEEF28AA » U BT Z REE
MR HBRERE - TR HBRREZTT
EHARESSETE  EERNAZH
PR NSHRBAR R 201 3F BB AR I AT &1 5 1
EfA4 T BB A B AR AT 104F

BREZTEBRAELIRTIIZERE
IRELBEEER(AREXR)EE
BARZABERAR (B )& H
BRARZARABOKRHE - kiR
ERFHBEREEA(BEREER)AS
E=ZRABIMEARERARIAR
B FHRTE -

2014F12 A31 8 » {RIKE20034F B %
51 £ 15 A 3,180,00017 5 A% 48 14 R 17
ERA] FITE - B2013F AR E B
Rz AR BMEARNSER2EEE
RERE
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17 Share Capital and Share Options 17 RARERE(E)

(Continued)
(b) Share options (Continued)

Movements in the share options granted under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2014

(b) BRECGE)

REE2014%F12A31 BILFE © BIE
20037 B R 1 &1 2 AR B B

were as follows: N
Exercise Balance  Exercised Balance
price as at during Lapsed asat
(Note (i) Exercisable 1 January the year during 31 December
Name Date of Grant HK$ period 2014 (Note (i) the year 2014
g 120145 RER 2014
GE) 1818 BT RER  12A31A
#E Riti A8 it iy &8 GED) BA¥ 288
Directors gz
Mr. Zhou Xiangyang BrsLE 09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010- 5,400,000  (5,400,000) - -
31/03/2017
Mr. Lam Ming Yung B 30/07/2007 3.900 30/07/2007- 400,000 - - 400,000
29/07/2017
09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010- 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - -
31/03/2017
Mr. Jiang Deging ZEERER 09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010- 5,400,000  (5,400,000) - -
(resigned on 3 Jun 2014) 201446 A3A 31/03/2017
B
Ms. Chen Chunhua BETZL(R 30/07/2007 3.900 30/07/2007- 400,000 - (400,000) -
(resigned on 21 Oct 2013) 2013104218 29/07/2017 (Note (i)
BHE) (M3 Gi)
Employees &g
In aggregate At 30/07/2007 3.900 30/07/2007- 700,000 - - 700,000
29/07/2017
09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010- 3,106,000  (1,026,000) - 2,080,000
31/03/2017
Total At 16,406,000  (12,826,000) (400,000 3,180,000
Notes: BiEE

(i) The weighted average closing price of the shares of the
Company immediately before the date on which the
share options were exercised was HK$2.2.

(i) Ms. Chen Chunhua resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 21 October
2013. She was granted 400,000 share options on 30
July 2007 under the 2003 Share Option Scheme of the
Company, entitling her to subscribe for 400,000 shares
of the Company at an exercise price of HK$3.9 per
share. These options were lapsed on 21 April 2014.
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A P AR R

17 Share Capital and Share Options
(Continued)

(b) Share options (Continued)

The fair values of the options granted are determined using the
Binomial Valuation Model (“the Model”). Key assumptions of

the Model are set out below:

Date of grant: 9 January 2009
Risk-free rate: 1.299%
Expected dividend yield: 3%
Expected volatility of the market price of

the Company’s shares: 52.34%
Expected option life: 8.2 years

Fair value as at the date of grant
(approximately):

HK$25,229,000

Date of grant: 30 July 2007
Risk-free rate: 4.13%
Expected dividend yield: 0%
Expected volatility of the market price of

the Company’s shares: 65.38%
Expected option life: 5.23 years
Fair value as at the date of grant

(approximately): HK$3,453,000

The Model requires the input of subjective assumptions,

including the volatility of share price. As changes in subjective

input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,

in the directors’ opinion, the Model does not necessarily

provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of share

options.

17 BARBREGE)

(b)

BREGR)

ERbBBREZ AABERBI AKX
RERL J([ZEE ] EE - 2R

TEEREBFIIT

Ee=E 200941 B9R
R AR 1.299%
EERER - 3%
ARERDTIEZ

TEHIR R - 52.34%
ekt 2 THEAF Y - 8.26F
RELBESZ AR E

(5% - 7 #£05,0229,0007C
)= 200747 A30H
R 4.13%
TEHREE 0%
AAFRNTIEZ

TEERR R - 65.38%
FEIRIE . TEEAE A 5.23%
REREESHZ AR E

(BE&020) 75 #53,453,0007T

ZRBEERAATERR(BERE

KIE) c HRBATERRZESHEY
RAEFBFERNERATE  REER

o RRILRVEAEBEREAAEZ

ME—TRISETT% °
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e RRME
18 Other Reserves 18 HtfEE
Share-  Available-
Statutory ~ General Enterprise Share based  for-sale
reserve  reserve expansion option  payment revaluation Exchange Merger
Group fund fund fund  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve Total
NBE
EERE  -REE  OCERR BhE ERN  AHEE
piN-3) B¢ £2 £ ffE MGG EMRE EXRE  AHRE At
HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00 — HKS000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HK$000
EMTT  BRTT  A%Trn  A%Tr BT A%t BETr AT BETx
Note (g) Note (a) Note (a) Note (b), (c) Note (d)
Mz(a) Wizle) Bt Kz (o), (0 Wzt)
Balance at 1 January 2013 H2013F1 1R R 5241 145832 136,679 25,632 19,428 10,212 164,747 (3,268,013 (2,750,247)
Share option scheme ERiEE
- value of services provided —FriRitiRis 2 B - - - 147 - - - - 147
Change in value of avallable-for- ~ AJEESREE
sale financial assets BEEH - - - - - 3,375 - - 3,375
Transfer to statutory reserve EEDITRE 56 10559 10,559 - - - - - 21660
Currency translation differences ~ JMEHTE£E - - - - - - 8922 - 89222
Balance at 31 December 2013 A2013% 12831 A &8 5783 166391 147,238 25,779 19,428 13587 253969 (3,268,013 (2,635,843)
Balance at 1 January 2014 H201451 1R R 5783 156,391 147,238 25,7179 19,423 13587 253,969 (3,258,013) (2,635,843)
Contrioution by owners relating to - B35 ADRH BERS
share-based payment (Note ()~ HATEEI(FizE(C)) - - - - 11,700 - - - 11,700
Change in value of avallable-for- A ESREE
sale financial assets BEEH - - - - - 6,011 - - 6,011
Transfer to statutory reserve EEDITRE 810 44192 44,192 - - - - - 89,194
Currency translation differences SN EEE - - - - - - (10,99) - (10,996)
Balance at 31 December 2014  A20145128 31 A &8k 6,593 200,583 191,430 25,179 31,123 19,598 242,973 (3,258,013) (2,539,934)
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18 Other Reserves (Continued)

18 Hfthfw#s ()

Share
option Exchange
Company reserve reserve Total
RATF BRERE ELRE &5t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
Balance at 1 January 2013 H2013F1 A1 &8 25,632 510,864 536,496
Share option scheme HBAx iR &l
— value of services provided — TRt 2 BE 147 - 147
Currency translation differences SN YT =RE - 178,533 178,533
Balances at 31 December 2013 M2013F12A31 H &8k 25,779 689,397 715,176
Balance at 1 January 2014 A20145F1 1B 48 25,779 689,397 715,176
Currency translation differences SN R - (20,076) (20,076)
Balances at 31 December 2014 H20145F12 331 B &8 25,779 669,321 695,100

(@)

The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to follow the
laws and regulations of the PRC and their articles of association.
These subsidiaries are required to provide for certain statutory
funds, namely, general reserve fund and enterprise expansion
fund, which are appropriated from net profit after taxation
but before dividend distribution based on the local statutory
accounts prepared in accordance with accounting principles
and relevant financial regulations applicable to enterprises
established in the PRC. These PRC subsidiaries are required
to allocate at least 10% of its net profit to the reserve fund until
the balance of such fund has reached 50% of its registered
capital. Such appropriations are determined at the discretion of
the directors. The general reserve fund can only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated deficit
or increase capital.

AAREFREZHEABRAETHEDE
BRIEH - URBEBZAEMERAD -
ZEMBARARRETEEESR 2
A REFEEESRECEERES - B
BERBRERTRE DR Z AN PR
B o ZAENRERP BN RER 2
G RAIMAEREM B ERMAER < ER
EERBRE o WEPBMERRER
HAMNSEP10% R EZREES  BE
LA RESHEHREEEEMER 250%
Bl WEBRFREFHEEE - —K
REZSEEEME RIERIA A BIE
HHRFBIESIENER -
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18 Other Reserves (Continued)

()

Midea, the intermediate holding company of the Company,
implemented an incentive share plan for core management
staff of Midea and its major subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2012, under which Midea Holding,
the controlling shareholder of Midea, transferred its equity
interest in Ningbo Meicheng Equity Investment Partnership
(“Ningbo Meicheng”) to the participants to the said incentive
share plan. Ningbo Meicheng holds an aggregate interest
of 3% (representing 30 million shares) in the share capital of
Midea. Further to the arrangement of the incentive share plan,
Midea Holding transferred 3% of its equity interest in Ningbo
Meicheng to two executive directors of the Company, namely,
Mr. Zhou Xiangyang and Mr. Jiang Deging (resigned on 3 June
2014) on 22 November 2012.

Since the Company has no obligation to settle the above
share-based payment transaction granted by Midea Holding,
the difference between the fair value of the shares transferred
and the cash consideration paid for such shares amounting
to HK$19,423,000 was treated as an equity-settled share-
based payment. Award of the said shares were vested
immediately and this share-based payment were recognised
as expenses in the Group’s consolidated income statement.
The Group accounted for the shares granted to its Directors
as a contribution from its ultimate holding company and
credited it to share-based payment reserve. The fair value of
the shares transferred as estimated by management using
market approach by referencing the market capitalisation and
Price/Earnings multiple for the listed and unlisted subsidiaries
controlled by Midea respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

18 Other Reserves (Continued)

©)]

On 18 February 2014, Midea granted share options to the core
management staffs of Midea and its subsidiaries, under which
2,145,000 share options was granted to the Directors and
senior managements of the Group. A bonus issue of shares
on the basis of 15 bonus shares for every 10 existing shares
to the shareholders was approved at Midea’s annual general
meeting held on 21 April 2014. Therefore, the number of share
options granted to the Directors and senior managements of
the Group was adjusted to 5,362,500 share options.

Since the Company has no obligation to settle the above
share-based payment transaction granted by Midea,
the fair value of the share options granted amounting to
HK$11,700,000 was treated as an equity-settled share-base
payment for the year ended 31 December 2014. Award of the
said share options were vested in three tranches subject to the
achievement of Midea’s performance target and this share-
based payment were recognised as expenses in the Group’s
consolidated income statement. The Group accounted for the
shares granted to its Directors and senior managements as a
contribution from its ultimate holding company and credited it
to share-based payment reserve.

Merger reserve represents the difference between the
consideration paid for the acquisition under common control,
and the aggregate nominal value of share capital/paid-up
capital of the subsidiaries comprising the Group contributed by
the owners of the Company.

18 Hfthfw#s ()

©
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2 A =
FEMBHRRME
19 Borrowings 19 B
Group
KEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Non-current FEENER
Long-term bank borrowings, unsecured REARI TR — R - 43,083
Current BN
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured FEEASRITIE N — IR 87,731 340,554
87,731 383,637
At 31 December 2014, the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable M2014F12A31 8 + AEBERITERZER
as follows: BERAT
Group
rEH
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Within one year 1FR 87,731 340,554
110 2 years 1224 - 43,083
87,731 383,637
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19 Borrowings (Continued) 19 ER(E)
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes RNEE ZEFREG 2 FIREBRE R EHNEHN
and the contractual repricing dates are as follows: TEHHWOT :
Group
AEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Borrowings with fixed rate as: TERMER
6 months or less 6IE A AT - 254,388
Borrowings with floating rate as: FEER
6 months or less 61E A AT 87,731 43,083
6 months to 1 year 6lEAZE14F - 43,083
Over 1 year 1F A E - 43,083
87,731 129,249
87,731 383,637
The effective interest rates of the above floating rate borrowings RER RV BERZ BRFHER3.08%
at the end of the year were 3.08% per annum (2013: 3.38% per (20134 : FH|%3.38%) °
annum).
The carrying amount of bank borrowings approximates their fair RRMIRFEER @ RITERZRAEREELR
value, as the impact of discounting is not significant. The fair values nEEME % ”‘“fﬂﬁ)’ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ M"'JIZ 32%
are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the (20134 : 2.22%) * RS MEMMFTHE - I
borrowing rate of 2.32% (2013: 2.22%) and are within level 2 of the E%)\Eﬁi;‘ﬁ%&’&ﬁ{%ﬁ%% o
fair value hierarchy.
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the B REENA T ERESE -
following currencies.
Group
rEH
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
RMB AR - 254,388
usD E 87,731 129,249
87,731 383,637
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A P AR R

20 Deferred Government Grants

20 EEBATFERY

Group

rEE

HK$'000

BT

At 1 January 2013 201351 H1H 22,802
Receipt of grants A 10,692
Credited to income statement T AMEE (483)
Currency translation difference SN 5 1,043
At 31 December 2013 72013412 H31H 33,954
At 1 January 2014 7201441 A18 33,954
Receipt of grants A 1,262
Credited to income statement T AMEE (486)
Currency translation difference INEITE 5 (115)
At 31 December 2014 7201412 H31H 34,615

The amounts represented subsidies granted by local government

authority in the PRC which related to acquisition of leasehold land

and land use rights and high technology research and development

program.

The deferred government grants will be amortised to other gains from

the point at which the relevant assets are ready for use on a straight-

line basis over the assets’ useful lives.
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maR

S Rk B EE

21 Trade and Other Payables

21 BFREMEBARK

Group Company
rEE RATF
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT BT T BT
Trade payables (note (a)) B SRS (M) 1,560,513 1,449,210 - -
Notes payable (note (a),(0)) FENZIER (5@ (b)) 1,490,024 1,609,364 - -
Amounts due to related parties e RS 5 R0E
(note (a), 36(0)) (FizE(a)) - 36(0) 79,948 60,815 - -
3,130,485 3,119,389 - -
Provision for staff welfare and bonus & T 18 Hl| Kz fE AT s 134,399 144,589 - -
Accruals TERRE 19,456 22,494 - -
Advances from customers TR FERX 15,149 18,600 - -
Other payables HAb R 117,453 131,575 15,856 10,494
3,416,942 3,436,647 15,856 10,494
(@)  The ageing analysis of the trade payables, notes payable and @ AEEEZENK  EBNEERRIENH
amounts due to related parties of the Group is as follows: BT RIB 2 BRER DTN T -
Group
AEME
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Within 3 months 31E A AR 2,595,808 2,169,132
3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 528,561 917,813
Over 6 months 61E A £ 6,116 32,444
3,130,485 3,119,389
(o)  The balance represents non-interest bearing bank acceptance (o) BHEGEHEARERZEL 2T BIRITHE

notes issued by the Group with maturity periods of less

than six months. As at 31 December 2014, certain notes

payable were pledged by bank deposits of approximately

HK$79,928,000 (2013: HK$114,284,000).

HEYE - BIEREAR D R6ME A - 12014
F12A318 - B TENEBEURITF
FRH) B #79,928,0007T (20134 : EHE
114,284,0007T) E AR
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FEMKRRME
22 Derivative Financial Instruments 2 {TESmITHE
Group
RAEHE
2014 2013
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
EE aE BE af&E
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEET T BT T ST T
Commaodity futures contracts (a) EmEEE D) 116 6,731 8,109 -
Foreign exchange forward contracts (b) 7ME & 814 49(b) 25,859 9,870 18,019 3,017
25,975 16,601 26,128 3,017

(@  The Group has entered into various copper and aluminum
futures contracts to manage the fluctuation of copper and
aluminum price which did not meet the criteria for hedge
accounting. The fair value loss of the non-hedging copper
and aluminum futures contracts amounting to approximately
HK$17,614,000 (note 24) were dealt within the consolidated
income statement during the year (2013: HK$6,850,000).

The notional principal amounts of outstanding commodity
futures contracts as at 31 December 2014 were
HK$204,328,000 (2013: HK$224,125,000).

(b)  The Group has entered into various foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage the fluctuation of foreign currencies
which did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. The fair
value gain of non-hedging foreign exchange forward contracts
amounting to approximately HK$24,182,000 (note 24), were
dealt within the consolidated income statement during the year
(2013: HK$42,251,000).

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign
exchange forward contracts as at 31 December 2014 were
HK$1,141,587,000 (2013: HK$1,825,876,000).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair value of the derivative assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

23

Deferred Income Tax

23 RSB

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences

under the liability method using taxation rates applicable to the

companies comprising the Group.

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax

liabilities is as follows:

AL 1 B4R B (4 5 B 2 B e S L
TATERZ BREYEE -

BIEPTISTRE E MBS HBEZ D70

T~

Group
rEH
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Deferred income tax assets: BEFTSRHEE ¢
- Deferred income tax assets to — 1218 AR E 2
be recovered within 12 months RIEFTEHEE 44,631 38,392
Deferred income tax liabilities: BIEFTSHAE -
— Deferred income tax liabilities to —R12{E R igRkr 2
be released after more than 12 months REFTISTHAE 90,137 76,827
— Deferred income tax liabilities to — 1218 A AR 2
be released within 12 months BEFSHAE 29,870 33,863
120,007 110,690
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A P AR R

23 Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during

the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

23 EEFREH (&)

REE BAERBRS ADEER NI HAARAT -
BEFMSTHEERBERFAZEBHNOT

Deferred income tax assets: EEFBHERE :
Deferred
Impairment Fair value Unpaid government
losses losses accruals grant Total
DREE KREFER BB
REER BB A e a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BETT BT
At 1 January 2013 M2013F1A1H 6,867 1,338 24,569 6,793 39,567
Credited/(charged) to REEBWEERA
consolidated income statement 5t A (F1[%) 261 (913) (3,308) 1,576 (2,384)
Currency translation differences SN ITE =48 221 28 723 237 1,209
At 31 December 2013 7201312 A31H 7,349 453 21,984 8,606 38,392
Credited/(charged) to consolidated FA4r& W&k A
income statement A (H08) 8,426 1,639 (2,973) (749) 6,343
Currency translation differences ~ MNEITE %8 12 6 (89) (33) (104)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H 15,787 2,098 18,922 7,824 44,631

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-

forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit

through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not

recognise deferred income tax assets (2013: HK$1,411,000), given
no losses (2013: HK$5,645,000) that can be carried forward against

future taxable income.
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MR M

23 EEFREH (&)

23 Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities: BELFREBAE !
Undistributed
profits of
PRC Fair value  Revaluation
subsidiaries gain of assets Total
=]
MEARIZ DREE
RO IRFE L6 EfEE a&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT
At 1 January 2013 #K2013F181H 85,365 2,249 6,788 94,402
Charged/(credited) to consolidated RIFAWEERA
income statement k., (GEA) 33,075 1,576 (788) 33,863
Charged directly to equity EERESR - 2,448 - 2,448
Payment of withholding tax TR (23,186) - - (23,186)
Currency translation differences SNEE YT E R 2,829 132 202 3,163
At 31 December 2013 K2013F12H831H 98,083 6,405 6,202 110,690
Charged/(credited) to consolidated RErB RN
income statement me (Gt ) 30,674 (10) (794) 29,870
Charged directly to equity HEERERR - 1,060 - 1,060
Payment of withholding tax IS TEIORE (21,278) - - (21,278)
Currency translation differences SN E = RE (292) (17) (26) (335)
At 31 December 2014 2014412 H31H 107,187 7,438 5,382 120,007

ST B 2 K R S £ T
2 E A BAIA L BRI AT 19 B4 8 (5 (13 AT
SEE ) -

Deferred income tax liabilities have been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of all subsidiaries after the deduction of relevant
statuary reserves.
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24 Other (Loss)/Gains - Net 24 Hft(E5E) WHE — B
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Government grants received (a) BT R () 11,949 43,586
Amortisation of deferred government grants (note 20) ¥ #E Bt i Bl i 84 (Pt 5320) 486 483
Derivative financial instruments: PTHESRIA
— fair value loss on commodity futures contracts — T HEERIEEFEFHEE
not qualified for hedge accounting (note 22(a)) BREEHAREEEE
(KiE22(0)) (17,614) (6,850)
— fair value gain on foreign exchange forward contracts — N F& B EL h e EIE >
not qualified for hedge accounting (note 22(o)) SNERHIE N A BEKE
(KFE22(0)) 24,182 42,251
Dividend income from available-for-sale financial assets a] fft 1 & & B & &= 2 IR S YA 11,395 6,982
Exchange loss TE H 518 (2,210) (14,989)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment  HEW¥ - BE REE 2 EE (13,015) (10,6593)
Claim from suppliers REREEHRE 7,136 4,818
Rental income el A 4,417 2,560
Impairment charge of intangible assets (note 9) mEERER 2 (M) (37,880) -
Others Hih 896 684
(10,258) 68,872
(@)  For the year ended 31 December 2014, the majority of the (@ HEE2014F12A318ILFE © KBH
amount was granted as reward for the Group’s contribution to HMRIEE AREANEEERE RIER
taxation and employment. For the year ended 31 December HEZEE - HZE2013F 1284318 1t
2013, the majority of the amount was granted with the FE - R AR HAREN GG AR
condition that the Group is obliged to enhance its operation SEAERBZBNHALM RN EE
and development under the terms of this government grant. BRERER-
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MR M

25

26

Expenses by Nature

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and marketing

25 BEMELSE X

FAAHEERAAR - HERTISHEREMSRIT

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: B 2 FAZ T
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cost of inventories recognised as expense (note 13) R AR Y 2 TF &R (MI5E13) 6,886,297 6,544,347
Employee benefit expenses (note 26) BB RN (F5E26) 968,136 968,780
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 7) 1% - RE RS EITE (Fi:X7) 150,227 139,819
Depreciation of investment properties (note 8) WEYEITE (W3E8) 2,944 1,706
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights FHE + 4 [2 + 3 s FARE S 8
(note 6) (FffF5E6) 5,295 5,259
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 9) EEEBE (W) 3,166 3,144
Provision for impairment of trade receivables — net B 5 R E bR B FURE B
(note 14(c)) —FH(MEE14(c)) 10,269 10,926
Reversal of impairment of inventories — net (note 4.1(f)) 7Z& A E &R — %28 (M3T4.1()) (4,762) (2,312)
Operating leases rental for land and buildings THREFEEHEEES 13,731 9,978
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREN & 3,257 2,980
Research and development costs s MR AR 33,668 10,337
Employee Benefit Expenses 26 EEBAFEX
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BB T T
Wages and salaries TENES 756,149 786,402
Pension costs-defined contribution plans (a) RIKE KA —BEEHFEE(@) 51,733 51,555
Medical benefits-defined contribution plans EBEEN — B EHRETE 26,172 24,049
Redundancy payment BB 10,318 1,630
Share option scheme-value of services provided BB PR B — PR AR S 2
(note 18) BE(HE18) - 147
Contribution by owners relating to share-based BB AR BER
payment (note 18(c)) HEA(MIEE18(0) 11,700 -
Other allowances and benefits )R85 K ta A 112,064 104,997
968,136 968,780
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26 EE®EMBX(E)
(a) BARERAR-BEEMHRRTE

26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued)

(a) Pension costs — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
companies (the employer) and its employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation.
The contributions from each of the employers and employees
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. Forfeited contributions totalling
HK$20,000 (2013: HK$101,000) were utilised during the year.

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required
to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered and operated by the local municipal government.
The Group is currently required to make a monthly contribution
equivalent to 15% to 28% of the employees’ salary (subject
to a floor and cap) as set by local municipal governments to
each scheme locally to fund the retirement benefits of the
employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRMET
26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 26 EERFFEX(E)
(b) Directors’ and senior managements’ (b) EEREREEAEHMSE

emoluments

The remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31 EEREZE2014F12831HILEFEZ
December 2014 is set out below: B EHaT

Employer’s

contribution

Discretionary to pension

Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses scheme Total
RicgEZ
£ ne 2 migTA BEHR A&t

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BRI BETR BRI BT BRI

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhou Xiangyang ElRL ps - 1,087 1,212 10 2,309
Mr. Yu Yonghua () RAKEFH() - 394 2,044 9 2,447
Mr. Luo Huagang (i B i) - 359 2,253 6 2,618
Mr. Zhong Lin (i) TR A i) - 253 1,212 6 1,471
Ms. Yuan Liqun ARt - - - - -
Mr. Li Feide FRELE - - - - -
Mr. Li Xianlu (i) FREFEW) - 252 - 5 257
Mr. Jiang Deging (v) ZEBEEWV) - - - - -
Mr. Li Yang (v) FighAEW) - 216 530 4 750
Mr. Lu Xiaoji (vi PEEL V) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Tan Jinsong EEESI/ 180 - - - 180
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MEAB LA 180 - - - 180
Ms. Cao Zhoutao(vii MR (vi) 180 - - - 180
540 2,561 7,251 40 10,392
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e EmRMET
26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 26 EERFFEX(E)
(b) Directors’ and senior managements’ (b) EERESREEAEME (E)

emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31 FEENEZE2013F12A31BIEFEZ
December 2013 is set out below: ST -

Employer’s
contribution to

Discretionary pension
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses scheme Total
RSB
EES e e Fe EiETEAL EEHZ CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT BT

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Zhou Xiangyang AmEEE - 1,086 2,615 9 3,710

Ms. Yuan Liqun RABLL - - - - -

Mr. Li Feide FRERAE - - - - -

Mr. Jiang Deging (v) ZEELEVY) - 827 932 9 1,768

Mr. Li Yang (v) FigHREWY) - 468 1,713 9 2,190

Mr. Lu Xiaoji (vi) Sl - 490 1,855 9 2,354

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

Directors

Mr. Tan Jinsong EYINGE 180 - _ _ 180

Mr. Lam Ming Yung MEABELE 180 - _ _ 180

Ms. Cao Zhoutaol(vii E MLt (vi) 35 - - - 35

Ms. Chen Chunhualvii) BB (i) 145 - - - 145

540 2,871 7,115 36 10,562

() Mr. Yu Yonghua was appointed on 15 January 2014. ()  FOKELAENR2014F1A158E
EE-

(i) Mr. Luo Huagang was appointed on 3 June 2014, (i) BEMEZEN2014F6A3HEZ
T

(i) ~ Mr. Zhong Lin was appointed on 21 October 2014. (i) SEMREER2014F10F21HES
T
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e EmRMET
26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 26 EERFFEX(E)
(b) Directors’ and senior managements’ (b) EERESREEAEME (E)

emoluments (Continued)

(iv)  Mr. Li Xianlu was appointed on 3 June 2014 and
resigned on 21 October 2014.

(v)  Mr. Jiang Deqing and Mr. Li Yang were resigned on 3

June 2014.

(Vi) Mr. Lu Xiaoji was resigned on 15 January 2014.

(vi)  Ms. Cao Zhoutao was appointed on 21 October 2013.

(viii)  Ms. Chen Chunhua was resigned on 21 October 2013.

The remuneration of the key management for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013 is set out below:

(v) FERELAER2014F6HA3HES
ERA2014E10 521 BEHE -

V)  EEBLEERTHIEAENR2014F
6 A3HEHT -

(vi) EEELEENR201451 A15H &
£

(viiy  EMNFRZETR2013F107218%E
SEE-

(i) PREIEZTH2013F10A21 A&
£

HE2014F N2013F12 A1 HILFE
MEZEBEASMSETIOT -

Group

TEH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BB T T
Salaries and other employee benefits HFeEhEMEERT 15,599 22,243
Share options granted by the Company RN B)IR B AL - 132
15,599 22,375
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e EmRMET
26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 26 EEEFMEX(E)
(c) Five highest paid individuals (c) EEBEHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AEEEENRELEFTMATEE=
Group for the year include three directors (2013: two) whose (2013 : MA)EF - A2 &HR
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. XD c REEEMNEBTWA (2013
The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2013: three) F:ZRH)ATZHEIT :

individual during the year are as follows:

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEET T BT
Basic salaries, share options, EXFe - BRE -
other allowances and benefits in kind HiZ0E REYH &= 4,190 7,104
Contribution to pension schemes RIREET B 21 139
4,211 7,243
The emoluments fell within the following bands: BB TR Z ABIAT
Emolument bands Number of individuals
< 48 B AE
2014 2013
HK$1,000,000 — HK$2,000,000 78 #4,000,0007T —
7B #52 000,0007T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 7B #2 000,0017T —
7B #£3,000,0007T 1 3
27 Finance Expenses - Net 27 BERMY - FE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Interest expense FEAX (33,290) (29,471)
Exchange loss b 5 E518 (21,319) (20,851)
Finance expenses REMX (54,609) (50,322)
Finance income - interest income on bank deposit BB A —RITES T F B A 16,416 8,949
Net finance expenses BhE R FEE (38,193) (41,379)
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MR M

28 Income Tax Expense

(a)

(b)

(c)

Macao and British Virgin Islands profits tax

The Group has not been subject to any taxation in these
jurisdictions for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax is provided at annual income tax rate of
16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 16.5%).

PRC Corporate Income Tax

Group companies registered in the PRC are subject to PRC
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”). According to the new CIT
effective from 1 January 2008, all PRC enterprises are subject
to a standard enterprise income tax rate of 25%, except for
enterprises under specific preferential policies and provisions
are disclosed as follows.

GD Welling, Welling Washer and Wuhu Welling have been
eligible to high technology enterprises CIT incentive starting
from year 2008 to year 2016. The applicable preferential tax
rate of high technology enterprises is 15% for the year ended
31 December 2014 (2013:15%).

Huaian Welling has been eligible to high technology enterprises
CIT incentive from year 2010 to year 2015. The applicable
preferential tax rate of high technology enterprises is 15% for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 15%).

28 FrEHRX

(a)

(b)

(c)

B REBELEFSHED

REBREZE2014F 12 A31 B ILEF
EHBHMIL SR EER 2 EMFIEA
(20135 « &) -

BRENEH

HZE2014F12A31HILFE - FBF
BRTVZBEERESHRME16.5%5 =
(20134 : 16.5%) °

R EEAEH

AREBE PP BT A D RAS AT H R
ERER(TREMSH]) - RIEB2008
F1AAIRRERZ R EEEMEN
BTIXBRBEXBENEREBBRLRE
2% - AT A RHEHN25%EF
EPEMFHE -

FERENEE - B EE SR B A B2 B3 2008
FE2016F B ST SRR
FRESIEHR AR AR - 522014
F12A31BIEFE - @FfblRbE 2]
BEEHER15%(20134F : 15%) °

L E B 2010F £2015F M/ & 1
XAENREBMERETBS AR
RIER - HE2014F12A31 B IH4F
B affEcEZAAREREA
15%(2013%F : 15%) °
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FEMKRRME
28 Income Tax Expense (Continued) 28 Fr5HBAZ (&)
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Current tax BIHARTIS Y
- PRC corporate income tax — B EMEH 116,197 129,376
— Tax paid for transfer of share — B EE T 2 TR 29,406 -
— Hong Kong profits tax —BANEH 2,087 1,463
147,690 130,839
Deferred income tax FEIEFTIS L 23,527 36,247
Income tax expense SR 171,217 167,086

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate
applicable to profits of the entities as follows:

AN BRI ATRE 2 HE SR A E B R @
RZ ARt E 2B mii iRy =R
™

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Profit before income tax HOBR PS5 AT 852,392 959,216
Calculated at the PRC statutory tax rate of 25% R BAE B R 25%5TH
(2013: 25%) (20134 : 25%) 213,098 239,804
Effect of difference in applicable tax rates BRAMERER ZE (99,214) (95,835)
Under-provision of tax in prior year T FEHRERETR 29,406 -
Withholding tax on attributable profit FE{EFETEFIF 30,674 33,075
Reversal of over-provision (i) R FBEBE R () - (7,400)
Income not subject to tax BAERT A (7,956) (5,466)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes AR 2 A 5,209 1,526
Tax losses not recognised as deferred income KERBBELEMBHEEEZ
tax assets MIBEE - 1,411
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses FRBE AR IEER - (29)
Income tax expense FriSiF sz 171,217 167,086
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A P AR R

28 Income Tax Expense (Continued)

(i) The amounts represent the impact of change in PRC corporate
income tax for one of the Group’s subsidiaries, Huaian Welling,
after the completion of the registration of high-tech enterprises
preference tax rate at 15% in respect of 2012 taxable profits
with the tax bureau. The tax provision was previously provided
based on a tax rate of 25% and the over-provision was
reversed accordingly in 2013.

PRC corporate income tax is provided for at 25% (2013: 25%) of
the taxable profits for the PRC statutory financial reporting purposes,
adjusted for items which are not assessable or deductible for the
PRC corporate income tax purpose.

The tax charge relating to components of other comprehensive

income is as follows:

28 FriSHiF ()

() ZESBIETPECEMGRESEARE
B2 B R RELEEN20124F 2 fER
FRFIER B R TR MR EES
TE15% 2 BERRBEEZFE - LAl
BRERAREN25% 2 Bi R #EITHME
722013 4F #F B8 iR 58 18 1 1 IR L T LA
@ o

REEEMERIZTBAEMB2RAEZ

25%(20134F : 25% ) &TiE + WHE A ghA E
EMERER SR BB EHAE -

BH {2 E W as BP0 ARBE B RS L 3D

2014
Before tax Tax charged After tax
RRBLAT BIEXH BRBi%
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT T BT T
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AHEESREEY
financial assets (note 12) DR BERE(HE12) 7,071 (1,060) 6,011
Currency translation differences SNEE T E = ER (11,198) - (11,198)
(4,127) (1,060) (5,187)
2013
Before tax Tax charged After tax
BREAT Iz S IRES
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB TT BB T T BB T T
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AtHESREEZ
financial assets (note 12) AR EEWRE(HEE12) 5,823 (2,448) 3,375
Currency translation differences SN E =R 91,031 - 91,031
96,854 (2,448) 94,406
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30

Company

(a)

29 Profit Attributable to the Owners of the 29 ARA TR ABALESRE
The profit attributable to the owners of the Company is dealt FFARRBI B |ME 2 AN R RHA AE(LF
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of 4 A7 272,306,000 7T (2013 4F : B #E
approximately HK$272,306,000 (2013: HK$222,157,000). 222,157,0007T) °
Earnings Per Share 30 EREAER
Basic (a EZ&X
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit FIREREF TR N B A AESR
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted HEBR L EFEARDBITERR 2 NEESH
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. HEo
2014 2013
Profit for the year attributable to the owners RREIHEE AEEFERE
of the Company (HK$’000) (BT IT) 678,372 785,499
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR ESRERREN 2
for the purposes of basic earnings per share EBARINAE 8 (TA%)
(000 shares) 2,854,867 2,835,694
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRRERZF GBI 23.76 27.70

(b)

Diluted

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, diluted
earnings per share were calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The dilutive
potential ordinary shares of the Company are performance-
based share options. For the share options, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated as
above is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A P AR R

30 Earnings Per Share (Continued)

(b) Diluted (Continued)

30 EREFN(E)
(b) #E(HE)

2014 2013

Profit for the year attributable to the owners RARHEB NEEFEFRHE
of the Company (HK$’000) (BB FIT) 678,372 785,499

Weighted average number of ordinary shares RARFTESRERRBT 2

for the purposes of basic earnings per share RN S BT RL)
('000 shares) 2,854,867 2,835,694
Adjustments for share options (‘000 shares) IBRR TR (T %) 1,316 7,741
2,856,183 2,843,435
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) BRESERF (GBIL) 23.75 27.63

31 Dividends 31 RE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BEE T
Proposed final dividend of HK7.5 cents EEAHREEREERT. 5

per ordinary share (2013: HK8.5 cents) (20134 : 8.57811l) 214,652 242,183

At a meeting held on 11 March 2015, the directors proposed a final
dividend of HK7.5 cents per ordinary share (2013: HK8.5 cents). This
proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these
consolidated financial statements.

The proposed final dividend for 2013 by the directors on 10 March
2014 was HK$242,183,000, based on the 2,849,207,000 ordinary
shares issued as at 31 December 2013 of HK8.5 cents per share.
Subsequently, 7,426,000 shares was issued under the share option
scheme before the approval of the final dividend at the annual
general meeting of the shareholders on 30 May 2014. As a result,
the actual final dividend paid for 2013 was HK$242,814,000 based
on 2,856,633,000 shares of HK8.5 cents per share.

2015 3A11RETZ 8% L EFEHEE
R ARG SRR A% 7578 1U (20134F : 8.5
L) o WTERZEBRE W ARTEZSGA MR
AR AERIRE °

EEZN2014FE3 108 B3 22013 F K Hi
& B A8 242,183,000 7T ( E A 2013412
F 31 B % 17 2 2,849,207,000 f% & 3@ % &
fr8.5 M) - K& - EREMN 201445 A4
SORBAZMEBFAG LR ERBARS
Z A+ 7,426,000 % I 19 15 15 B AR 4 5 & 8
77 o FHllt - 2013F B BRI B BB
242,814,0007T ( £ 7 2,856,633,000 % & i A%
FE8.581)
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32 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 32 MEHERMERNTE
Cash Flows
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax (@) HBRFIBHRANBELEEE
to cash generated from operations: ZEESHIRR :
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Profit before income tax HIRR A48 84 A1 7 852,392 959,216
Adjustments for: PR
— Depreciation of properties, plant and —WE - BEREEHTE
equipment (note 7) (PfF5E7) 150,227 139,819
— Depreciation of investment properties (note 8) —REMESTE (M:E8) 2,944 1,706
— Amortisation of leasehold land and land use —HE T R A
rights (note 6) s P4 3H (M1 5E6) 5,295 5,259
— Amortisation of intangible assets (note 9) —EB B ESH (M) 3,166 3,144
— Deferred government grants (note 20) — EIETR A R Ah (T 5E20) (486) (483)
— Loss on disposals of property, —HEYE - BEX
plant and equipment (note 24) R EE (iE24) 13,015 10,653
— Contribution by owners related to BRIHA ARG BER
share-based payment (note 18(c)) R EEL(FI5E18(c)) 11,700 -
— Share option scheme-value of — B E - TR ERS 2
services provided (note 18) EE(ME18) - 147
— Share of profits of investments accounted for —ERAEREARZ
using the equity method (note 11) A FE(FEE1) (41,253) (22,408)
- Dividend income from available-for-sale —AHEESMEEY
financial assets (note 24) i&% B A (B5E24) (11,395) (6,982)
— Interest income (note 27) — MBI (FF5E27) (16,416) (8,949)
— Interest expense (note 27) —MB R (FEE27) 33,290 29,471
— Impairment of inventories — net —FERE-FE 2,329 7,116
— Provision for impairment of trade and — 8 5 R E b FEWR S —
other receivables-net (note 14(c)) EEKIEE14() 10,269 10,926
— Impairment change on intangible assets (note 9)  — M2 & ERE R 2 (FizX9) 37,880 -
Changes in working capital: EEEHE)
- Inventories —-7E (117,546) (180,314)
- Derivative financial instruments —ITHEERMIA 13,737 (17,027)
- Trade and other receivables — B 5 R E BN 107,269 216,986
— Trade and other payables —E 5 REMERNK (19,705) 320,547
Cash generated from operations REEE RS 1,036,712 1,468,830
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32 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 32 MERERERMTE(E)
Cash Flows (Continued)
(b) Proceeds from sale of property, plant and (b) HEYE BERRKREMERN
equipment comprise: IBEIE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Net book amount (note 7) BREFE(MRET) 54,308 50,453
Loss on disposals of property, HEYE - BEREBEE
plant and equipment (note 24) (FF5E24) (13,015) (10,653)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BEMEE
plant and equipment FriSs0a 41,293 39,800
There is no non-cash transaction during this period. HAMEIERERS -
33 Contingent Liabilities 33 HAREE
Except for the financial guarantees disclosed in note 35, as at 31 BrBT X35 AT 2 B E ERIN + R2014F &
December 2014 and 2013, the Group and the Company did not 20135124318 » AN&EHE KA R FH & E R
have any material contingent liabilities. EARABE -

Annual Report 3 2014 ] 8]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRME
34 Commitments 34 %
(@) Capital commitments (a)

Capital expenditures contracted for at the end of the year is as

BAXERE

RERBETHNERFRANT ¢

follows:
Group
rEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Capital expenditures contracted for BRI4EREED
but not provided BARME 196,928 98,268

The Company does not have any capital commitment as at 31
December 2014 and 2013.

(b) Operating lease commitments (b)

The future aggregate minimum lease payments of the Group
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

R20144F & 2013F 12 A31H » &AA A
AT & ZAF R

o

REHEERE

AEERBET A B2 QEHERRK
PN 2 RIEREFIRERENT

Group

rEH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Not later than one year BB F 11,254 6,006
Later than one year and not later than five years A1 FE AN BB E 2,128 3,520
13,382 9,526

The Company itself does not have any operating lease
commitments as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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MR M

35 Financial Guarantees 35 REIER
The Group and the controlling shareholder of the associates NEE N E N R IR AR R LR R ARGt
have jointly and severally given guarantee to banks in respect F A EE SN B A B H986,183,0007T
of the banking facilities extended to the associates of the (20134 : #J7& % 942,508,0007T ) 2 $R1T#%
Group of approximately HK$986,183,000 (2013: approximately S1EER - R2014F12831H » ZFH2ENQ
HK$942,508,000). As at 31 December 2014, bank loans AIEIRIVERRRERNIEITE R BB
of approximately HK$423,374,000 (2013: approximately 423,374,0007T (20134 : #9/8%613,076,000
HK$613,076,000) being guaranteed by the Group to associates JT) ° RIBHEBREERAELIER  AEB R
have been drawn down. Under the terms of the relevant financial B N AR AR SR B P E (R B 2 A RIS RTE
guarantee contract, the Group and the controlling shareholder of the IRITERRHERE - BHEBRERA -
associates will make payments to reimburse the lenders upon failure
of the guaranteed associates to make payments when the bank
loans are due.
Terms and face values of the liabilities guaranteed were as follows: EREBEZERNABRT ¢
Group
rEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BB T T
Face value Face value
HE [
Financial guarantees BEER
— bank loans drawn —BiREURTTER 423,374 613,076

In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of these financial
guarantees are insignificant at initial recognition and the directors
consider that the possibility of the default of the parties involved is
remote, accordingly no value has been recognised at the inception of
the guarantee contracts and at the end of the reporting period.

EERR ZEREERNAAEERVIGTE
REFWAEK - TR AERE R E K 2 FTRE
MRS - Bt - RERAOHBFRERRE R
HEREE -

Annual Report 3 2014 ] 83



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

36 Related Party Transactions

The ultimate holding company of the Group is Midea Holding, which
owns 68.68% of the Company’s shares. The remaining 31.32% of

36 BHAIXS

AEBHREIER AR BENTERES AQ A
68.68% 2 A% {n ° 82 T31.32% 2 I & FH#

the shares are widely held. The ultimate controlling shareholder of the B o REEZ RIIERR R B Z % E -
Group is Mr. He Xiangjian.

Transactions between the Group and other related parties during the

year are summarised below:

(a)

Transactions with related parties

AARREEAF
13 - AEEEE
T -

(a) EEBL2ZXS

MR SERGERENR
B I E N2 R 58kl

The following transactions were carried out with related parties AT TR SR SR X A EHTE 2
in accordance with the terms mutually agreed between the ERGET 25 -
respective parties:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Sales to related parties: B R G EHE ¢
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — AR AR A B 4,116,975 3,626,658
Purchases from related parties: B EA 5 R EE -
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — IR AN TR 45,538 21,125
— Controlled by a close family member — EEEim 2 UNCIE -3 3 W
of the ultimate holding company’s HTEE
substantial shareholder 142,915 136,641
188,453 157,766
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36 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 36 BEEAIRZ(E)

(@) Transactions with related parties (a) EERAEE S 23X % (4E)
(Continued)
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Other transactions with related parties - HEEM A 2HEMRS
Controlled by the ultimate holding company  — & & =8 A T34

(i) Logistics services received from related parties (i) [ B8 8 75 TEEN 7 AR 7% 53,566 7,093
(i) Rental income received from a related party (i) (RIBAESE 77 R A AR 2 A 4,417 2,560
(iii) Sales of intangible assets to a related party (iiy MIEAEE B ENEREE 1,089 895
(iv) Share-based payment contribution by owners  (iv) LARR{D A EL 4 EY 32 1+ & Bk
(note 18(c)) (FIEE18(0)) 11,700 -
(v) IT and management consulting fee paid to a (v) MR 75 S ASPROIT 2
related party EBLERAER - 10,481
Financial services provided by B A T IR 09 B 3 IR A
the Finance Company - Controlled by —HRAER DTS
the ultimate holding company
(i) Short-term borrowings received (i) S HRfE =X 6,310 690,664
(iiy Short-term borrowings repaid (il BB HAE 6,310 690,664
(iii) Issues of bills (iii) FE 2 g 2,909,303 1,008,776
(iv) Discounted bills (iv) BAIRZE & 450,430 790,424
(v) Interest income on deposits received (v) WERAF R B A 9,331 3,756
(vi) Interest expense and bank charges paid (Vi) ZF S RE RIRTTER 10,164 17,413
(vii) Settlement of foreign currency (vil) INE 4L E 252,780 251,831
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A P AR R

36 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Balances with related parties

36 BEAITXZ(HE)
(b) EEREAERTT 2 AEER

Group

rEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Due from related parties included in trade ERRELIFTE SFEER
and other receivables: HhfERE -

— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — R RIENR N B 764,470 478,010

The credit periods for the amounts due from related parties are

within 180 days.

As at 31 December 2014, the amounts due from related

parties including notes receivable of approximately

HK$334,144,000 (2013: HK$38,101,000).

FEURERES 5 B 2 (EEHAA180A A ©

M2014512 A31 8 - EUEERE H ZIES
B IR BN IR 4 A5 334,144,000
(20134F : ##38,101,0007T) °

Group
AEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
Due to related parties included in trade and  FENBIB S HIE > BFESR
other payables: HibEARIE -
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — SRR A TS 25,434 6,869
— Controlled by a close family member — BRI AREBRRZ
of the ultimate holding company’s HTERAE
substantial shareholder 54,514 53,946
79,948 60,815
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36 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 36 BEEAIRZ(E)
(b) Balances with related parties (Continued) (b) EERREET 2458k (4E)

As at 31 December 2014, the amounts due to related parties
including notes payable of approximately HK$21,359,000
(2013: HK$23,309,000).

The balances due from/to related parties are denominated in
RMB, unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.
No balance due from related parties is past due or impaired.

MN2014E12 A31 8 » FERTRERE T 708
SHEBREEMNERY AE21,359,000
JC(20134F : & #23,309,0007T) °

FEUFES R R J5 A5 BR A A RIE B (E -

DI E I Y S NE ]

REREHEE ©

B B W B 75 R a ISR E -

Group
rEE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Other balances with related parties BARRNS 5 2 a6k
- Controlled by the ultimate holding company — HE&IER A T84
(i) Short-term deposits in the Finance Company () RIS A B 2 R EAE R 1,928,696 1,364,811
(il Bills have been issued but not yet due in the (i) R ARIERA®R
Finance Company A B AR 1,541,199 1,113,966
(i) Discounted bills receivable not yet due in the (i) PREAFS A BRI E RLIRE
Finance Company # R 2 A R U R 1% 257,645 366,517
(iv) Short-term deposits in a related party (iv) FAREES 7 2 R ERTF R 19,226 17,940
Save as disclosed in note 10, the Company does not have BREEE10RTI A - 2N W) R B G 7 L A

other balances with related parties.

Hith 5 gk

Annual Report 3 2014 ] 87



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AENBRE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT BT BT
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
REZ LTIz KEZ KEZ LEZ
Results ESE
Revenue WA 9,273,399 8,881,723 7,787,502 10,490,373 7,235,360
Profit attributable to the owners ZNAFHEHR A
of the Company FEME T 678,372 785,499 640,256 607,563 532,338
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets 1B 8,046,711 7,891,778 6,839,053 6,162,452 6,331,676
Total liabilities waE (3,716,867) (4,016,802) (3,735,799)  (3,610,278)  (4,356,372)
Total equity Bt 4,329,844 3,874,976  3,103254 2,552,174 1,975,304
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